REVISED AGENDA
(REVISED TO INCLUDE TELECONFERENCE LOCATION)

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, January 22, 2019
6:00 PM

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION: CAPITOL HILTON, 1001 16™ ST NW,
WASHINGTON DC, 20036

TELECONFERENCE LOCATION: KUVEYT CD. NO:6, REMZI OGUZ ARIK
MAHALLESI, 06680 CANKAYA/ANKARA, TURKEY

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.
Any member of the public may attend this meeting. Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900.

The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. The Mayor may exercise a
two minute speaking limitation to comments from Councilmembers. Meetings will adjourn at 11:00 p.m. -
any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified.

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional
ceremonial matters.

1. Recognition of Mahealani Uchiyama.

City Manager Comments: The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to
the City Council in the form of an oral report. The Council will not take action on such items but may
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected by lottery to address
matters not on the Council agenda. If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, each
person selected will be allotted two minutes each. If more than five persons submit speaker cards for the
lottery, up to ten persons will be selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and each person
selected will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the Council on matters not on the
Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such comment, must submit a speaker card to the

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 1
Rev - 1



City Clerk in person at the meeting location and prior to commencement of that meeting. The remainder
of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end of the

agenda. Speaker cards are not required for this second round of public comment on non-agenda matters.

Consent Calendar

The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the
“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent
Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at
the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”.

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar.

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information
Calendar. Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent
Calendar and Information Items. A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment
on Consent Calendar and Information items.

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such,
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops.

Consent Calendar

Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support Small
Businesses

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. amending
the Berkeley Municipal Code to streamline and clarify the permitting process for
small businesses in commercial districts by: 1. Reducing the amount of parking

required for businesses moving into existing commercial spaces; 2. Simplifying food

service categories by reducing them from three to one; 3. Reducing permitting time
and costs for small businesses that request a change of use in existing commercial
spaces; 4. Clarifying the permit process for new business types that may not be

specifically defined in the City’s zoning rules; 5. Making ‘commercial recreation’ uses

(such as bowling alleys, miniature golf courses or ping pong clubs) easier to permit
commercial districts; and 6. Streamlining the permit process and providing clear
performance standards for restaurants that wish to serve beer and wine.

The ordinance would amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapters 23E.16, 23E.36,
23E.40, 23E.44, 23E .48, 23E.52, 23E.56, 23E.60, 23E.64, 23E.68, and 23E.98.
First Reading Vote: All Ayes.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Jordan Klein,
Economic Development, 981-7530

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 2

in

Rev -2



Consent Calendar

2. Referral Response: Reclassifying the zoning and the General Plan and West
Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,638-N.S.: a. Rezoning
a portion of the project site from Mixed Use — Light Industrial (MU-LI) to West
Berkeley Commercial (C-W) (Amendments affect APNs 054-1763-001-03 and 054-
1763-010-00); and b. Amending the C-W District development standards to allow for
a 4-story / 50-foot tall building on the subject property (Amendments affect APNs
054-1763-001-03, 054-1763-010-00, and 054-1763-003-03).

First Reading Vote: Ayes - Kesarwani, Bartlett, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes - Davila, Harrison, Hahn.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

3. Minutes for Approval
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of November 26,
2018 (special closed), November 27, 2018 (regular), December 4, 2018 (regular),
December 6, 2018 (special), and December 11, 2018 (regular).
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

4. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on January 22, 2019
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $9,078,600
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, 981-7300

5. Authorize Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda County for Winter
Relief Program
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Authorize the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) through April 30, 2019 with Alameda County for a Winter
Relief Program.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 3
Rev -3



Consent Calendar

6. Revenue Contract: Community Services Block Grant for Calendar Year 2019
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to accept the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Contract Number
19F-4001 for the amount of $266,863 to provide services for low-income people for
the period January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

7. Revenue Grant Agreement: Medi-Cal Administrative Activities Funding from
the State of California to Conduct Public Health Promotion Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit grant
agreements to the State of California, to accept the grants, and execute any resultant
revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public health promotion for Medi-
Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) Program for an amount not to exceed $3,000,000
for period of the agreement, Fiscal Years 2020 through 2022.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

8. Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed
Berkeley Way Project
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate,
enter into and cause the City to perform its obligations under one or more
agreements (including amendments) with the BRIDGE Housing Corporation,
Berkeley Food and Housing Project (BFHP), and/or their affiliates (including BRIDGE
Berkeley Way LP and BFHP Hope Center LP), relating to a grant application to the
California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC) Program for
Berkeley Way project-related transportation and infrastructure improvements, for a
total amount up to $3,800,000 for City-projects, and to accept and perform the grant
if awarded.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400; Phillip
Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 4
Rev -4



Consent Calendar

9. Classification and Salary: Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and
Equipment Superintendent
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution amending Resolution No. 68,710-N.S.
Classification and Salary Resolution for Public Employees Union - Local One, to
increase the salary range for Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and
Equipment Superintendent, 6.3% and 6.0% respectively, to an hourly salary range of
$55.7482 - $67.3564 effective January 22, 2019.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, 981-6800

10. Fee Assessment — State of California Self-Insurance Fund (Workers’
Compensation Program)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution amending Resolution 68,696-N.S. to
authorize payment to the State of California Department of Industrial Relations for
Fiscal Year 2019 for administering the Workers’ Compensation Program for an
additional amount of $4,041.84 with a total amount not to exceed of $223,041.84.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, 981-6807

11. Contract: Siegel & Strain Architects for Design Services for the Cazadero
Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with Siegel & Strain Architects in an amount not to
exceed $158,000 to provide design services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen
Dormitory Replacement Design Project.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700

12. Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
Permit (46690) Project
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration
(MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Berkeley
Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 5

Rev -5



Consent Calendar

13. Community Conservation Centers, Inc.’s Contractual Relief of its Revenue
Share Obligation to the City for the Sale of Recyclable Commodities
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to provide
contractual relief to Community Conservation Centers, Inc. (CCC) Recyclable
Processing Services Contract, Exhibit B. Section 3.1 “Contractor shall pay City 7.5
percent of annual gross revenue on a monthly basis.” The remaining obligation per
this Contract is $1,123,591.87.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

14. Contract: Ghilotti Construction Company for Panoramic Hill Rehabilitation
Project
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving plans and specifications for the
Panoramic Hill Rehabilitation Project, Specification No. 18-11180-C (Re-Issued);
accepting the bid of Ghilotti Construction Company as the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder; and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments, extensions or other change orders until completion of the project in
accordance with the approved plans and specifications in an amount not to exceed
$5,054,873.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $5,054,873
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

15. Contract: TranSystems Corporation for Preliminary Engineering and
Environmental Clearance for the Railroad Crossing Safety Improvement/Quiet
Zone Project
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with TranSystems Corporation for Preliminary
Engineering and Environmental Clearance for the Railroad Crossing Safety
Improvement/Quiet Zone project, and any as-needed additional project-related
services as directed by the City, for a total not-to-exceed contract amount of
$500,000, for the period February 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019.

Financial Implications: Capital Project Grant Fund - Local - $500,000
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 6
Rev -6



Consent Calendar

16. Contracts: On-Call Architectural Services: ELS Architecture and Urban Design;
Noll & Tam Architects; and Siegel & Strain Architects
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt three Resolutions authorizing the City Manager to execute
contracts and any amendments with the following firms for on-call architectural
design services in support of the City’s annual Facilities Capital Improvement
Program, each from February 1, 2019 through June 30, 2022:
1. ELS Architecture and Urban Design for an amount not to exceed $1,700,000.
2. Noll & Tam Architects for an amount not to exceed $1,700,000.
3. Siegel & Strain Architects for an amount not to exceed $1,700,000.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

17.  Authorization for Additional Civic Arts Commission Meeting in 2019
From: Civic Arts Commission
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing one additional meeting of the
Civic Arts Commission in 2019
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jennifer Lovvorn, Commission Secretary, 981-7530

Council Consent Items

18. Support a Green New Deal
From: Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmembers Davila, Harrison, and Robinson
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution supporting the development of a Green New
Deal, a federal economic stimulus program to address climate change and transform
the economy. Send a copy of the Resolution to U.S. Senators Dianne Feinstein and
Kamala Harris, Congresswoman Barbara Lee and Governor Gavin Newsom.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

19. Support of SB 18 — Keep Californians Housed Act
From: Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmembers Wengraf, Droste, and Hahn
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution in support of Senate Bill (SB) 18, the Keep
Californians Housed Act, introduced by Senator Nancy Skinner. Send a copy of the
Resolution to Senator Skinner, Assemblymember Buffy Wicks, and Governor Gavin
Newsom.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 7
Rev -7



Council Consent Items

20. 2019 City Council Committee and Regional Body Appointments
From: Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the appointment of Council
representatives to City Council Standing Policy Committees, Partnership
Committees, Regional Bodies, and Council Liaisons for a one-year term from
January 2019 to January 2020.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

21. Resolution Reaffirming the City of Berkeley’s Commitment to Roe v. Wade
From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Hahn, Droste, and Kesarwani
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution reaffirming the City of Berkeley’s
commitment to Roe v. Wade, and honor the 46th anniversary of its passage with a
proclamation.

Financial Implications: None
Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160

Action Calendar

The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is
taken up during the Action Calendar.

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line up at the podium to determine the
number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes.
If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public
comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other
speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may, with the
consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a block of time to each side to present
their issue.

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council.

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 8
Rev -8



Action Calendar — Old Business

22. Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance (Continued
from December 11, 2018. Iltem contains revised material.)
From: Councilmember Hahn and Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation:
1. Adopt a first reading of the Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance.
2. Refer to the City Manager to: a. Establish a mini-grant program administered and
funded either directly by the City or by community partners to help Prepared Food
Vendors with one-time costs associated with conversion to Reusable Foodware for
eating on the premises (“eating-in”). b. Establish a program administered and funded
either directly by the City or by community partners to provide technical assistance to
Prepared Food Vendors implementing Reusable Foodware requirements for eating
on the premises. c. Create a Reusable Takeout Foodware program for launch three
years after the effective date of the Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter
Reduction Ordinance, in collaboration with community partners such as the Ecology
Center, Rethink Disposables and StopWaste. d. Prior to launch of the Reusable
Takeout Foodware program, draft for approval amendments to the Single Use
Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance to implement the Reusable
Takeout Foodware program as an alternative to Compostable Takeout Foodware,
and impose a charge, similar to or the same as the Disposable Cup charge, on other
Disposable Foodware containers. e. Create a program to expand and support
composting, to ensure Single Use Disposable Foodware is actually composted.
f. Prior to January 1, 2022 report to the City Council on progress towards full
implementation of and compliance with the Single Use Disposable Foodware and
Litter Reduction Ordinance and these referrals.
3. Refer to the City Manager to determine funding and staffing needs and sources of
funds to implement each program/phase. Consider and suggest implementation
alternatives to achieve similar results at lower cost to the City, if any. Submit
recommended alternatives to the Zero Waste Commission and City Council for
consideration, and funding allocations or requests to the budget process.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, 981-7150

23. Refer to the City Manager to consider boycotting Amazon for its role in
tracking immigrants in cooperation with ICE and abusive working conditions
and its labor practices toward its employees (Continued from November 27,
2018. Item contains revised material.)
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Davila
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to consider the City of Berkeley
boycotting Amazon and refrain from using its services to purchase goods for city use.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 9
Rev -9



Action Calendar — Old Business

24a. Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended Green Stormwater
Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or Properties (Continued
from December 11, 2018. Item contains supplemental material.)
From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission
Recommendation: Since the drought-storm-flooding cycle is predicted to get worse,
refer to the City Man-ager to develop and implement measures to help reduce runoff
from private property when rain exceeds two inches in a 24-hour period. The City
Manager and staff should consider the following: - Comply beyond the State and
Alameda County current requirements; -Encourage the treating and detaining of
runoff up to approximately the 85th per-centile of water deposited in a 24-hour
period; -Establish site design measures that include minimizing impervious surfaces;
-Require homeowners to include flooding offsets in preparing properties for sale; -
Offer option(s) for property owners to fund in-lieu centralized off-site storm-water
retention facilities that would hold an equivalent volume of runoff; -Require
abatements for newly paved areas over a specific size; -Make exceptions for
properties that offer significantly below-market rent or sale prices; -Authorize a fee
for all new construction or for title transfer to cover the cost of re-quired compliance
inspections. -Incorporate these measures for private property with similar measures
for Public Works, while coordinating with EBMUD, BUSD, UCB and LBNL.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460

24b. Companion Report to Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended
Green Stormwater Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or
Properties (Continued from December 11, 2018.)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Express appreciation for the intent of the Community
Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC) recommendation to develop and
implement measures to help reduce runoff from private property when rain exceeds
two inches in a 24-hour period, and allow staff to continue existing efforts to
implement Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit regulations in coordination with the
14 other local governments and agencies that participate in the Alameda Countywide
Clean Water Program.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Phillip
Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 10
Rev - 10



Action Calendar — Old Business

25a. Referral Response: Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction
Ordinance (Continued from December 11, 2018.)
From: Zero Waste Commission
Recommendation: Review the results of the Zero Waste Commission’s community
outreach and analysis provided in response to Council’s referral and consider
incorporating the Zero Waste Commission recommendations for improvements into
the referred draft proposed Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction
Ordinance
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Heidi Obermeit, Commission Secretary, 981-6300

25b. Companion Report: Referral Response: Proposed Single Use Foodware and
Litter Reduction Ordinance (Continued from December 11, 2018.)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Staff appreciates the Zero Waste Commission’s diligent and
thoughtful work and requests that Council refer their recommendations for the
proposed Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance to the City
Manager to review, to quantify the potential impacts, and to report back to Council
with an analysis.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

26. Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning Department
on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program (Continued from December 11, 2018.)

From: Councilmembers Bartlett, Worthington, and Davila

Recommendation: That the Council provides requested direction to the Planning
Department on how to proceed with the Equity Program recommended by the
Cannabis Commission in the October 9, 2018 staff report. Recommending allowing 4
equity applicants and 2 non-equity applicants to apply and be processed by the City
within 2 years.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 11
Rev - 11



Action Calendar — New Business

27a. Allocation of $4.75 Million Over Two Years, FY20 and FY21, to Reduce
Consumption and Health Impacts of Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (SSBs)
From: Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of Experts
Recommendation:
1. Adopt a Resolution allocating $4.75 million from the General Fund in FY20 (July 1,
2019 through June 30, 2020) and FY21 (July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021) that
shall be invested in a grant program administered and coordinated by the Berkeley
Public Health Division consistent with the SSBPPE’s goals to reduce the
consumption of sugar sweetened beverages (SSB) in Berkeley and to address the
effects of SSB consumption. The total of $4.75 million will be distributed in two
installments of $2.375 million per year for FY20 and FY21. In each of these years,
the funds will be distributed as follows: a. Direct the City Manager to award up to
40% of the allocated funds to Berkeley Unified School District (BUSD) through a
grant proposal to reduce the consumption of sugar-sweetened beverages (SSBs)
through the implementation and enhancement of the BUSD cooking and gardening
programs. The BUSD funding process is separate from the RFP process for the
general community-based organization funding process and shall be guided by the
SSBPPE Commission’s Criteria for BUSD Funding. b. Direct the City Manager to
award at least 40% of the allocated funds through a RFP process managed by the
Public Health Division for grants to community-based organizations consistent with
the SSBPPE’s goals to reduce the consumption of SSBs and to address the effects
of SSB consumption. The community-based organization funding RFP process is
separate from the BUSD funding process and shall be guided by the SSBPPE
Commission’s Criteria for Community Agency Grants.
2. Direct the City Manager to utilize 20% of the allocated funds to support the
Berkeley Public Health Division (BPHD) to coordinate and monitor the grant process,
coordinate the overall program evaluation, and produce an annual report that
disseminates process and outcome data resulting from the SSBPPE funding
program. A comprehensive and sustainable media campaign that coordinates with all
regional soda tax efforts will be managed by the BPHD with 10% of this portion of the
allocation.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Dechen Tsering, Commission Secretary, 981-5300

27b. Companion Report: Allocation of $4.75 Million Over Two Years, FY20 and FY21,
to Reduce Consumption and Health Impacts of Sugar-Sweetened Beverages
(SSBs).
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Accept the Sugar Sweetened Beverage Product Panel of
Experts (SSBPPE) report with the clarifications outlined in the report considered.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 12
Rev - 12



Information Reports

28. LPC NOD: 1 and 5 Canyon Road, #LMIN 2018-0005
From: City Manager
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

29. LPC NOD: 2415 Blake Street, #LMIN 2018-0004
From: City Manager
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

30. Referral Response: Removing Plastic Microfibers from the Water Supply
From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission
Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460

31. City Auditor’s Office 2018 Peer Review Results
From: Auditor
Contact: Jenny Wong, Auditor, 981-6750

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda

Adjournment

NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to
approve or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:
1) No lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of
Decision of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be
barred. 2) In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use
permit or variance, the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally
or in writing, at a public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project.

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
and KPFB Radio 89.3.
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil.
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m.

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names,
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service
or in person to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact
information included in the public record, please do not include that information in your communication.
Please contact the City Clerk Department for further information.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda
will be made available for public inspection at the public counter at the City Clerk Department located on
the first floor of City Hall located at 2180 Milvia Street as well as posted on the City's website at
http://www.cityofberkeley.info.

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
and may be read at reference desks at the following locations:

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 13
Rev - 13


http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil

City Clerk Department Libraries:

2180 Milvia Street Main - 2090 Kittredge Street

Tel: 510-981-6900 Claremont Branch — 2940 Benvenue
TDD: 510-981-6903 West Branch — 1125 University

Fax: 510-981-6901 North Branch — 1170 The Alameda
Email: clerk@cityofberkeley.info South Branch — 1901 Russell

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION:

This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location.

To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least
three business days before the meeting date.

Attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various scents,
whether natural or manufactured, in products and materials. Please help the City respect these needs.

&

Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. In addition, assisted
listening devices for the hearing impaired are available from the City Clerk prior to the meeting, and are to
be returned before the end of the meeting.

I hereby certify that the agenda for this meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr.
Way, as well as on the City’s website, on January 17, 2019.

ik Mssivid)

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Council rules limit action on Communications to referral to the City Manager and/or Boards and
Commissions for investigation and/or recommendations. All communications submitted to Council are
public record. Copies of individual communications are available for viewing at the City Clerk Department
and through Records Online.

Item #22: Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance
1. Stuart Pawsey
2. Adam Stemmler, on behalf of the Farm League Restaurant Group

Item #27a: Allocation of $4.75 Million Over Two Years, FY20 and FY21, to Reduce
Consumption and Health Impacts of Sugar-Sweetened Beverages (SSB)
3. Jezra Thompson

Cannabis

4. Thomas Reed
5. Jacob Wong
6. Jessica Gohlke

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 14
Rev - 14



7. James Anstey
8. Sara Weinberg
9. Elijah Liedeker

Homeless Activists Harassing Berkeley Police (Video)

10. August Moon

Homeless Issues
11.Eric Friedman
12.Christine Schwartz
13.Marcia Poole
14.Moni Law

15. Autumn Moon
16.Rachel Beth
17.Barryett Enge
18.Richard James
19.Joe Vollono (2)
20.Jessica Behrman

RV Parking

21.Linda Maio
22.Autumn Moon
23.Nicholas Ohler
24 Christopher Brown

IKE Kiosks
25.Vivian Warkentin
26.Carol Denney (3)
27.Becca Freed

Marina Crisis
28.Eric Friedman

Electric Scooters
29.Jenny Craik

Street Paving
30.Dorothea Dorenz
31.Eric Friedman (2)
32.Mary Ann Brewin
33.Evan McDonald

Tobacco/Smoking
34.Pauline Bondonno
35.Carol Denney (3)
36.0mar Yacoubi

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA

Page 15

Rev - 15



Trees/Traffic Circles

37.John Steere, President Partner for Parks
38.Nancy Carleton

39.Karl Reeh (2)

40.Sally Hughes

Underground Study

41.Paul Casperson and Marilyn Pollack
42.David Turnoff

43.Susie Goodin

Okinawa Landfill
44 Diana Bohn

Shellmound — West Berkeley
45.Indian People Organizing for Change

Internet Access at BUSD City Council Meetings
46. Christine Schwartz
47.Emilie Raguso

Measure O & P
48.Sophia DeWitt
49.Todd Andrew

2-1-1 Monthly Report for November 2018
50.Eden I&R, Inc.(2)

LPC Letter, re: Berkeley Community Theater
51.Steven Finacom, Chairperson LPC

Professor Hatem Bazian
52.Margy Wilkinson

CPUC Fire Mitiagation Input
53.Paul Degenkolb, Chairperson, Disaster & Fire Safety Commission

Unaffordable Places to Live
54.Margy Wilkison

Orbison Lawsuit
55.Pil Orbison

PRC - Fair/lmpartial Policing
56.Katherine Lee

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 16
Rev - 16



Alameda Mental Health Update
57.Christine Schwartz

Save the Berkeley Animal Rights Center
58.Wayne Hsiung

Climate Emergency
59.Kelly Hammargren

Berkeley Way Project
60.Erika Shore

CalABLE Launch
61.Blake Johnson

Deemed Approved Ordinance Recommendation
62.Nuha Khalfay, Chair, Community Health Commission

Save Our Community Garden
63.Sarah Garrett

BPD Investigation
64.Moni Law

65. Chief Greenwood (3)
66. Genevieve Wilson

ColLiving at 3000 Shattuck
67.Nathan George

68.lan Wulfson

69.Mariana Almeida

Seize House of Black Veteran
70.Margy Wilkinson

PG&E Letter Response to Item #21 of the 11/27 Agenda
71.Janice Berman, Director, Grid Edge, PG&E

IHSS Letter Response to Item #16 of the 11/13 Agenda
72.Debbi Thomson, Deputy Director of IHSS Adult Programs Division

Supplemental Communications and Reports
Items received by the deadlines for submission will be compiled and distributed as follows. If no items
are received by the deadline, no supplemental packet will be compiled for said deadline.

e Supplemental Communications and Reports 1
Available by 5:00 p.m. five days prior to the meeting.

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 17
Rev - 17



Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Available by 5:00 p.m. the day before the meeting.

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3
Available by 5:00 p.m. two days following the meeting.

Tuesday, January 22, 2019 REVISED AGENDA Page 18
Rev - 18



Page 1 of 104

ORDINANCE NO. 7,635-N.S.

AMENDMENT TO MODIFY BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 23E.16.040.A,
23E.28.130, 23E.36.030.A, 23E.36.080.B, 23E.40.030, 23E.40.080.B, 23E.44.030,
23E.44.040.A, 23E.48.030, 23E.48.080.B, 23E.52.030, 23E.52.060.D, 23E.52.080.B,
23E.56.030.A, 23E.56.060.C, 23E.60.030, 23E.60.060.D, 23E.60.080.B, 23E.64.030.A,
23E.64.080.B, 23E.64.090.H, 23E.68.030.A, 23E.68.040, 23E.68.090.C, AND
23E.98.050 TO MODIFY PERMITTING REGULATIONS FOR BUSINESSES IN
COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23D.16.040.A is amended to read as
follows:

23E.16.040 Alcoholic Beverages

A. No alcoholic beverage sales or alcoholic beverage service may be commenced
or increased in any way unless authorized by a Use Permit, except that:
1. In Commercial Districts, Food Service Establishments with incidental beer
and/or wine service for seated, onsite consumption may be authorized by
a Zoning Certificate subject to the following alcoholic beverage service
performance standards:

a. Licensing

1) The Food Service Establishment shall comply with all applicable
regulations of the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage
Control; and

2) Any operator of the licensed establishment shall not have had a prior
licensed establishment that was the subject of verified complaints or
violations regarding alcohol, public safety or nuisance statutes or
regulations prior to issuance or transfer of a business license at this
location.

b. Service

1) Beer and wine beverage service shall be “incidental” to the primary
food service use, as defined in Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC)
Zoning Ordinance Section 23F.04.010 Definitions;

2) Beer and wine service incidental to seated food service shall only be
allowed at a “bona fide eating place” making “actual and substantial
sales of meals” as determined and required by the California
Department of Alcohol Beverage Control (ABC);

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 1 of 104

01

19


rthomsen
Typewritten Text
01


Page 2 of 104

3) The sale of beer and wine for off-site consumption is prohibited;

4) Employees shall not serve beer or wine to patrons who appear to be
inebriated or otherwise unable to behave in an orderly manner upon
consuming alcohol;

5) All beer and wine served to patrons must be served in durable
restaurant tableware. No beer or wine may be distributed in its
original bottle or can, or in any other potentially disposable container;

6) There shall be no bar or lounge area upon the licensed premises
maintained for the sole purpose of sales, service or consumption of
alcoholic beverages directly to patrons for consumption; and

7) Hours of operation are subject to review and amendment by the
Zoning Adjustments Board as necessary to avoid detriment to the
neighborhood or to achieve conformance with revised City
standards or policies.

c. Operations

1) The food service establishment must operate at least five days a
week;

2) The service of beer and wine shall be limited to normal meal hours
(per ABC) during the restaurant’s hours of operation;

3) During operating hours, 100% of the service area shall be designed
and used for meal service and must possess the necessary
utensils, and condiment dispensers with which to serve meals to
the public;

4) At no time shall the operator rent the restaurant space to a third-party
promoter;

5) The owner or operator of the establishment shall take reasonable
measures to prevent disturbances by patrons in the immediate
vicinity. Such measures shall include:

e Signs reminding patrons of nearby residences and requests not
to congregate or loiter near such residences nor operate vehicles
in a noisy manner on residential streets.

e Surveillance to public areas near the establishment, keep such
areas free of trash and litter, provide lighting, and otherwise
attempt to prevent conduct that might disturb the peace and quiet
of residences in the vicinity.

6) The operator shall assume reasonable responsibility for ensuring
that patrons do not block the entrance or interfere with pedestrian
activity on the adjacent public sidewalk; and

7) The applicant shall establish cash handling procedures to reduce the
likelihood of robberies and theft.

d. Advertising

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 2 of 104

20



Page 3 of 104

1) There shall be no exterior advertising or sign of any kind or type,
including advertising directed to the exterior from within, promoting
or indicating the availability of alcoholic beverages. Interior displays
of alcoholic beverages or signs which are clearly visible to the
exterior shall constitute a violation of this code; and

2) Neither alcohol-dispensing facilities nor sign(s) advertising alcoholic
beverages shall be visible from the public right-of-way.

e. Training

1) Crime Prevention through Environmental Design (CPTED) survey
shall be completed prior to commencing alcohol service; and

2) All employees selling and/or serving beer and wine, or directly
supervising such sales and/or service, shall comply with BMC
9.84.030 (Responsible Beverage Service Training) and complete the
Licensee Education on Alcohol and Drugs (LEAD) program, or
another equivalent program offered or certified by the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control within 90 days of
employment at the establishment. Employees who have completed
the course within the last twelve (12) months shall be exempt from
this requirement.

2. In all other non-residential districts, Food Service Establishments with
incidental beer and/or wine service for seated, onsite consumption may be
authorized by an Administrative Use Permit.

Section 2. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.28.130 is amended to read as
follows:

23E.28.130 Parking Requirements for Change of Use and Expansions of Buildings
in C, M, MM, MU and R-SMU Districts

A. No change of use shall be required to meet the off-street parking requirements of
either the district or this chapter unless 1) the structure has been expanded to include
new floor area or 2) in the M, MM, MU and R-SMU districts, the use is changed to one
with a higher numerical parking standard than the district minimum. When the new use
has the same or a lower numerical parking standard than the previous use, the new use
shall not be required to meet the off-street parking requirements of the district and this
chapter.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 3 of 104

21



Page 4 of 104

B. No new floor area shall be created through building expansions, unless it satisfies
the parking requirements of the district and this chapter. However, the Zoning Officer
may modify the parking requirements for new floor area for expansions of existing
buildings with an Administrative Use Permit, subject to the findings in

Section 23E.28.140 or 23E.28.145.

C. Inthe M, MM, MU and R-SMU districts, for a change of use of existing floor area
where the new use has a higher numerical parking standard than the existing use as
listed in the district provisions, the following applies:

1.  The new use must provide the incremental difference between the two
numerical parking standards, which must meet all other parking requirements.

2. A higher numerical parking standard may be reduced to the district minimum
and other parking requirements may be modified with an Administrative Use
Permit, subject to the findings in Section 23E.28.140 or 23E.28.145. If the new use
requires a Use Permit, the Zoning Adjustments Board shall approve, deny or
modify the request, subject to the findings in Section 23E.28.140 or 23E.28.145. If
the numerical parking reduction is approved, no additional off-street parking is
required.

Section 3. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.36.030.A is amended to read as
follows:

23E.36.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 4 of 104

22



Page 5 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

All Retail Sales Uses, except ZCc* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed (does not include

those listed below Video Rental Stores)

Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

including Liquor Stores and Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Wine Shops (unless in conjunction with a restaurant or general food product
store)

Department Stores ZC*

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops, including Auction UP(PH) Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Houses

Pet Stores, including Sales and UP(PH)

Grooming of Animals (but not

Boarding)

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Personal and Household Services

All Personal and Household ZCc* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed (does not

Services, except those listed include Massage)

below

Laundromats AUP

Veterinary Clinics, including Pet UP(PH)

Hospitals

Offices

Financial Services, Retail AUP

(Banks)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 5 of 104

23



Page 6 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Government, Institutions,

Utilities

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Insurance Agents, Title ZCc*

Companies, Real Estate

Agents, Travel Agents

Medical Practitioners, including ZC* Subject to parking requirements; see Table 23E.36.080
Holistic Health and Mental

Health Practitioners

Non-Chartered Financial UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Table 23E.36.080
Institutions

Other Professionals, and ZC*

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainme

nt, and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Section 23E.16.030
Alcoholic Beverage Service of ZC For on-site consumption only
beer and wine incidental to
seated food service
Alcoholic Beverage Service, UP(PH) Includes service of distilled spirits incidental to food service
including Bars, Cocktail
Lounges, and Taverns
Amusement Device Arcades UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Section 23E.16.050
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)

Under 5,000 s.f. ZC

Between 5,000--10,000 s.f. AUP

Over 10,000 s.f. UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 6 of 104

24



Page 7 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Over 1,500 s.f.

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts ZC*
and Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments, UP(PH)
including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments
Food Service Establishments that exclusively sell food for offsite
Under 1,500 s.f. 7C consumption are prohibited at any location on University Avenue

AUP between Oxford Street and Martin Luther King Jr. Way until a
Downtown Retail Plan is adopted by the City Council

Group Class Instruction for ZC*

Business, Vocational or Other

Purposes

Gyms and Health Clubs AUP
Under 7,500 s.f. ZC*

Hotels, Tourist, including Inns,
Bed and Breakfasts and

Hostels

UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.36.080

Motels, Tourist

UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.36.080

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 7 of 104

25



Page 8 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Theaters, including Motion
Pictures and Stage

Performance

UP(PH)

Automobile and Other Vehicle

Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts. Prohibited within the University
Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Automobile Repair and Service, AUP Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

including Parts Service

Automobile Sales and Rentals AUP Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Automobile Washes, UP(PH) Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel UP(PH)

Stations

Motorcycle Stores, including UP(PH) Prohibited within University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Sales and/or Service

Recreational Vehicle and AUP Prohibited within University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Trailers Sales and Rental,

including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores UP(PH) Prohibited within University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Automatic Teller Machines

AUP

Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 8 of 104

26



Page 9 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

District

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Drive-in Uses UP(PH) Providing service to customers in their cars. See definition in Sub-
title F. Prohibited within University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay
Activities or Storage outside of
a building
Not abutting R-District AUP
When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Parking Lots
Five or fewer Off-street ZC
Parking Spaces
More than five Off-street UP(PH)
Parking Spaces
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating
When seating not abutting R- ZC
District
When seating abutting R- AUP

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units

Not requiring a UP under

Chapter 23E.20

Requiring a UP under

Chapter 23E.20

ZC

UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 9 of 104 27



Page 10 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to Sections 23E.36.070.D and 23E.36.080.E. Within the
(Residential/Commercial) University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay areas, the following
uses are not allowed on the ground floor of a Mixed Use building
unless a Use Permit is issued pursuant to Sections 23E.36.090.A
and B: residential units and uses (other than parking) which serve
the residential uses, e.g., leasing and management of the building
Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use
Amusement Devices (up to AUP
three)
Food or Beverage for ZC
Immediate Consumption
Live Entertainment
Unamplified ZC
Amplified AUP
Manufacturing Uses AUP
Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP
gross floor area)
Wholesale Activities AUP

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

does not comply with

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC

compliance with

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit that AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 10 of 104

28



Page 11 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

requirements under

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030

District
Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050, and 23D.08.060
Structures with Urban
Agriculture
Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.36.070.E.
Standards Residential-only projects are prohibited within the University

Avenue Node Overlay areas, and permitted within University
Avenue Overlay Mixed Use areas

Group Living Accommodations UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.36.070.E
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.36.080
Hotels, Residential, including UP(PH)
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.36.080
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.36.080
Parks and Playgrounds ZC

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 11 of 104

29



Page 12 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Plants

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Changes of use from an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer people ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)
Miscellaneous Uses
Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) When not a part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or UP(PH)
Residential
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional
Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject
property area, and located within the main building
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)
Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry UP(PH)

Emergency Shelter

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

See Chapter 23C.10.

Page 12 of 104

30



Page 13 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing AUP
(including Cannabis Testing)
Mortuaries UP(PH)
Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)
Radio, Television, or UP(PH)
Audio/Sound Recording and/or
Broadcast Studios
Warehouses or Storage UP(PH) Prohibited within the University Avenue Strategic Plan Overlay
including Mini-storage
Warehouses
Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities
Microcell Facilities, AUP Subject to the requirements of Section 23C.17.100
Modifications to Existing
Sites, and Additions to
Existing Sites When the Site
Is Not Adjacent to a
Residential District
All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

Facilities

Urban Agriculture

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

23C.26

Page 13 of 104 31



Page 14 of 104

Table 23E.36.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Low-Impact Urban

Agriculture (LIUA)

High-lmpact Urban
Agriculture (HIUA)

ZC

AUP

Legend:

ZC - Zoning Certificate

AUP — Administrative Use
Permit

UP(PH) — Use Permit, public
hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

*Change of Use of floor area over 3,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

Section 4. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.36.080.B is amended to read as

follows:

23E.36.080 Parking -- Number of Spaces

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two

spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.36.080 shall

meet the requirements listed or the district minimum, whichever is more restrictive, for

newly constructed floor area.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 14 of 104

32



Page 15 of 104

Table 23E.36.080

Parking Required

Use Number of spaces

Hospitals One per each four beds plus one per each three employees

Hotels One per each three guest/sleeping rooms or suites plus one per each three
employees

Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly accessible

Medical Practitioner Offices

One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area

Motels

One per each guest/sleeping room plus one space for owner or manager*®

Residential Uses, Nursing

Homes

Refer to R-3 Standards, Section 23D.36.080

*Required parking shall be on same lot as building it serves.

Section 5. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.40.030 is amended to read as

follows:

23E.40.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification |Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 15 of 104

33



Page 16 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Services, except those listed

below

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)

All Retail Sales Uses, except ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed. (Does not

those listed below include Video Rental Stores)

Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

including liquor stores and wine

shops

Department Stores AUP

Over 3,000 s.f. Prohibited

Drugstores ZC* A new or expanded Drugstore is prohibited if it is over 5000
square feet in Gross Floor Area, and within 1000 feet of any
property containing an existing Drugstore, as measured by a
straight line from the nearest point of the property line of the
parcel on which the Drugstore is proposed to the nearest point of
the property line of the parcel on which the nearest Drugstore is
located.

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops, including Auction Prohibited

Houses

Pet Stores, including Sales and UP(PH)

Grooming of Animals (but not

Boarding)

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Personal and Household Services

All Personal and Household ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed (does not

include Massage)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 16 of 104

34



Page 17 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Government, Institutions,

Utilities

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)

Laundromats UP(PH)

Veterinary Clinics, including Pet UP(PH)

Hospitals

Offices

Financial Services, Retail UP(PH)

(Banks)

Insurance Agents, Title ZC* When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

Companies, Real Estate storefront windows required to include a window display or to be

Agents, Travel Agents transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet
into the storefront area

Non-Chartered Financial Prohibited

Institutions

Medical Practitioners including AUP Subject to additional parking requirements under

Holistic Health and Mental Section 23E.40.080.B

Health Practitioners

Other Professionals and AUP When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

storefront windows required to include a window display or to be
transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet

into the storefront area

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainme

nt and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

Prohibited

Alcoholic Beverage Service of

beer and wine incidental to

seated food service

ZC

For on-site consumption only

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 17 of 104

35



Page 18 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use

and Required Permits

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)
Alcoholic Beverage Service, UP(PH) Includes service of distilled spirits incidental to food service
including Bars, Cocktail
Lounges and Taverns
Amusement Device Arcades Prohibited
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Under 3,000 s.f AUP
Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts ZC*
and Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments UP(PH) Includes Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments
Under 1,000 s.f. ZC Food Service Establishments requiring an AUP must provide
Over 1,000 s.f. AUP public notification of decision (NOD) within a 300-foot radius of the

subject property.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 18 of 104

36



Page 19 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)

Group Class Instruction for AUP

Business, Vocational or Other

Purposes

Gyms and Health Clubs ZC*

Hotels, Tourist UP(PH) Includes Inns, Bed and Breakfasts and Hostels
Motels, Tourist Prohibited

Theaters UP(PH) Includes Motion Pictures and Stage Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts
Automobile Repair and Service Prohibited [Includes Parts Service
Automobile Sales and Rentals Prohibited

Automobile Washes, Prohibited

Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel UP(PH)

Stations

Motorcycle Stores Prohibited |Includes Sales and/or Service
Recreational Vehicle and Prohibited [Includes Boats

Trailers Sales and Rental

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 19 of 104

37



Page 20 of 104

Table 23E.40.030
Use and Required Permits

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)
Activities or Storage Outside of
a building

Not abutting R-District AUP

When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service
Drive-in Uses Prohibited | Providing service to customers in their cars. See definition in Sub-

title F

Parking Lots UP(PH)
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating

When seating not abutting R- ZC

District

When seating abutting R- AUP

District
Combination Commercial/Residential Uses
Live/Work Units

Not requiring a UP under ZC

Chapter 23E.20

Requiring a UP under UP(PH)

Chapter 23E.20
Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.40.070.D
(Residential/Commercial)
Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 20 of 104



Page 21 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)
Amusement Devices (up to UP(PH)
three)
Food or Beverage for AUP
Immediate Consumption
Live Entertainment
Unamplified ZC
Amplified UP(PH)
Manufacturing Uses UP(PH)
Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP
gross floor area)
Wholesale Activities UP(PH)

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

Structures with Urban

Agricultures

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC
compliance with
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Dwelling Unit that AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070
does not comply with
requirements under
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030
District
Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050, and 23D.08.060

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 21 of 104

39



Page 22 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification |Special Requirements (if any)
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.40.070.E
Standards
Group Living Accommodations UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.40.070.E
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals Prohibited
Hotels, Residential, including UP(PH)
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.40.080.B
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.40.080.B
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Changes of use from an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer persons ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 22 of 104 40



Page 23 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Miscellaneous Uses

Broadcast Studios

Audio/Sound Recording and/or

Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) When not a part of a Retail Financial Service

Cafeteria, Employee or UP(PH)

Residential

Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited

Mausoleums

Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional
Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject
property area, and located within the main building

Circus or Carnival UP(PH)

Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Prohibited

Plants

Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited

Laboratories, Testing Prohibited

Mortuaries Prohibited

Public Utility Substations, UP(PH)

Tanks

Radio, Television or UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 23 of 104

41



Page 24 of 104

Table 23E.40.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Warehouses or Storage
including Mini-storage

Warehouses

Prohibited

Wireless Telecommunications

Facilities

Microcell Facilities,
Modifications to Existing
Sites, and Additions to
Existing Sites When the Site
Is Not Adjacent to a

Residential District

All Other Telecommunication

Facilities

AUP

UP(PH)

Subject to the requirements of Section 23C.17.100

Subject to the requirements of Section 23C.17.100

Urban Agriculture

23C.26

Low-Impact Urban

Agriculture (LIUA)

ZC

High-lmpact Urban
Agriculture (HIUA)

AUP

Legend:

ZC - Zoning Certificate
AUP — Administrative Use
Permit

UP(PH) — Use Permit, public

hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

*Change of Use of floor area over 2,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 24 of 104

42



Page 25 of 104

B. Any Use not listed that is compatible with the purposes of the C-N District shall
be permitted subject to securing an Administrative Use Permit. Any use that is
not compatible with the purposes of the C-N District shall be prohibited.

C. The initial establishment, or change, of use of floor area of an existing non-
residential building, or portion of building, shall be subject to the Permit
requirements as listed in the legend of Table 23E.40.030.

Section 6. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.40.080.B is amended to read as
follows:

23E.40.080 Parking -- Number of Spaces

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two
spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.40.080 shall
meet the requirements listed or the district minimum, whichever is more restrictive, for
newly constructed floor area.

Table 23E.40.080
Parking Required
Use Number of spaces
Hospitals One per each four beds plus one per each three
employees
Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly
accessible
Medical Practitioner Offices One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area
Residential Uses, Nursing Homes Refer to R-3 Standards, Section 23D.36.080

Section 7. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.44.030 is amended to read as
follows:

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 25 of 104




Page 26 of 104

23E.44.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

All Retail Sales Uses, except ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed (does not include
those listed below Video Rental Stores).

Alcoholic Beverage Retail UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

Sales, including liquor stores

and wine shops

Department Stores ZC*
Over 3,000 s.f. Prohibited

Drugstores ZC* A new or expanded Drugstore is prohibited if it is over 5000 square
feet in Gross Floor Area, and within 1000 feet of any property
containing an existing Drugstore, as measured by a straight line
from the nearest point of the property line of the parcel on which
the Drugstore is proposed to the nearest point of the property line
of the parcel on which the nearest Drugstore is located.

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops, including Auction Prohibited

Houses

Pet Stores, including Sales and UP(PH) Does not include boarding of animals

Grooming of Animals

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 26 of 104 44




Page 27 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Personal and Household Service

Government, Institutions,

Utilities

All Personal/Household ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed (does not

Services, except those listed include Massage).

below

Laundromats UP(PH)

Veterinary Clinics, including Pet UP(PH)

Hospitals

Video Tape/Disk Rental Stores AUP

Offices

Financial Services, Retall UP(PH)

(Banks)

Insurance Agents, Title ZC* When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

Companies, Real Estate storefront windows required to include a window display or to be

Agents, Travel Agents transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet
into the storefront area

Medical Practitioners Prohibited | Including Holistic Health and Mental Health Practitioners

Non-Chartered Financial Prohibited

Institutions

Other Professionals and AUP When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

storefront windows required to include a window display or to be
transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet

into the storefront area

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainment and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 27 of 104

45



Page 28 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Alcoholic Beverage Service UP(PH) Service of alcoholic beverages allowed only as incidental to food
service in Food Service Establishments

Alcoholic Beverage Service of For on-site consumption only
beer and wine incidental to ZC
seated food service
Amusement Device Arcades Prohibited
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)

Under 3,000 s.f. AUP

Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts AUP
and Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments, Prohibited
including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments

AUP Food Service Establishments must provide public notification of
decision (NOD) within a 300-foot radius of the subject property.

Group Class Instruction for AUP
Business, Vocational or Other
Purposes
Gyms and Health Clubs AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 28 of 104

46



Page 29 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Hotels, Tourist, including Inns, UP(PH)

Bed and Breakfasts and Hostels

Motels, Tourist Prohibited

Theaters UP(PH) Including Motion Pictures and Stage Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts
Automobile Repair and Service, Prohibited
including Parts Service

Automobile Sales and Rentals Prohibited
Automobile Washes, Prohibited
Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited
Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel Prohibited
Stations

Motorcycle Stores, including Prohibited
Sales and/or Service

Recreational Vehicle and Prohibited
Trailers Sales and Rental,

including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 29 of 104

47



Page 30 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use

and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Activities or Storage Outside of

a building
Not abutting R-District AUP
When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH)
(exterior and when part of a
Retail Financial Service)
Drive-in Uses Prohibited | Providing service to customers in their cars. See definition in Sub-
title F
Parking Lots UP(PH)
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating
When seating not abutting R- ZC
District
When seating abutting R- AUP
District
Combination Commercial/Residential Uses
Live/Work Units
Not requiring a UP under ZC
Chapter 23E.20
Requiring a UP under UP(PH)
Chapter 23E.20
Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.44.070.E

(Residential/Commercial)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 30 of 104

48



Page 31 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Amusement Devices (up to UP(PH)
three)
Food or Beverage for UP(PH) Treated as Food Service Establishment and subject to numerical
Immediate Consumption limitations in Table 23E.44.040. Incidental Food and Beverage for
Immediate Consumption off the premises is permitted as an
Accessory Use of a Food Product Store.
Live Entertainment
Unamplified ZC
Amplified Prohibited
Manufacturing Uses UP(PH)
Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP
gross floor area)
Wholesale Activities UP(PH)
Six or fewer persons ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

does not comply with

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC

compliance with

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit that AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 31 of 104

49



Page 32 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
requirements under
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030
District
Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050, and 23D.08.060
Structures with Urban
Agriculture
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.44.070.F
Standards
Group Living Accommodations, UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.44.070.F
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals Prohibited
Hotels, Residential, including UP(PH)
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements under Section 23E.44.080
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements under Section 23E.44.080
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 32 of 104

50



Page 33 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Changes of use from an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer persons ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)
Miscellaneous Uses
Automatic Teller Machines Prohibited |When not a part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or UP(PH)
Residential
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional
Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject
property area, and located within the main building
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)
Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Prohibited
Plants
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 33 of 104

51



Page 34 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing Prohibited
Mortuaries Prohibited

Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)

Radio, Television or UP(PH)
Audio/Sound Recording and/or

Broadcast Studios

Warehouses or Storage Prohibited
including Mini-storage

Warehouses

Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities
Microcell Facilities, AUP Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100
Modifications to Existing
Sites, and Additions to
Existing Sites When the Site
Is Not Adjacent to a

Residential District

All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

Facilities

Urban Agriculture 23C.26

Low-Impact Urban ZC
Agriculture (LIUA)

High-Impact Urban AUP

Agriculture (HIUA)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 34 of 104



Page 35 of 104

Table 23E.44.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Legend:
ZC - Zoning Certificate *Change of Use of floor area over 2,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

AUP — Administrative Use
Permit

UP(PH) — Use Permit, public
hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

B. Any Use not listed that is compatible with the purposes of the C-E District shall be
permitted subject to securing an Administrative Use Permit. Any Use that is not
compatible with the purposes of the C-E District shall be prohibited.

C. The initial establishment, or change, of use of floor area of an existing non-
residential building, or portion of building, shall be subject to the following permit
requirements as listed in the legend of Table 23E.44.030.

Section 8. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.44.040.A is amended to read as
follows:

23E.44.040 Special Provisions -- Numerical Limitations

A. Uses subject to numerical limitations as set forth in Table 23E.44.040 shall also be
subject to the requirements of Section 23E.44.030. No such limitation may be exceeded
unless the Board issues an Administrative Use Permit and makes the findings under
Section 23E.44.090.C.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 35 of 104 53



Page 36 of 104

Table 23E.44.040

Numerical Limitations

Use Number Limit |Size (sq. ft.)  [Type of Permit
Art/Craft Shops, Gift/Novelty Shops, Jewelry/Watch Shops No limit 1,500 Zoning Certificate
Bookstores, Periodical Stands No limit 2,000 Zoning Certificate
Food Service Establishments: 25
Photocopy Stores, Printing, Fax, Magnetic Disk Reproduction No limit 1,000 Zoning Certificate
Services

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 36 of 104 54




Page 37 of 104

Section 9. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.48.030 is amended to read as

follows:

23E.48.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Houses

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

All Retail Sales Uses, except ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed (does not include

those listed below Video Rental Stores).

Alcoholic Beverage Retail UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

Sales, including liquor stores

and wine shops

Department Stores ZC*

Over 3,000 s.f. Prohibited

Drugstores ZC* A new or expanded Drugstore is prohibited if it is over 5000
square feet in Gross Floor Area, and within 1000 feet of any
property containing an existing Drugstore, as measured by a
straight line from the nearest point of the property line of the parcel
on which the Drugstore is proposed to the nearest point of the
property line of the parcel on which the nearest Drugstore is
located.

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops, including Auction Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 37 of 104 55




Page 38 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Institutions

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Pet Stores, including Sales and UP(PH)

Grooming of Animals (but not

Boarding)

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Personal and Household Services

All Personal and Household ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed (does not

Services, except those listed include Massage)

below

Laundromats UP(PH)

Veterinary Clinics, including Pet UP(PH)

Hospitals

Offices

Financial Services, Retail UP(PH)

(Banks)

Insurance Agents, Title ZCc* When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,

Companies, Real Estate storefront windows required to include a window display or to be

Agents, Travel Agents transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet
into the storefront area

Medical Practitioners UP(PH) Including Holistic Health and Mental Health Practitioners. Subject
to parking requirements; see Table 23E.48.080

Non-Chartered Financial Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 38 of 104

56



Page 39 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Other Professionals and
Government, Institutions,

Utilities

AUP

When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,
storefront windows required to include a window display or to be
transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet

into the storefront area

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainment and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

Prohibited

Alcoholic Beverage Service of
beer and wine incidental to

seated food service

ZC

For on-site consumption only

Alcoholic Beverage Service (no
Bars, Cocktail Lounges, or

Taverns allowed)

UP(PH) Service of distilled alcoholic beverages may be approved only for

Full Service Restaurants

including Nightclubs

Amusement Device Arcades Prohibited

Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Under 3,000 s.f. AUP
Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)

Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts AUP

and Music Studios

Entertainment Establishments, UP(PH)

Food Service Establishments

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Food Service Establishments requiring an AUP must provide

public naotification of decision (NOD) within a 300-foot radius of the

subject property.

Page 39 of 104 57



Page 40 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Under 1,000 s.f. ZC

Over 1,000 s.f. AUP
Group Class Instruction for AUP When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,
Business, Vocational or Other storefront windows required to include a window display or to be
Purposes transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet

into the storefront area; not to exceed 2,500 sq. ft.

Gyms and Health Clubs AUP

Hotels, Tourist, including Inns, UP(PH)

Bed and Breakfasts and

Hostels
Motels, Tourist Prohibited
Theaters, including Motion Prohibited

Pictures and Stage

Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts

Automobile Repair and Service, Prohibited

including Parts Service

Automobile Sales and Rentals Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 40 of 104



Page 41 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Automobile Washes, Prohibited

Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel UP(PH)
Stations
Motorcycle Stores, including Prohibited

Sales and/or Service

Recreational Vehicle and Prohibited
Trailers Sales and Rental,

including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Activities or Storage Outside of
a building
Not abutting R-District AUP
When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines AUP Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service
Drive-in Uses UP(PH) Providing service to customers in their cars. See definition in Sub-
title F
Parking Lots UP(PH)
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 41 of 104




Page 42 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

When seating not abutting R-
District

When seating abutting R-
District

ZC

AUP

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units

gross floor area)

Not requiring a UP under ZC
Chapter 23E.20
Requiring a UP under UP(PH)
Chapter 23E.20
Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Sections 23E.48.070.E
(Residential/Commercial) and 23E.48.080.D
Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use
Amusement Devices (up to UP(PH)
three)
Food or Beverage for UP(PH)
Immediate Consumption
Live Entertainment
Unamplified ZC
Amplified UP(PH)
Manufacturing Uses Prohibited
Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 42 of 104

60



Page 43 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Wholesale Activities Prohibited

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC
compliance with

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit that AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070
does not comply with
requirements under

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030

District
Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050, and 23D.08.060
Structures with Urban
Agriculture
Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges Prohibited
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.48.070.F
Standards

Group Living Accommodations, UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.48.070.F
subject to R-3 Standards

Hospitals Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 43 of 104



Page 44 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Hotels, Residential, including UP(PH)
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.48.080
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.48.080
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Change of use from an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer persons ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)
Miscellaneous Uses
Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) When not a part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or UP(PH)
Residential
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional

Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject

property area, and located within the main building

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 44 of 104

62



Page 45 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Modifications to Existing

Sites, and Additions to

Existing Sites When the Site

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)
Commercial Excavations UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry UP(PH)
Plants
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing Prohibited
Mortuaries Prohibited
Radio, Television, or UP(PH)
Audio/Sound Recording and/or
Broadcast Studios
Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)
Warehouses or Storage Prohibited
including Mini-storage
Warehouses
Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities
Microcell Facilities, AUP Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 45 of 104

63



Page 46 of 104

Table 23E.48.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Is Not Adjacent to a

Residential District

All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

Facilities

Urban Agriculture 23C.26

Low-Impact Urban ZC
Agriculture (LIUA)

High-lmpact Urban AUP

Agriculture (HIUA)

Legend:

ZC - Zoning Certificate * Change of Use of floor area over 2,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

AUP — Administrative Use
Permit
UP(PH) — Use Permit, public

hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

B. Any use not listed that is compatible with the purposes of the C-NS District shall be
permitted subject to securing an Administrative Use Permit. Any Use that is not
compatible with the purposes of the C-NS District shall be prohibited.

C . The initial establishment or change of use of floor area of an existing non-residential
building, or portion of building, shall be subject to the Permit requirements as listed in
the legend of Table 23E.48.030.

Section 10. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.48.080.B is amended to read
as follows:

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 46 of 104



Page 47 of 104

23E.48.080 Parking -- Number of Spaces

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two
spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.48.080 shall

meet the requirements listed or the district minimum, whichever is more restrictive, for
newly constructed floor area.

Table 23E.48.080

Parking Required

Use Number of spaces

Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly

accessible

Medical Practitioner Offices One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area

Residential Uses, Nursing Homes Refer to R-3 Standards, Section 23D.36.080

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 47 of 104

65



Page 48 of 104

Section 11. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.52.030 is amended to read as

follows:

23E.52.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

All Retail Sales Uses, except those ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed (does not

listed below include Video Rental Stores)

Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales, UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

including liquor stores and wine shops No sales of distilled alcoholic beverages are allowed along
Adeline Street south of Ashby Avenue

Department Stores ZC*

Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops Prohibited | Including Auction Houses

Pet Stores UP(PH) Including Sales and Grooming of Animals (but not
Boarding)

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Personal and Household Services

All Personal and Household Services, ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed

except those listed below (does not include Massage)

Laundromats AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 48 of 104

66



Page 49 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Institutions, Utilities

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)

Veterinary Clinics UP(PH) Including Pet Hospitals

Offices

Financial Services, Retail (Banks) ZC*

Insurance Agents, Title Companies, ZC*

Real Estate Agents, Travel Agents

Medical Practitioners, including Holistic ZC* Subject to parking requirements; see Table 23E.52.080

Health and Mental Health Practitioners

Non-Chartered Financial Institutions UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see
Section 23E.16.080

Other Professionals and Government, ZC*

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Ent

ertainment, and

Assembly Uses

Bars, Cocktail Lounges and Taverns

Adult-oriented Businesses Prohibited

Alcoholic Beverage Service of beer ZC For on-site consumption only

and wine incidental to seated food

service

Alcoholic Beverage Service, including UP(PH) Includes service of distilled spirits incidental to food

service.
No service of distilled alcoholic beverages is allowed along
Adeline Street south of Ashby Avenue, except as incidental

to seated food service; see Section 23D.52.060 D1.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 49 of 104

67



Page 50 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)
Amusement Device Arcades UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see
Section 23E.16.050
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Under 3,000 s.f. AUP
Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts and ZC*
Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments UP(PH) Including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments
Food Service Establishments requiring an AUP must
provide public notification of decision (NOD) within a 300-
foot radius of the subject property.
Under 1,000 s.f. ZC
Over 1,000 s.f. AUP
Group Class Instruction for Business, ZC*
Vocational or Other Purposes
Gyms and Health Clubs ZC*
Hotels, Tourist UP(PH) Including Inns, Bed and Breakfasts and Hostels
Motels, Tourist Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 50 of 104

68



Page 51 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)

Theaters UP(PH) Including Motion Pictures and Stage Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts

Automobile and Motorcycle Repair and | Prohibited

Service, including Parts Service

Automobile and Motorcycle Sales Subject to additional requirements, see 23E.52.070.F.
Exclusively indoor operations 70 Uses with outdoor activities limited to the Dealership

Overlay Area by Section 23E.52.060.E.

With outdoor activities UP(PH)

Automobile and Motorcycle Rentals Prohibited

Automobile Washes, Mechanical or Prohibited

Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Establishments Prohibited

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel Stations UP(PH)

Recreational Vehicle and Trailers Prohibited | Including Boats

Sales and Rental

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Activities or Storage Outside of a

building
Not abutting R-District AUP
When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines AUP Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 51 of 104

69



Page 52 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)

Drive-in Uses UP(PH) Which provide service to customers in their cars; see

definition in Sub-title 23F

Parking Lots, Parking Structures UP(PH)

Recycling Redemption Centers AUP

Outdoor Cafe Seating
When seating not abutting R-District ZC

When seating abutting R-District AUP

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units UP(PH) Subject to the standards of Chapter 23E.20

Mixed Use Developments

(Residential/Commercial) of less ZC Subject to the standards of Section 23E.52.070.D.1
than 5,000 sq. ft. through 6

(Residential/Commercial) of 5,000 UP(PH) Subject to the standards of Section 23E.52.070.D.7
$Q. or more

Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Amusement Devices (up to three) UP(PH)
Food or Beverage for Immediate ZC
Consumption

Live Entertainment

Unamplified ZC
Amplified AUP
Manufacturing Uses AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 52 of 104



Page 53 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)
Storage of Goods (over 25% of gross AUP
floor area)
Wholesale Activities AUP
Uses Permitted in Residential Districts
Accessory Dwelling Unit in compliance ZC
with Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Dwelling Unit that does not AUP Subject to making applicable findings in
comply with requirements under Section 23C.24.070
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030
District
Accessory Buildings and Structures ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050,
with Urban Agriculture and 23D.08.060
Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.52.070.E
Standards
Group Living Accommodations subject UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.52.070.E
to R-3 Standards
Hospitals Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 53 of 104

71



Page 54 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)
Hotels, Residential, including Single UP(PH)
Room Occupancy (SRO) Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.52.080
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.52.080
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency Services UP(PH)
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Change of use from an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer people ZC
Seven or more people AUP
New construction UP(PH)
Miscellaneous Uses
Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) When not a part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or Residential UP(PH)
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and
Institutional Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of
the subject property area, and located within the main
building
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 54 of 104

72



Page 55 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Facilities

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)
Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building
materials including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural
gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Plants Prohibited
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing Prohibited
Mortuaries Prohibited
Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)
Radio, Television or Audio/Sound UP(PH)
Recording and/or Broadcast Studios
Warehouses or Storage, including Prohibited
Mini-storage Warehouses
Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities
Microcell Facilities, Modifications to AUP Subject to the requirements and findings of
Existing Sites, and Additions to Section 23C.17.100
Existing Sites When the Site Is Not
Adjacent to a Residential District
All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of

Section 23C.17.100

Urban Agriculture

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

23C.26

Page 55 of 104

73



Page 56 of 104

Table 23E.52.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification [Special Requirements (if any)

Low-Impact Urban Agriculture ZC
(LIUA)

High-Impact Urban Agriculture AUP

(HIUA)

Legend:

ZC - Zoning Certificate *Change of Use of floor area over 3,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

AUP — Administrative Use Permit
UP(PH) — Use Permit, public hearing

required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

B. Any use not listed that is compatible with the purposes of the C-SA District shall be
permitted subject to securing an Administrative Use Permit. Any use that is not
compatible with the purposes of the C-SA District shall be prohibited.

C. The initial establishment or change of use of floor area of an existing non-residential
building, or portion of building, shall be subject to the permit requirements as listed in
the legend of Table 23E.52.030.

Section 12. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.52.060.D is amended to read
as follows:

23E.52.060 Use Limitations*

D. Adult-oriented Businesses are prohibited. Alcoholic Beverage Sales or Service
Uses, Amusement Arcades, Live/Work Uses, and Non-Chartered Financial Institutions
shall be subject to the requirements of Chapters 23E.16 and 23E.20 and the following
requirement:

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 56 of 104

74



Page 57 of 104

1. The sale and service of distilled alcoholic beverages (hard liquor) is prohibited
along Adeline Street, south of Ashby Avenue, except that such service may be
allowed subject to obtaining a Use Permit for seated food service and onsite
consumption when such service is incidental to meals.

Section 13. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.52.080.B is amended to read
as follows:

23E.52.080 Parking -- Number of Spaces

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two
spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.52.080 shall
meet the requirements listed or the district minimum, whichever is more restrictive, for
newly constructed floor area.

Table 23E.52.080
Parking Required
Use Number of spaces
Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly
accessible
Medical Practitioner Offices One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area
Residential Uses, Nursing Homes Refer to R-4 Standards, Section 23D.40.080
Automobile and Motorcycle Sales One per 1,000 sq. ft. of floor area

Section 14. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.56.030.A is amended to read
as follows:

23E.56.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 57 of 104

75



Page

58 of 104

Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)), or is Prohibited.
See also Section 23E.56.070.C for restrictions on usage of upper floors.

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Retail Sales
All Retail Sales Uses, except those ZC As defined in Sub-title 23F, except otherwise listed (does not
listed below include Video Rental Stores)
Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales Prohibited |Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants
including liquor stores and wine
shops
Department Stores ZC

Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Drug Paraphernalia (any use Prohibited |As defined in California Health and Safety Code
involving the sale or distribution Section 11364.5(d)
thereof)
Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use
Pawn Shops Prohibited | Including Auction Houses
Pet Stores UP(PH) Including Sales and Grooming of Animals (but not Boarding)
Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park
Personal and Household Services
All Personal and Household ZC As defined in Sub-title 23F, except those otherwise listed
Services, except those listed below (does not include Massage).
Laundromats AUP*
Veterinary Clinics UP(PH) Including Pet Hospitals

Offices

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 58 of 104

76



Page

59 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Government, Institutions, Utilities

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Financial Services, Retail (Banks) AUP*

Insurance Agents, Title Companies, ZC Subject to restrictions above the ground floor except on

Real Estate Agents, Travel Agents Bancroft Way; see Section 23E.56.070.

When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,
storefront windows required to include a window display or to
be transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of
10 feet into the storefront area.

Medical Practitioners, including AUP* Subject to restrictions above the ground floor except on

Holistic Health and Mental Health Bancroft Way; see Section 23E.56.070.C.

Practitioners When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,
storefront windows required to include a window display or to
be transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of
10 feet into the storefront area.

Non-Chartered Financial Institutions UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Section 23E.16.080

Other Professionals and AUP* Subject to restrictions above the ground floor except on

Bancroft Way; see Section 23E.56.070.C.

When located on the ground floor adjacent to street frontage,
storefront windows required to include a window display or to
be transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of

10 feet into the storefront area.

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainment and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

Prohibited

Alcoholic Beverage Service of beer

and wine incidental to seated food

service

ZC

For on-site consumption only

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 59 of 104

77



Page 60 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Alcoholic Beverage Service, UP(PH) For on-site consumption only.
including Bars, Cocktail Lounges Service of distilled alcoholic beverages may be approved for
and Taverns seated food service.
Amusement Device Arcades Prohibited
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Under 5,000 s.f. ZC
Between 5,000--10,000 s.f. AUP*
Over 10,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts and ZC
Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments UP(PH) Including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments
Under 1,500 s.f. ZC
Over 1,500 s.f. AUP*
Group Class Instruction for ZC Prohibited on ground floor adjacent to street frontage
Business, Vocational or Other
Purposes
Gyms and Health Clubs ZC
Hotels, Tourist, including Inns, Bed UP(PH)
and Breakfasts and Hostels
Motels, Tourist Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 60 of 104

78



Page

61 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Theaters, including Motion Pictures UP(PH)

and Stage Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC Excluding service of auto parts
Automobile Repair and Service Prohibited

Automobile Sales and Rentals Prohibited

Automobile Washes, Mechanical or Prohibited

Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Automobile/Motorcycle Parts UP(PH)

Service

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel Stations Prohibited | Except when located in a parking structure
Motorcycle Stores Prohibited |Including Sales and/or Service
Recreational Vehicle and Trailers Prohibited

Sales and Rental, including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Activities or Storage Outside of a

building
Not abutting R- District AUP*
When abutting R- District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines AUP* Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 61 of 104

79



Page

62 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Drive-in Uses Prohibited | Which provide service to customers in their cars. See definition
in Sub-title 23F

Parking Lots Prohibited

Parking Structures UP(PH)

Recycling Redemption Centers AUP*

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units

Not requiring a UP under ZC
Chapter 23E.20
Requiring a UP under UP(PH)
Chapter 23E.20
Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to Section 23E.56.070.E
(Residential/Commercial)
Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use
Amusement Devices (up to 3) AUP*
Food or Beverage for Immediate AUP*
Consumption
Live Entertainment AUP*
Unamplified ZC
Manufacturing Uses AUP*
Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP*
gross floor area)
Wholesale Activities AUP*

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 62 of 104

80



Page

63 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC
compliance with
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Dwelling Unit that does AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070
not comply with requirements under
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030
District
Accessory Buildings and Structures ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050,
with Urban Agriculture and 23D.08.060
Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.56.070.E
Standards
Group Living Accommodations UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.56.070.E
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals Prohibited
Hotels, Residential, including Single UP(PH)
Room Occupancy (SRO) Hotels
Libraries UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 63 of 104

81



Page

64 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Nursing Homes UP(PH)

Parks and Playgrounds ZC

Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)

Services

Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)

Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)

Senior Congregate Housing Change of use from an existing dwelling unit

Six or fewer people ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)

Miscellaneous Uses

Automatic Teller Machines UP(PH) When not a part of a Retail Financial Service

Cafeteria, Employee or Residential UP(PH)

Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited

Mausoleums

Circus or Carnival UP(PH)

Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional
Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject
property area, and located within the main building

Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas

Dry Cleaning and Laundry Plants Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 64 of 104

82



Page

65 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Emergency Shelter

See Chapter 23C.10.

Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories Prohibited | Except photographic processing laboratories
Mortuaries Prohibited
Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)
Radio, Television or Audio/Sound UP(PH)
Recording and/or Broadcast
Studios
Warehouses or Storage, including Prohibited
Mini-storage Warehouses
Wireless Telecommunications
Facilities
Microcell Facilities, Modifications AUP Subject to the requirements and findings of
to Existing Sites, and Additions Section 23C.17.100
to Existing Sites When the Site Is
Not Adjacent to a Residential
District
All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of
Facilities Section 23C.17.100
Urban Agriculture 23C.26
Low-Impact Urban Agriculture ZC

(LIUA)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 65 of 104

83



Page 66 of 104

Table 23E.56.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
High-Impact Urban Agriculture AUP
(HIUA)
Legend:
ZC - Zoning Certificate * For the purposes of the C-T zoning district, uses established by AUP require

AUP — Administrative Use Permit * | public notification of a decision within a 300-foot radius of the subject
UP(PH) — Use Permit, public property.

hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

Section 15. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.56.060.C is amended to read
as follows:

23E.56.060 Use Limitations*

C. On-premises service and consumption of distilled alcoholic beverages shall be
permitted with seated food service only.

Section 16. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.60.030 is amended to read as
follows:

23E.60.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the permits required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use
Permit (AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Retail Sales

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 66 of 104



Page 67 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Services, except those listed

below

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

All Retail Sales Uses, except ZCc* As defined in Sub-title F, except otherwise listed (does not include

those listed below Video Rental Stores)

Alcoholic Beverage Retalil UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

Sales, including liquor stores

and wine shops

Department Stores ZC*

Over 3,000 s.f. Prohibited

Drugstores ZC* A new or expanded Drugstore is prohibited if it is over 5000
square feet in Gross Floor Area, and within 1000 feet of any
property containing an existing Drugstore, as measured by a
straight line from the nearest point of the property line of the
parcel on which the Drugstore is proposed to the nearest point of
the property line of the parcel on which the nearest Drugstore is
located.

Firearm/Munitions Businesses UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use

Pawn Shops Prohibited

Pet Stores including Sales and UP(PH)

Grooming of Animals (but not

Boarding)

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public park

Personal and Household Service

All Personal and Household ZC* As defined in Sub-title F, except those otherwise listed (does not

include Massage)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 67 of 104

85



Page 68 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Government, Institutions,

Utilities

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Laundromats UP(PH)

Veterinary Clinics UP(PH) Including Pet Hospitals

Offices

Financial Services, Retail UP(PH)

(Banks)

Insurance Agents, Title ZC* When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

Companies, Real Estate storefront windows required to include a window display or to be

Agents, Travel Agents transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet
into the storefront area

Medical Practitioners, including UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.60.080

Holistic Health & Mental Health

Practitioners

Non-Chartered Financial Prohibited

Institutions

Other Professionals, and AUP When located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage,

storefront windows required to include a window display or to be
transparent and provide pedestrian viewing a minimum of 10 feet

into the storefront area

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainme

nt, and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

Prohibited

Alcoholic Beverage Service of

beer and wine incidental to

seated food service

ZC

For on-site consumption only

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 68 of 104

86



Page 69 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Alcoholic Beverage Service (no UP(PH) Service of distilled alcoholic beverages may be approved for Food
Bars, Cocktail Lounges, & Service Establishments providing seated food service; see
Taverns) Section 23E.60.060 D1
Amusement Device Arcades Prohibited
Commercial Recreation Center Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Under 3,000 s.f. AUP
Over 3,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts AUP
and Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments UP(PH) Including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments
Food Service Establishments requiring an AUP must provide
public notification of decision (NOD) within a 300-foot radius of the
subject property.
Under 1,000 s.f. ZC
Over 1,000 s.f AUP
Group Class Instruction for AUP
Business, Vocational or Other
Purposes
Gyms and Health Clubs AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 69 of 104 87



Page 70 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

Hotels, Tourist UP(PH) Including Inns, Bed and Breakfasts and Hostels, subject to parking
requirements; see Section 23E.60.080

Motels, Tourist Prohibited

Theaters Prohibited | Including Motion Pictures and Stage Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

Automobile Parts Stores ZC* Excluding service of auto parts

Automobile Repair and Service, Prohibited

including Parts Service

Automobile Sales and Rentals Prohibited

Automobile Washes, Prohibited

Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel UP(PH)

Stations

Motorcycle Stores (sales or Prohibited

service)

Recreational Vehicle and Prohibited

Trailers Sales and Rental,

including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 70 of 104

88



Page 71 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Activities or Storage Outside of

District

a building
Not abutting R-District AUP
When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Automatic Teller Machines AUP Limited to 2 machines and only when off-street parking is provided
(exterior and when part of a
Retail Financial Service)
Drive-in Uses UP(PH) Which provide service to customers in their cars. See definition in
Sub-title 23F
Parking Lots
5 or fewer Off-street Parking AUP
Spaces
More than 5 Off-street UP(PH)
Parking Spaces
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating
When seating not abutting R- ZC
District
When seating abutting R- AUP

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units

Not requiring a UP under

Chapter 23E.20

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

ZC

Page 71 of 104

89



Page 72 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Requiring a UP under UP(PH)
Chapter 23E.20

Mixed Use Developments UP(PH) Subject to Section 23E.60.070.E

(Residential/Commercial)

Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Amusement Devices (up to UP(PH)

three)

Food or Beverage for UP(PH)

Immediate Consumption

Live Entertainment Also subject to the limitations under Section 23E.60.060.D.2
Unamplified ZC
Amplified AUP

Manufacturing Uses AUP

Storage of Goods (over 25% of AUP

gross floor area)

Wholesale Activities AUP

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

does not comply with

requirements under

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC

compliance with

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit that AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 72 of 104

90



Page 73 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)
Accessory Uses and Structures Per R-3 See Table 23D.36.030
District
Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050, and 23D.08.060
Structures with Urban
Agriculture
Child Care Centers UP(PH)
Clubs, Lodges Prohibited
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, subject to R-3 UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.60.070.F
Standards
Group Living Accommodations, UP(PH) Standards may be modified under Section 23E.60.070.F
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals Prohibited
Hotels, Residential, including UP(PH)
Single Room Occupancy (SRO)
Hotels
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.60.080
Nursing Homes UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see Section 23E.60.080
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 73 of 104

91



Page 74 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Senior Congregate Housing

Change of use from an existing dwelling unit

Six or fewer persons ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)
Miscellaneous Uses
Automatic Teller Machines Prohibited | When not a part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or UP(PH)
Residential
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and Institutional
Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of the subject
property area, and located within the main building
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)
Commercial Excavation UP(PH) Including earth, gravel, minerals, or other building materials
including drilling for, or removal of, oil or natural gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Prohibited
Plants
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing Prohibited | Except medical office laboratories

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 74 of 104

92



Page 75 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements (if any)

Mortuaries

Prohibited

Public Utility Substations, Tanks

UP(PH)

Radio, Television or
Audio/Sound Recording and/or

Broadcast Studios

UP(PH)

Wireless Telecommunications

Facilities

Microcell Facilities,
Modifications to Existing
Sites, and Additions to
Existing Sites When the Site
Is Not Adjacent to a

Residential District

AUP

Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

All Other Telecommunication

Facilities

UP(PH)

Subject to the requirements and findings of Section 23C.17.100

Urban Agriculture

23C.26

Low-Impact Urban

Agriculture (LIUA)

High-lmpact Urban
Agriculture (HIUA)

ZC

AUP

Legend:

ZC — Zoning Certificate
AUP — Administrative Use

Permit

UP(PH) — Use Permit, public

*Change of Use of floor area over 2,000 sq. ft. shall require an AUP.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 75 of 104

93



Page 76 of 104

Table 23E.60.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification[Special Requirements (if any)

hearing required

Prohibited — Use not permitted

B. Any use not listed that is compatible with the purposes of the C-SO District shall be
permitted subject to securing an Administrative Use Permit. Any use that is not
compatible with the purposes of the C-SO District shall be prohibited.

C. The initial establishment or change of use of floor area of an existing non-
residential building, or portion of building, shall be subject to the permit requirements as
listed in the legend of Table 23E.60.030.

Section 17. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.60.060.D is amended to read
as follows:

23E.60.060 Use Limitations*

D. Adult-oriented Businesses are not permitted, as the entire District is within the
location limitations of Section 23E.16.030. Amusement Arcades and Non-Chartered
Financial Institutions are not permitted in this District. Live/Work Uses shall be subject to
the requirements of Chapter 23E.20, in addition to the requirements of this District.
Alcoholic Beverage Service uses, except as provided for below, are not permitted:

1. No on-premises service and consumption of distilled alcoholic beverages shall
be allowed except with seated food service and subject to obtaining a Use Permit.

2. Food Service Establishments shall have no live entertainment other than
unamplified music, poetry reading, comedy or other quiet activities.

Section 18. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.60.080.B is amended to read
as follows:

23E.60.080 Parking -- Number of Spaces

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two
spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.60.080 shall

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 76 of 104 94



Page 77 of 104

meet the requirements listed or the district minimum, whichever is more restrictive, for
newly constructed floor area.

Table 23E.60.080

Parking Required

Use Number of spaces

Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly
accessible

Medical Practitioner Offices One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area

Residential Uses, Nursing Homes Refer to R-3 Standards, Section 23D.36.080

Section 19. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.64.030.A is amended to read
as follows:

23E.64.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table sets forth the Permit required for each listed item. Each use or
structure shall be subject to a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use Permit
(AUP), a Use Permit approved after a public hearing (UP(PH)) or is prohibited.

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,[Special Requirements
Use

Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Retail Sales

Retail uses as defined in Sub-title 23F, except otherwise listed.

Under 3,500- | 7,500 or
3,500 7,500 more

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 77 of 104

95



Page 78 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements

Use
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)
All Retail Sales Uses, ZC AUP UP(PH)* | *Except when part of a combination
except those specified commercial/residential use; see Mixed Use
below Development heading
Alcoholic Beverage Retalil UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

Sales, including liquor

stores and wine shops

Firearm/Munitions UP(PH) Prohibited on any property devoted to residential use
Businesses
Pawn Shops, including UP(PH)

Auction Houses

Smoke Shops UP(PH) Prohibited if within 1,400 feet of a school or public
park

Personal and Household Services

Under 3,000- | 5,000 or
3,000 5,000 more

All Personal/Household ZC AUP UP(PH) [As defined in Sub-title 23F, unless otherwise
Services, except as specified

specified below

Laundromats and Cleaners AUP UP(PH) [Dry Cleaning plants prohibited
Veterinary Clinics UP(PH)
Office Uses

Office uses other than banks prohibited on ground floors in designated nodes.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 78 of 104 96



Page 79 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements

Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

including Holistic Health
and Mental Health

Practitioners

Under 3,000- | 5,000 or
3,000 5,000 more
All Office Uses, except ZC AUP UP(PH)
those specified below
Business Support Services ZC AUP UP(PH) [See definition in Sub-title F for permitted uses
Financial Services, Retail AUP
(Banks)
Medical Practitioners, ZC AUP UP(PH) [Subject to parking requirements under

Section 23E.64.080.F

Non-Chartered Financial

Institutions

UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see

Section 23E.16.080

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainment, and Assembly Uses

Adult-oriented Businesses

UP(PH) Prohibited on lots with frontage on San Pablo Ave.
Other locations subject to distance requirements of

Section 23E.16.030

Alcoholic Beverage Service ZC For on-site consumption only

of beer and wine incidental

to seated food service

Alcoholic Beverage Service UP(PH) Including Bars, Cocktail Lounges and Taverns. Also

includes service of distilled spirits incidental to food

service

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 79 of 104

97



Page 80 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Permits Required to Establish,
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)

Special Requirements

(if any)

Amusement Device UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see
Arcades Section 23E.16.050
Outdoor use requires UP(PH)
Commercial Recreation
Center
Under 5,000 s.f. ZC
Between 5,000-- AUP
10,000 s.f.
Over 10,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial ZC UP(PH) if 7,500 or more sq. ft.
Arts and Music Studios
Entertainment UP(PH) Includes Nightclubs
Establishments
Food Service
Establishments
Food service drive-through prohibited on San Pablo.
Under 1,500 s.f. 7c See Section 23E.64.040.C and E. Also see
Over 1,500 s.f. AUP Section 23E.64.090.H for special findings.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 80 of 104

98



Page 81 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements
Use

Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Group Class Instruction for ZC
Business, Vocational, or

Other Purposes

Gyms and Health Clubs ZC UP(PH) if 7,500 or more sq. ft.
Hotels, Tourist, including UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see
Inns, Bed and Breakfasts, Section 23E.64.080.F

and Hostels

Motels, Tourist UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see

Section 23E.64.080.F

Theaters, including Motion UP(PH)
Pictures and Stage

Performance

Automobile and Other Vehicle Oriented Uses

On lots with frontage on San Pablo Avenue, changes of use from uses other than Automobile and Other Vehicle

Oriented Uses prohibited, as provided in Section 23E.64.060.E. Auto parts sales is a retail use.

Less than | Either 5,000 or more
5,000 sq. | sq. ft. of floor area;
ft. floor or 10,000 or more
area and sq. ft. of lot area
less than
10,000
sq. ft. of

lot area

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 81 of 104



Page 82 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements

Use
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)
Automobile and Truck AUP UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes
Rentals
Automobile Repair and AUP UP(PH)

Service, including Parts

Service

Automobile Restoration, AUP UP(PH)

Antique and Classic Cars

Automobile Sales AUP UP(PH)

Automobile Used Car UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes unless principally in
Establishments buildings

Automobile Washes, UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes

Mechanical or Self-Service

Automobile Wrecking Prohibited

Establishments

Gasoline/Automobile Fuel UP(PH)
Stations
Motorcycle Stores, UP(PH)

including Sales, Parts

and/or Service

Recreational Vehicle and AUP UP(PH)

Trailers Sales and Rental,

including Boats

Tire Sales/Service Stores UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes; see
Section 23E.64.050.C

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 82 of 104 100



Page 83 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements
Use

Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses

Activities or Storage outside

of a building
When not abutting R- AUP Activities must be permitted or incidental to
District and using 10,000 permitted use in the District

sq. ft. or less of lot area

When abutting R-District UP(PH)
or 10,000 sq. ft. of lot

area or more

Automatic Teller Machines AUP Exterior and when part of a Retail Financial Service
Drive-in uses Prohibited Providing service to customers in their cars
Open Air Markets UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes. See

Section 23E.64.050.C

Parking Lots

10 or fewer spaces AUP

11 or more spaces UP(PH)
Recycling Redemption AUP
Centers

Outdoor Cafe Seating

When seating not ZC
abutting R-District

When seating abutting AUP
R-District

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 83 of 104 101



Page 84 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Permits Required to Establish,
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)

Special Requirements

(if any)

Combination Commercial/Residential and other Mixed Uses

The area within a Live/Work Unit, including both residential and non-residential space, shall be not less than 800 sq.

ft. A UP(PH) is required in some cases; see Chapter 23E.20.

Live/Work Units

9 or fewer

10 or more

AUP

UP(PH)

If not changed from a dwelling unit

And/or if changed from a dwelling unit

Mixed Use Developments

Incorporating residential
and retail; where the
retail space comprises at
least 15% but not more
than 33% of the floor

area

Other Mixed Use
Developments
incorporating residential
use and other permitted

uses

AUP if less than 20,000 sq. ft.

floor area

UP(PH) if 20,000 sq. ft. or more

floor area

ZC if less than 5,000 sq. ft.

AUP if 5,000-9,000 sq. ft.

Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Immediate Consumption

Amusement Devices (up to AUP
3)
Food or Beverage for ZC

Live Entertainment

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 84 of 104 102



Page 85 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,

Special Requirements

Use
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Unamplified ZC

Amplified UP(PH) See performance standards in Section 23E.64.070.E
Storage of Goods (over AUP
25% of gross floor area)
Residential and Related Uses
Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC
compliance with
Section 23C.24.050
Accessory Dwelling Unit AUP Subject to making applicable findings in
that does not comply with Section 23C.24.070
requirements under
Section 23C.24.050
Additions, Major Residential AUP See definition in Sub-title 23F. Subject to required

finding under Section 23E.64.090.G

Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care; Family Day
Care

Small Family Day Care ZC

Homes of 8 or fewer

children

Large Family Day Care AUP

Homes of 9 to 14

children
Child Care Centers UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 85 of 104

103



Page 86 of 104

Table 23E.64.030
Use and Required Permits
Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements
Use
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Care ZC
Facilities/Homes
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units UP(PH) Subject to Development Standards under
Section 23E.64.070
Group Living UP(PH) Subject to Development Standards under
Accommodations Section 23E.64.070
Home Occupations
Low Impact ZC If the requirements of Section 23C.16.020 are met
Moderate Impact, AUP Subject to the requirements of Section 23C.16.030.A
teaching-related
Moderate Impact UP(PH) Subject to the requirements of Section 23C.16.030.B
Hospitals UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see
Section 23E.64.080.F
Hot Tubs, Jacuzzis, Spas AUP See Section 23D.08.070.C
Hotels, Residential, UP(PH)
including Single Room
Occupancy (SRO)
Libraries UP(PH) Subject to parking requirements; see
Section 23E.64.080.F
Nursing Homes UP(PH)

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 86 of 104

104



Page 87 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,

Special Requirements

Use Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Parks and Playgrounds AUP

Public Safety and UP(PH)

Emergency Services

Religious Assembly Uses AUP

Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)

Senior Congregate Housing
Six or fewer persons ZC Changes of use from an existing dwelling unit
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH)

All other Residential
Accessory Structures and

Uses not listed

Per R-3 District

See Table 23D.36.030

Mausoleums

Accessory Buildings and ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050,
Structures with Urban and 23D.08.060

Agriculture

Miscellaneous Uses

Automatic Teller Machines AUP When not part of a Retail Financial Service
Cafeteria, Employee or AUP

Residential

Cemeteries and Prohibited

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 87 of 104

105



Page 88 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Permits Required to Establish,

Special Requirements

Physical or Biological

Use
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and
Institutional Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than
5% of the subject property area, and located within
the main building
Circus or Carnival UP(PH) Prohibited in designated nodes. See
Section 23E.64.050.C
Commercial Excavation Prohibited Including earth, gravel, minerals or other building
materials including drilling for, or removal of, oil or
natural gas
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Prohibited
Plants
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 25 beds ZC
More than 25 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding UP(PH) Prohibited on ground floor in designated node
Laboratories, Commercial Prohibited See Section 23E.64.030.C

Laboratories, Testing

(including Cannabis

AUP if less than 10,000 sq. ft.
UP(PH) if more than 10,000 sq.

Buildings, Tanks

Testing) ft.
Mortuaries and Crematories UP(PH)
Public Utility Substations, UP(PH) Prohibited in designated node. See

Section 23E.64.050.C

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 88 of 104

106



Page 89 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Permits Required to Establish,|Special Requirements

Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)|(if any)

Audio/Sound Recording

and/or Broadcast Studios

Radio, Television, or UP(PH) Prohibited on ground floor in designated node. See

Section 23E.64.050.C

Wireless
Telecommunications

Facilities

Microcell Facilities, AUP
Modifications to Existing
Sites, and Additions to

Existing Sites When the
Site Is Not Adjacent to a

Residential District

Telecommunication

Facilities

Subject to the requirements and findings of

Section 23C.17.100

All Other UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of

Section 23C.17.100

Urban Agriculture

23C.26

Low-Impact Urban ZC
Agriculture (LIUA)

High-lmpact Urban ZUP

Agriculture (HIUA)

Light Manufacturing and Wholesale Trade Uses

Manufacturing uses prohibited on ground floors in designated nodes. See Section 23E.64.050.C

Light Manufacturing and

Wholesale Trade Uses

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 89 of 104

107



Page 90 of 104

Table 23E.64.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Permits Required to Establish,
Expand or Change Use (sq. ft.)

Special Requirements

(if any)

(including Cannabis

(including Mini-storage

Warehouses)

Distributers)
5,000 or less sq. ft. AUP
5,000 sq. ft. or more UP(PH)
All Other Manufacturing UP(PH)
Uses
Warehouses or Storage Prohibited

Legend:

ZC — Zoning Certificate

UP(PH) — Use Permit, public hearing required

AUP — Administrative Use Permit

Prohibited — Use not permitted

Section 20. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.64.080.B is amended to read

as follows:

23E.64.080 Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements

B. The district minimum standard parking requirement for commercial floor area is two
spaces per 1,000 square feet of gross floor area. Uses listed in Table 23E.64.080 shall
meet the requirements listed, for newly constructed floor area except as otherwise

modified in this subsection, and Subsections F through | below.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 90 of 104

108



Page 91 of 104

Table 23E.64.080

Parking Required*

Use

Number of spaces

Dormitories, Fraternity
and Sorority Houses,
Rooming and Boarding
Houses and Senior

Congregate Housing

One per each five residents; plus one for manager

Dwelling Units One per unit, except as modified by provisions for shared parking in
Section 23E.64.080.G; 75% less for Seniors (see below)

Hospitals One per each four beds; plus one per each three employees

Hotels One per each three guest/sleeping rooms or suites; plus one per each three
employees

Libraries One per 500 sq. ft. of floor area that is publicly accessible

Live/Work Units One per unit, provided, however, that if any workers and/or clients are permitted in

any work area, there shall be one additional parking space for the first 1,000 sq. ft.
of work area, one further parking space for each additional 750 sq. ft. and subject

to any additional requirements for parking pursuant to Section 23E.20.040.B

Manufacturing uses
(assembly, production,

storage and testing space

only)

One per 1,000 sq. ft. of floor area

Medical Practitioner

Offices

One per 300 sq. ft. of floor area

Motels

One per each guest/sleeping room; plus one space for owner or manager**

Wholesale Trade

One per 1,000 sq. ft. of floor area

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 91 of 104

109



Page 92 of 104

Table 23E.64.080

Parking Required*

Use Number of spaces

*See Subsection J for substitutions of up to 10% with bicycle/motorcycle parking

**Required parking shall be on the same lot as the building it serves

Section 21. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.64.090.H is amended to read
as follows:

23E.64.090 Findings

H. Before approving an Administrative Use Permit for Food Service Establishments on
a lot with frontage on San Pablo Avenue, the Zoning Officer shall make the findings
contained in Section 23B.28.050 as well as the findings that:

1. The project does not conflict with the goals and policies of the C-W District;
and

2. The location, size, appearance and signage of the proposed use will not
adversely affect the San Pablo Avenue Corridor; and

3. The project supports pedestrian-oriented development; and

4. The project is designed to protect the residential character of surrounding
neighborhoods from the adverse impacts of Food Service Establishment
development, including, but not limited to: increased traffic, litter, and noise.

5. For projects which include construction of new buildings, the Zoning Officer
shall also make the findings that the project design:

a. Provides intensity of development which does not underutilize the
property; especially at or near intersections of major streets; and

b. Provides pedestrian scale and siting; and

c. Incorporates continuity in street facades.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 92 of 104 110



Page 93 of 104

Section 22. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.68.030.A is amended to read

as follows:

23E.68.030 Uses Permitted

A. The following table identifies permitted, permissible, and prohibited uses and sets
forth the Permit required for each allowed use. Each use and structure shall be subject

to either a Zoning Certificate (ZC), an Administrative Use Permit (AUP), a Use Permit

approved after a Public Hearing (UP/PH), or is prohibited. Uses within the Downtown
Arts District Overlay area (ADO) are also subject to Section 23E.68.040.

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

including liquor stores and wine

Use Classification Special Requirements
Retail Sales
All Retail Sales Uses, except those ZC As defined in Sub-title 23F, except otherwise listed
listed below
Alcoholic Beverage Retail Sales, UP(PH) Includes sale for off-site consumption at restaurants

shops

Department Stores AUP
Under 10,000 s.f. ZC

Firearm/Munitions Businesses Prohibited

Pawn Shops, including Auction UP(PH)

Houses

Pet Stores, including Sales and UP(PH)

Grooming of Animals (but not

Boarding)

Smoke Shops Prohibited

Personal and Household Services

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 93 of 104

111



Page 94 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification Special Requirements
All Personal and Household ZC As defined in Sub-title 23F, except those otherwise listed
Services, except those listed below (does not include Massage)
Laundromats UP(PH)
Veterinary Clinics UP(PH) Including Pet Hospitals
Offices
Financial Services, Retail (Banks) AUP Within the Arts District Overlay, see Section 23E.68.040
Under 7,500 s.f. ZC
Within the A.D.O. AUP
Insurance Agents, Title Companies, ZC Subject to additional requirements; see
Real Estate Agents, Travel Agents Section 23E.68.060.E
Within the A.D.O. AUP Within the Arts District Overlay, see Section 23E.68.040
Medical Practitioners ZC Including Holistic Health and Mental Health Practitioners
Within the A.D.O. AUP Within the Arts District Overlay, see Section 23E.68.040
Non-Chartered Financial Institutions Prohibited
Other Professionals and ZC Subject to additional requirements; see
Government, Institutions, Utilities Section 23E.68.060.E
Within the A.D.O. AUP Within the Arts District Overlay, see Section 23E.68.040

Food and Alcohol Service, Lodging, Entertainment, and Assembly Uses

and wine incidental to seated food

service

Adult-Oriented Businesses UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Section 23E.16.030
Prohibited on Public Serving Frontages
Alcoholic Beverage Service of beer ZC For on-site consumption only

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 94 of 104

112



Page 95 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Vocational or Other Purposes

Use Classification Special Requirements

Alcoholic Beverage Service, UP(PH) Includes service of distilled spirits incidental to food service.
including Bars, Cocktail Lounges,
and Taverns
Amusement Device Arcades UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see Section 23E.16.050
Commercial Recreation Center

Under 5,000 s.f. ZC Outdoor use requires UP(PH)

Between 5,000--10,000 s.f. AUP

Over 10,000 s.f. UP(PH)
Dance, Exercise, Martial Arts and ZC
Music Studios
Entertainment Establishments UP(PH) Including Nightclubs
Food Service Establishments:

Within the Arts District Overlay, see Section 23E.68.040

Under 3,000 s.f. 7C See Alcoholic Beverage Service above.

Over 3,000 s.f. AUP

Within the A.D.O. AUP
Group Class Instruction for Business, ZC Subject to additional requirements; see

Section 23E.68.060.E

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 95 of 104 113



Page 96 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Use Classification Special Requirements
Gyms and Health Clubs AUP Subject to additional requirements; see
Under 7,500 s.f. 7c Section 23E.68.060.E
Hotels, Tourist, including Inns, Bed UP(PH)
and Breakfasts and Hostels
Motels, Tourist UP(PH)
Theaters, including Motion Pictures AUP
and Stage Performance
Automobile and Other Vehicle-Oriented Uses
Automobile Parts Stores Prohibited
Automobile Repair and Service Prohibited
Automobile Sales and Rentals, and UP(PH)
motorcycle stores
Automobile Washes, Mechanical or Prohibited
Self-Service
Automobile Wrecking Establishments | Prohibited
Gasoline/Automobile Fuel Stations Prohibited
Recreational Vehicle and Trailers Prohibited [ Including Boats
Sales and Rental
Tire Sales/Service Stores Prohibited
Parking, Outdoor and Exterior Service Window Uses
Activities or Storage Outside of a
building:
When not abutting R-District AUP

Page 96 of 104

114



Page 97 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification Special Requirements

When abutting R-District UP(PH)
Drive-in uses Prohibited
Surface Parking Lots:

Eight (8) or fewer Off-street AUP

Parking Spaces

More than eight (8) Off-street Prohibited

Parking Spaces
Parking Structures UP(PH)
Recycling Redemption Centers AUP
Outdoor Cafe Seating

When seating not abutting R- ZC

District

When seating abutting R-District AUP

Combination Commercial/Residential Uses

Live/Work Units

Not requiring a UP under ZC
Chapter 23E.20
Requiring a UP under UP(PH)
Chapter 23E.20
Mixed Use Developments (e.g. UP(PH) Subject to additional requirements; see

Residential/Commercial; Hotel/Other
Commercial; Office/Other

Commercial)

Section 23E.68.060.F
Subject to Section 23E.68.070

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 97 of 104

115



Page 98 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification Special Requirements

Uses Incidental to a Permitted Use

Amusement Devices (up to three) AUP

Food or Beverage for Immediate ZC

Consumption

Live Entertainment

Unamplified ZC
Amplified AUP
Manufacturing Uses AUP
Storage of Goods (over 25% of gross AUP
floor area)
Wholesale Activities AUP

Uses Permitted in Residential Districts

Accessory Dwelling Unit in ZC
compliance with Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Dwelling Unit that does AUP Subject to making applicable findings in Section 23C.24.070
not comply with requirements under

Section 23C.24.050

Accessory Uses and Structures As per R-5 |[See Table 23D.44.030

District
Accessory Buildings and Structures ZC 23C.26, 23D.08.010, 23D.08.020, 23D.08.050,
with Urban Agriculture and 23D.08.060
Short-Term Rental ZC Subject to requirements of Chapter 23C.22
Child Care Centers AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 98 of 104 116



Page 99 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification Special Requirements
Clubs, Lodges UP(PH)
Community Centers UP(PH)
Dwelling Units, including multifamily UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.68.060.F
developments
Group Living Accommodations UP(PH) Subject to the standards under Section 23E.68.060.F
subject to R-3 Standards
Hospitals UP(PH)
Hotels, Residential, including Single UP(PH) Subject to Section 23E.68.060.F
Room Occupancy (SRO) Hotels
Libraries UP(PH)
Nursing Homes UP(PH)
Parks and Playgrounds ZC
Public Safety and Emergency UP(PH)
Services
Religious Assembly Uses UP(PH)
Schools, Public or Private UP(PH)
Senior Congregate Housing Change of use of an existing dwelling unit
Six or fewer people ZC
Seven or more persons AUP
New Construction UP(PH) Subject to Section 23E.68.070

Miscellaneous Uses

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 99 of 104 17



Page 100 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use

Classification

Special Requirements

Automatic Teller Machines When not

a Part of a Retail Financial Service

Exterior UP(PH)
Interior AUP
Cafeteria, Employee or Residential UP(PH)
Cemeteries, Crematories, Prohibited
Mausoleums
Columbaria AUP Allowed with a ZC if incidental to a Community and
Institutional Use, limited to 400 niches, no more than 5% of
the subject property area, and located within the main
building.
Circus or Carnival UP(PH)
Dry Cleaning and Laundry Plants UP(PH)
Emergency Shelter See Chapter 23C.10.
Up to 60 beds ZC
More than 60 beds UP(PH)
Kennels or Pet Boarding Prohibited
Laboratories, Testing (including AUP
Cannabis Testing)
Mortuaries UP(PH)
Public Utility Substations, Tanks UP(PH)
Radio, Television or Audio/Sound
Recording Studios AUP

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S.

Page 100 of 104

118



Page 101 of 104

Table 23E.68.030

Use and Required Permits

Use Classification Special Requirements
Broadcast Studios UP(PH)
Warehouses or Storage including UP(PH)

Mini-storage Warehouses

Wireless Telecommunications Subject to the requirements and findings of
Facilities Section 23C.17.100
Microcell Facilities, Modifications AUP

to Existing Sites, and Additions to
Existing Sites When the Site Is
Not Adjacent to a Residential

District

All Other Telecommunication UP(PH) Subject to the requirements and findings of

Facilities Section 23C.17.100

Urban Agriculture 23C.26

Low-Impact Urban Agriculture ZC
(LIUA)

High-lmpact Urban Agriculture AUP
(HIUA)

Legend:

ZC -- Zoning Certificate

AUP -- Administrative Use Permit

UP(PH) -- Use Permit, public hearing

required

Section 23. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.68.040 is amended to read as
follows:

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 101 of 104 119



Page 102 of 104

23E.68.040 Downtown Arts District Overlay
A. The City Council finds and declares that:

B.

1. The purpose of the Downtown Arts District Overlay is to create a core of
cultural activities and supportive retail and commercial uses which would generate
more pedestrian vitality in the downtown, promote Berkeley’s regional leadership in
the arts, and encourage broader economic revitalization of the area.

2. To this end, the use and appearance of ground floor spaces in the Downtown
Arts District are important to the success of the City’s plans for the area, since
these spaces define the ambiance and character of the area for pedestrians. The
types of uses which would enhance the Arts District include ground floor retail uses
which would contribute to the cultural vitality of the area, seated food service, and
uses which provide pedestrian scale and siting. Desirable new development would
include projects which fully utilize the development potential of the property and
incorporate continuity in street facades. Uses such as food uses with seating, art
galleries, bookstores and other culturally compatible and pedestrian-oriented uses
will contribute to the area’s economic vitality.

Downtown Arts District Overlay shall be abbreviated as “ADO.” Said overlay district

shall consist of:

C.

1. All buildings with street frontage on Addison Street between Shattuck Avenue
and Milvia Street; and

2. All buildings with street frontage on the two blocks along the southbound west
wing of Shattuck Avenue between University Avenue and Center Street, and all
addresses on the east side of Milvia Street between University Avenue and Center
Street.

3. These proposed boundaries are as set forth in the map on file with the City
Clerk and incorporated by reference herein.

No Food Service Establishment exclusively providing food for offsite consumption

or office use located on the ground floor adjacent to a street frontage may be

established within the Downtown Arts District Overlay, either as a new use or as a

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 102 of 104

120



Page 103 of 104

change of use, unless an Administrative Use Permit is approved by the Zoning Officer
subject to the findings in Section 23E.68.090.C.

Section 24. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.68.090.C is amended to read
as follows:

23E.68.090 Findings

C. For each Administrative Use Permit obtained under Section 23E.68.040.C to allow
a new Food Service Establishment exclusively providing food for offsite consumption or
ground floor office use within the Downtown Arts District Overlay, the Zoning Officer
must find that:

1. The project meets the purposes of the Arts Overlay District as set forth in
Section 23E.68.040; and

2. The location, size, type, appearance, and signage of the proposed use will:
a. Animate and enhance the pedestrian experience on the street; and

b. Be generally open to the public evenings and on weekends, whenever
practicable

Section 25. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.98.050 is amended to read as
follows:

Section 23E.98.050 Definitions
The following definitions are applicable only in the Civic Center District Overlay:

Live Performance Theatre: An establishment that has a permanent stage for the
presentation of live performances and entertainment and which contains an
audience viewing hall or room with fixed seats.

Museum: A non-profit, permanent institution in the service of society and its
development, open to the public, which acquires, conserves, researches,

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 103 of 104

121



Page 104 of 104

communicates and exhibits the tangible and intangible heritage of humanity and its
environment for the purposes of education, study and enjoyment.

Public Market: An open air or enclosed marketplace, including a farmer’s market,
with multiple owner operated and/or independent merchants selling retail food
items and handcrafted goods from local and regional producers, so long as 75% or
more of retail space is devoted to the sale of General or Specialized food products
and no more than 25% of retail space is devoted to one or more of the following
Incidental Uses: owner operated and/or independent Food Service Establishment
selling food from local and regional producers and sales of Retail Products from
local and regional produce.

Section 26. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of Council Chambers, 2134 Martin Luther
King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each
branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of
general circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on December 11,
2018, this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the
following vote:

Ayes: Bartlett, Davila, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Kesarwani, Robinson, Wengraf
and Arreguin.

Noes: None.

Absent: None.

Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. Page 104 of 104

122



Page 1 of 3

ORDINANCE NO. 7,638-N.S

AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE (BMC) TITLE 23 (ZONING), OFFICIAL
ZONING MAP, TO REZONE ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS (APN) 054-1763-001-03
AND 054-1763-010-00 FROM MIXED USE - LIGHT INDUSTRIAL (MU-LI) TO WEST
BERKELEY COMMERCIAL (C-W), AND TO AMEND SECTION 23E.64.070 TO ALLOW
BUILDINGS ON ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBERS 054-1763-001-03, 054-1763-010-00
AND 054-1763-003-03 TO BE FIFTY FEET IN HEIGHT AND FOUR STORIES

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1. The City Council has adopted the Initial Study — Mitigated Negative Declaration
that was prepared for this rezoning and has made all required findings pursuant to the
California Environmental Quality Act, as amended.

Section 2. The City Council finds this rezoning and text amendment to be consistent with
the General Plan and West Berkeley Plan, and to be in the public interest and in
furtherance of the public health, safety and general welfare.

Section 3. That the City of Berkeley Zoning Map is hereby amended to rezone the parcels
known as Assessor Parcel Numbers 054-1763-001-03 and 054-1763-010-00 to West
Berkeley Commercial (C-W), as shown in Exhibit A to this ordinance.

Section 4. That Berkeley Municipal Code Section 23E.64.070.B is hereby amended to
read as follows:

23E.64.070 Development Standards

B. The height for a main building shall not exceed the following limits and shall satisfy
the following requirements:

Table 23E.64.070

Building Height Limitations *

Use Type Height (ft.) |Stories (humber) [Special Requirements/Limitations
Commercial Only** 40 3

Live/Work Only 40 3

Mixed Use 50 4 The 4th floor must be used for residential or

live/work purposes

Residential Only 40 3

*Within designated nodes there is a minimum height requirement, see Section 23E.64.040.D

Ordinance No. 7,638-N.S. Page 1 of 2

02

123


rthomsen
Typewritten Text
02


Page 2 of 3

Table 23E.64.070

Building Height Limitations *

Use Type Height (ft.) |Stories (humber) [Special Requirements/Limitations

**On Assessor Parcel Numbers 054-1763-001-03, 054-1763-010-00 AND 054-1763-003-03 the

maximum height may be 50 feet and 4 stories.

Section 5. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the
display case located near the walkway in front of Old City Hall, 2134 Martin Luther King
Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be filed at each branch
of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation.

At a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Berkeley held on December 11,
2018, this Ordinance was passed to print and ordered published by posting by the
following vote:

Ayes: Bartlett, Droste, Kesarwani, Robinson, Wengraf, and Arreguin.

Noes: Davila, Hahn, and Harrison.

Absent: None.

Ordinance No. 7,638-N.S. Page 2 of 2

124



Page 3 of 3

EXHIBIT A

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT
APNs 054-1763-001-03 and 054-1763-010-00

PROPERTY TO BE REZONED
FROM MIXED USE — LIGHT
INDUSTRIALTO
WEST BERKELEY COMMERCIAL

ZONING DISTRICTS

R- Single Family Residential

R-1A Limited Two-family Residential
Restricted Two-family Residential
Restricted Multiple-family Residential
Multiple-family Residential
Multi-family Residential

High Density Residential
Environmental Safety-Residential

General Commercial

Central Commercial

Elmwood Commercial
Neighborhood Commercial
North Shattuck Commercial
South Area Commercial
Solano Avenue Commercial
Telegraph Avenue Commercial
West Berkeley Commercial

Manufacturing

Mixed Manufacturing
Mixed Use-Light Industrial
Mixed Use-Residential

Specific Plan
Unclassified

c|@) = Pl
T c I
=

1 RO ‘
x

TR

R-1

125



126



Page 1 of 72

SR 03

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Subject: Minutes for Approval

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of November 26, 2018 (special closed),
November 27, 2018 (regular), December 4, 2018 (regular), December 6, 2018 (special),
and December 11, 2018 (regular).

CONTACT PERSON
Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Attachments:

. November 26, 2018-Special Closed City Council Meeting
November 27, 2018-Regular City Council Meeting
December 4, 2018—Regular City Council Meeting
December 6, 2018-Special City Council Meeting
December 11, 2018—Regular City Council Meeting

abkrwn =

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 127
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
03


Page 2 of 72

Attachment 1
MINUTES

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 26, 2018

4:00 P.M.

Redwood Room — 2180 Milvia Street, 6t Floor, Berkeley, CA

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — LINDA MAIO DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — KRISS WORTHINGTON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  4:07 p.m.
Present: Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Maio, Worthington, Arreguin
Absent: Bartlett, Davila, Wengraf
Public Comment - Limited to items on this agenda only — 1 speaker

CLOSED SESSION:

The City Council will convene in closed session to meet concerning the following:

1. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS; GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54957.6

Negotiators: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, Paul Buddenhagen, Interim Deputy City Manager,
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources.

Employee Organizations: Public Employees’ Union, Local 1.
Action: No reportable action.
Councilmember Davila present at 4:14 p.m.

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION PURSUANT TO
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(d)(1):

a. Rudie v. City of Berkeley, ACSC Case No. RG17870389.
Action: No reportable action.

b. Robertson v. John Fitzgerald Smith, City of Berkley, et al., ACSC Case No. RG17851346.

Action: No reportable action.

Monday, November 26, 2018 MINUTES Page 1 128



Page 3 of 72

c. Dalton v. City of Berkeley, US District Court, Northern District of California, Case No. 17-cv-07178

JCS.

Action: M/S/C (Worthington/Hahn) to authorize the City Attorney to enter into a settlement
agreement consistent with the terms outlined in the proposed settlement agreement for an
amount not to exceed $40,000.

Vote: Ayes — Davila, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Maio, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain
— None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf.

Ryder Vanderheyden v. Subadra Jayram; Thathachar Jayram; City of Berkeley; State of
California, ACSC Case No. RG16 841708

Action: M/S/C (Harrison/Maio) to authorize the City Attorney to settle the case for $27,500,
contingent on the court granting the City’s motion that the settlement is in good faith. This motion
is necessary because although this will settle the case between the City and Plaintiff, there are
other defendants who will remain in the case.

Vote: Ayes — Davila, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Maio, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain
— None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf.

OPEN SESSION:

City Council met in Closed Session and gave direction as follows:

a.

Dalton v. City of Berkeley, US District Court, Northern District of California, Case No. 17-cv-07178
JCS: Authorized the City Attorney to enter into a settlement agreement consistent with the terms
outlined in the proposed settlement agreement for an amount not to exceed $40,000.

Ryder Vanderheyden v. Subadra Jayram; Thathachar Jayram; City of Berkeley; State of
California, ACSC Case No. RG16 841708: Authorized the City Attorney to settle the case for
$27,500, contingent on the court granting the City’s motion that the settlement is in good

faith. This motion is necessary because although this will settle the case between the City and
Plaintiff, there are other defendants who will remain in the case.

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Davila, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Maio, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain —
None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf.

Adjourned at 4:50 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the special closed
meeting of November 26, 2018 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

April Richardson, Assistant City Clerk

Monday, November 26, 2018 MINUTES Page 2

129



Page 4 of 72
Attachment 2

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, November 27, 2018
6:00 PM

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 2134 MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. WAY

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — LINDA MAIO DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — KRISS WORTHINGTON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  6:09 p.m.
Present: Maio, Davila, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin
Absent: Bartlett, Harrison
Councilmember Harrison present at 6:58 p.m.

Report from Closed Session:

1. Dalton v. City of Berkeley: The Council met in closed session and authorized the City Attorney to
enter into a settlement agreement consistent with the terms outlined in the proposed settlement
agreement for an amount not to exceed $40,000.

2. Vanderheyden v. City of Berkeley: The Council met in closed session and authorized the City
Attorney to settle the case for $27,500, contingent on the court granting the City’s motion that the
settlement is in good faith. T His motion is necessary because although this will settle the case
between the City and Plaintiff, there are other defendants who will remain in the case.

City Auditor Comments:

The City Auditor recognized the efforts of the Council to fund the reserve funds and the City’s
unfunded liabilities in the excess equity proposal. Also, the City Auditor expressed her support for the
policy committee proposal to improve the legislative process and staff capacity concerns highlighted
in previous audits.

City Manager Comments:
1. Open House for the Pedestrian Master Plan, Dec. 1 at the Frances Albrier Recreation Center

2. Listening Session for the new Transfer Station, Nov. 28 at South Berkeley Senior Center and
Dec. 1 at the Live Oak Recreation Center

3. Hearst Avenue Repaving Project Meeting, December 3 at North Berkeley Senior Center

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 8 speakers.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 1
130



Page 5 of 72

Consent Calendar

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: 19 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to accept revised materials from Councilmember
Davila on ltem 23.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett, Harrison.

Action: M/S/C (Maio/Hahn) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as
indicated.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

1. Safe Storage of Firearms; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.69
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance adding Berkeley Municipal
Code Chapter 13.69 regarding safe storage of firearms.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, 981-6950
Action: Adopted first reading of Ordinance No. 7,633-N.S. Second reading
scheduled for December 4, 2018.

2. Minutes for Approval
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meetings of October 2,
2018 (regular), October 9, 2018 (special), October 15, 2018 (special closed),
October 16, 2018 (special and regular), October 22, 2018 (special closed), and
October 30, 2018 (special closed and regular).
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900
Action: Approved minutes as submitted.

3. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on November 27, 2018
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $4,113,150
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, 981-7300
Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 2

131



Page 6 of 72

Consent Calendar

4. Revenue Grant Application: Funding Support to Conduct HIV Prevention
Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit a
grant application to the California Department of Public Health, Office of AIDS, and if
awarded, accept the grant, execute any resulting agreements and amendments, and
implement the projects and appropriation of funding for related expenses to conduct
HIV prevention, protection, and health promotion services for the California
Department of Public Health, Office of AIDS. Revenue is projected for the amount of
$25,000 for period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,667—N.S.

5. Authorizing Acceptance of Mental Health Oversite and Accountability
Commission Mental Health Triage Grant
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a
grant agreement with the Mental Health Oversite and Accountability Commission
(MHOAC) and any amendments in the amount of $614,834 and authorize the use of
Medi-Cal matching funds of $180,184 to create and staff a mental health crisis triage
phone line for the period December 1, 2018 through November 30, 2021.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,668—-N.S.

6. Contract: Youth Spirit Artworks for Transition Age Youth (TAY) Case
Management and Linkage Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a
contract and any amendments up to Not To Exceed (NTE) $100,000 through June
30, 2019 with vendor Youth Spirit Artworks for Transition Age Youth Case
Management and Linkage Services, and authorizing the City Manager to provide an
advance payment in the amount of $10,000 (10% of the total contract NTE amount)
to cover expenses associated with project initiation.
Financial Implications: Mental Health Service Act Fund - $100,000
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,669-N.S.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 3
132



Page 7 of 72

Consent Calendar

7. Memorandum of Understanding: International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers Local 1245 - A.F.L. - C.I.0.
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions: 1) approving a new twenty (20) month
Memorandum Agreement (hereafter referred to as “MOU”) with the International
Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1245 (hereafter referred to as the “Union”)
with a term of October 21, 2018 through June 27, 2020 and authorizing the City
Manager to execute and implement the terms and conditions of employment set forth
in the new MOU; and 2) approving a new salary resolution for Representation Unit C
that implement the new salary levels negotiated in the new labor agreement and
rescinding Resolution No. 68,348-N.S. Also, authorize the City Manager to make non
substantive edits to the format and language of the Memorandum Agreement in
alignment with Council Direction, the tentative agreement and conforming to legal
requirements.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,670-N.S. (MOU); and Resolution No. 68,671—
N.S. (Salary).

8. Dell Computers, Inc.: Using National Association of State Procurement
Officials (NASPO) ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for
Computer Hardware and Software Purchases
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to increase
spending authority with Dell Computers, Inc. for the purchase of computer and server
hardware, software, and related services, utilizing pricing and contracts,
amendments, and extensions from the National Association of State Procurement
Officials (NASPO) ValuePoint for the period beginning November 28, 2018 through
June 30, 2020 for an amount not-to-exceed (NTE) $1,235,400, with $667,700 in
Fiscal Year 2019 and $567,700 in Fiscal Year 2020.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Savita Chaudhary, Information Technology, 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,672—N.S.

9. Contract No. 10976 Amendment: Bay Construction Company for Strawberry
Creek Park (South) Sport Court Renovations
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 10976 with Bay Construction Company for the Strawberry Creek Park
(South) Sport Court Renovations project, increasing the amount by $45,000 for an
amended total amount not to exceed $591,000.
Financial Implications: Parks Tax Fund - $45,000
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,673—N.S.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 4
133



Page 8 of 72

Consent Calendar

10.

11.

12.

Contract No. 10217 Amendment: TranSystems, Inc. for Construction Support
Services for the South Cove Accessible Ramp Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an amendment to Contract No. 10217 with TranSystems, Inc.
adding $23,241 for construction support services for the South Cove Accessible
Ramp Project for a total contract amount not to exceed $216,512.

Financial Implications: Marina Fund - $23,241

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,674—-N.S.

Contract: Opticos Design, Inc. for Density Standards Study

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with Opticos Design, Inc. to prepare a Density
Standards Study for an amount not to exceed $75,000 for the period of December 1,
2018 through December 1, 2019.

Financial Implications: Land Use Planning Fund - $75,000

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,675—-N.S.

Grant Application: CalRecycle for lllegal Disposal Site Abatement Grant
Program

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an
application to the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle)
for the lllegal Disposal Site Abatement Grant Program; to accept funds and execute
all necessary applications, payment requests, agreements and any amendments;
and to appropriate funding for related expenditures, subject to securing the program
funds.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,676—N.S.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 5

134



Page 9 of 72

Consent Calendar

13. Contracts: On-Call Construction and Project Management Services: KPM
Consulting LLC, O’Connor Construction Management, Inc., and Townsend
Management, Inc.

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt three Resolutions authorizing the City Manager to execute
contracts and any amendments with the following firms for on-call construction and
project management services for capital improvement projects, each for a period of
January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021:

1. KPM Consulting LLC (KPM), for an amount not to exceed $680,000.

2. O’Connor Construction Management, Inc. (O’Connor), for an amount not to
exceed $660,000.

3. Townsend Management Inc. (Townsend), for an amount not to exceed $660,000.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,677—-N.S. (KPM); Resolution No. 68,678—N.S.
(O’Connor); and Resolution No. 68,679-N.S. (Townsend).

14. Contract No. 9735 Amendment for R&S Erection of Richmond, Inc. for Rolling
Gate and Roll-Up Door Service and Repairs
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 9735 with R&S Erection of Richmond, Inc. increasing
the current contract by $150,000 for a total not to exceed amount of $300,000.
Financial Implications: Building Maintenance Fund - $150,000
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,680-N.S.

15. Contract: Community Conservation Centers, Inc. for Sorting and Marketing
Services of Curbside Collected Recyclables
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a
contract with Community Conservation Centers, Inc. for recyclables processing from
December 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020 for a total amount not to exceed
$4,000,000.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,681-N.S.
Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 6

135



Page 10 of 72

Consent Calendar

16.

17.

Contract: Andes Construction, Inc. for Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation and
Replacement at Various Locations

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving plans and specifications for the
Sanitary Sewer Project, located on Clay Street, San Pablo Avenue, Garfield Avenue,
Kains Avenue, Portland Avenue, Santa Fe Avenue, Thousand Oaks Boulevard,
Curtis Street and Backline, Visalia Avenue, Arlington Backline, San Luis Road,
Second Street, Hearst Avenue, and University Avenue; accepting the bid of the
lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Andes Construction, Inc. (Andes); and
authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any amendments,
extensions, or other change orders until completion of the project in accordance with
the approved plans and specifications, in an amount not to exceed $6,374,743.
Financial Implications: Sanitary Sewer Fund - $6,374,743

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,682—-N.S.

North Berkeley BART Site Recommendations

From: Housing Advisory Commission

Recommendation: Adopt guidelines for the development of the North Berkeley
BART site to develop as many housing units as possible and include as many
affordable units as financially feasible, with an emphasis on addressing the City’s
underserved Regional Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) targets.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Amy Davidson, Commission Secretary, 981-5400

Action: Item held over to the January 15, 2019 worksession meeting.

Council Consent Items

18.

Appoint Darryl Moore to the Berkeley Housing Authority Board

From: Mayor Arreguin

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing Darryl Moore to serve a four-year
term on the Berkeley Housing Authority Board of Commissioners.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,683—-N.S.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 7

136



Page 11 of 72

Council Consent Items

19.

20.

Options Recovery Services: Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Fund to
General Fund and Grant of Such Funds

From: Councilmembers Maio and Davila

Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $500 per council member, including $500 from Councilmember Maio, to
the Options Recovery Services with funds relinquished to the city’s general fund for
this purpose from the discretionary council office budget of Councilmember Maio and
any other council members who would like to contribute.

Financial Implications: Councilmembers' Discretionary Funds - $500

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,684—N.S. revised to include contributions from
the following councilmembers up to the amounts listed: Councilmember Hahn - $200;
Councilmember Wengraf - $250; Councilmember Davila - $100; Councilmember
Maio - $250.

Encouraging Long-Term Tenant Stability

From: Councilmembers Maio, Droste, Harrison, and Hahn

Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to amend BMC 21.28.080 as pertains
to the Affordable Housing Mitigation fee as follows: If a property contains three or
more units, the affordable housing mitigation fee for a unit that is occupied by an
owner as his or her principal place of residence for at least 5 consecutive years
immediately prior to the date of sale, including as a tenant in that unit immediately
prior to ownership, shall be reduced by 50 percent, but only if the owner owned and
resided in the unit as of June 30, 2010 or has resided as a tenant and has achieved
ownership during the previous 5 years.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Linda Maio, Councilmember, District 1, 981-7110

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2
and written below:

Facilitate the ability of long-term tenants to purchase their residence by referring to the
City Manager to amend BMC 21.28.080 as it pertains to the Affordable Housing
Mitigation fee as follows: If the property contains 4 units or fewer, the affordable
housing mitigation fee for a unit that is and has been occupied by an owner as his or
her principal place of residence for at least 5 consecutive years immediately prior to
the date of conversion or sale, including as a tenant in that unit immediately prior to
ownership, shall be reduced by 50 percent.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 8

137



Page 12 of 72

Council Consent Items

21.

22,

23.

Resolution and letter of request to PG&E to offer rebates and other incentives
for residential customers to encourage a transition from gas to electrical
appliances and heating systems, as well as, subsidies for electrical upgrades
required

From: Councilmembers Davila and Harrison

Recommendation: Approve a resolution to send the attached letter to PG&E
requesting that they offer rebates and other incentives for residential customers to
encourage a transition from gas to electrical appliances and heating systems as well
as subsidies for electrical upgrades required.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,685—-N.S.

Budget Referral: Gun Buyback and Art of Peace Program

From: Councilmembers Davila

Recommendation: AAO Budget Referral to the FY19 (2018/2019) November 2018
AAO Budget Process to set aside $60,000 to frontload funds to bring the Robby
Poblete Foundation Gun Buyback, Art of Peace and Work in Progress programs to
Berkeley.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Approved recommendation.

Request from Bay Area Migrant Welcome Committee for City of Berkeley
welcome and contributions to accompany these migrant asylum seekers to the
US and specifically to the Bay Area

From: Councilmembers Davila

Recommendation: Approve a resolution to approve the expenditure of an amount
not to exceed $150 per Councilmember, including $150 from Councilmember Cheryl
Davila, to the Bay Area Migrant Welcome Committee for funds to be delivered
directly to those traveling as part of the caravan with funds relinquished to the City’s
general fund for this purpose from the discretionary Council Office Budgets of
Councilmember Davila and any other Councilmembers who would like to contribute.
The funds will support with food, shelter and basic necessities they are detained at
ports of entry and those permitted travel to cities for immigration hearings, including
the Bay Area.

Financial Implications: Councilmember’s Discretionary Budget - $150

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,686—N.S. as amended in the revised material
distributed at the meeting and further amended to include the Interfaith Movement for
Human Integrity as the fiscal agent for the relinquishments and revised to include
contributions from the following councilmembers up to the amounts listed:
Councilmember Wengraf - $150; Mayor Arreguin - $250; Councilmember Harrison -
$150; Councilmember Droste - $150; Councilmember Maio - $150.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 9

138



Page 13 of 72

Council Consent Items

24,

25.

26.

Short-Term Referral to City Manager and Office of Energy and Sustainable
Development to Draft Ordinance Amending Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter
7.52, Reducing Tax Imposed for Qualifying Electrification, Energy Efficiency
and Water Conservation Retrofits

From: Councilmembers Harrison and Davila

Recommendation: Short-term referral to the City Manager and the Office of Energy
and Sustainable Development to draft an ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal
Code (BMC) Chapter 7.52, reducing tax imposed for qualifying electrification, energy
efficiency, and water conservation retrofits.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, 981-7140

Action: Councilmember Hahn added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation
as revised in Supplemental Communications Packet #2.

Comprehensive Investment Policy based on ESG Principles

From: Councilmembers Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, and Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to consider the integration of ESG
(environmental, social and governance) principles into the current City of Berkeley
Investment Policy framework and return to Council with a recommendation.
Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Susan Wengraf, Councilmember, District 6, 981-7160

Action: Approved recommendation.

Short Term Referral to Expedite Components of the More Student Housing
Now Resolution, and budget referral to the annual appropriation ordinance
adoption

From: Councilmember Worthington

Recommendation: Short term referral to the City Manager and the Planning
Department to promptly move forward with components of the More Student Housing
Now Resolution that do not require additional CEQA review, amend existing City
ordinances and policies that prevent the implementation of SB 1227, and provide a
budget referral to the annual appropriation ordinance adoption that would allocate
the necessary resources as determined by the Planning Staff.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 10

139



Page 14 of 72

Council Consent Items

27. Pledge to Actively Support Diversity Recruitment for the City’s Boards and
Commissions
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Davila
Recommendation: That the Council pledges to actively support diversity recruitment
by creating their own plan-of-action to increase diversity in the City’s Boards and
Commissions. This pledge aims to transform the Boards and Commissions to
achieve full representation of Asian, Latino, Black, and indigenous individuals relative
to the Berkeley population.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Councilmember Droste added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation.

28. Refer the City Manager to Improve the Current Tree Ordinance and Seek
Funding Opportunities to Plant More Trees in the City
From: Councilmembers Worthington, Harrison, and Davila
Recommendation: That the Council refer the City Manager to improve the current
tree ordinance to protect more trees, develop policy on street tree/hardscape
conflicts, encourage more community initiative and participation in the maintenance
and care of our street trees and seek potential funding opportunities to plant more
trees in Berkeley.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Approved recommendation revised to add “and funds to maintain new and
existing trees on public property.”

29. Write a letter to the Alameda County Registrar Allowing voters to rank above
three ranked choice ratings
From: Councilmember Worthington
Recommendation: That the City Council write a letter to the Alameda County
Registrar of Voters indicating that Berkeley is interested in allowing voters to rank
above three ranked choice ratings.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Approved recommendation.

30. Refer the Transportation Commission to consider incentives for the public to
use sustainable modes of transportation similar to Bologna, Italy
From: Councilmember Worthington
Recommendation: That the Council refer to the Transportation Commission to
create incentives for members of the public to cycle, walk and take public transport
as opposed to driving.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Councilmembers Hahn and Harrison added as co-sponsors. Approved
recommendation as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 11

140



Page 15 of 72

Council Consent Items

31.

32.

33.

City Manager short-term Referral; Preliminary steps towards the expansion of
the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to Increase Parking Efficiency

From: Councilmembers Worthington and Harrison

Recommendation: City Manager short-term Referral; Amendment to the City of
Berkeley municipal code regulating off-street parking lots in order to facilitate the
expansion of the GoBerkeley Transportation Program to allow private parking
vendors to charge adjustable rates for parking spaces.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Approved recommendation.

Refer to the City Manager to consider boycotting Amazon for its role in
tracking immigrants in cooperation with ICE

From: Councilmembers Worthington and Davila

Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to consider the City of Berkeley

boycotting Amazon and refrain from using its services to purchase goods for city use.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Item held over to January 22, 2019 to be calendared with similar items
regarding weapons contracts and sanctuary contracting policies — including revised
material in Supplemental Reports Packet #2.

Referral to the Transportation Commission: Explore Possibilities for Initiating
Equitable Exchange with Transportation Network Companies (TNCs)

From: Councilmember Worthington, Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmember
Hahn

Recommendation: The City Council requests that the Transportation Commission
initiate research into an effective means of equitable exchange with TNCs. In order
to compensate the City of Berkeley for traffic congestion, air pollution, and
infrastructure damage, the Council recommends that TNCs participate in the
payment of taxes and the exchange of data.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Councilmember Davila added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation

revised to add the proposed ballot measure item in Supplemental Reports Packet #2.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 12

141



Page 16 of 72

Council Consent Items

34. Refer to the City Manager to add a condition to Zoning Board Approved
permits to bring attention to the Pay Transparency policy to project applicants,
and consider these Pay Transparency Ordinance amendments
From: Councilmember Worthington and Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation: That the Council refer to the City Manager to add a condition to
Zoning Board Approved permits in order to bring attention to the Pay Transparency
policy to project applicants, and consideration of amendments to the Pay
Transparency Ordinance.

Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Approved recommendation.

35. Referral for City Manager to Take a Fresh Look at Repurposing the Old City
Hall Building
From: Councilmembers Worthington and Davila
Recommendation: Short-term referral to the City Manager to consider further
utilizing the currently mostly unused Old City Hall for nonprofits including Berkeley
Community Media for classes, and potentially a temporary emergency winter shelter.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 23 speakers. M/S/C (Harrison/Worthington) to
authorize the City Manager to utilize Old City Hall as an Inclement Weather Winter
Shelter for the 2018-2019 winter season.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.
Recess 8:26 p.m. — 8:42 p.m.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 13

142



Page 17 of 72

Council Consent Items

36.

37.

Support League of California Cities’ Efforts to “Stop Wandering Weed”
From: Councilmember Worthington

Recommendation: That the Council supports the League of California Cities’ efforts
to urge the Bureau of Cannabis Control to “Stop Wandering Weed” and amend
proposed regulations that are negligent to consumer public safety and health
protections. The Council should also send a letter requesting our State
Assemblymember and State Senator to introduce or support legislation that allows
local control on cannabis delivery.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2
as written below:

That the Council should support proposed regulations that protect both consumer
public safety and voter-approved access to legal cannabis. That can be achieved via
a letter to our state lawmakers, supporting legislation that maintains the Bureau of
Cannabis Control’s proposed regulation authorizing delivery into any jurisdiction
within the state of California. The council should also simultaneously support
safeguards on how cannabis deliveries are permitted. It is important that localities
maintain their authority to restrict commercial cannabis activity from establishing a
physical operation within their boundaries. However, the council should also support
the right of all Californians of legal age to have safe access to, and receive delivery
of, legal consumer products regardless of where they live.

That the Council approve a letter of support to stop the deportation of the
Benavides-Pineda family

From: Councilmembers Worthington and Davila

Recommendation: That the Council approve a letter of support to stop the
deportation of the Benavides-Pineda family, who are an integral part of the Berkeley
community.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170

Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 14

143



Page 18 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

38.

ZAB Appeal: 3000 Shattuck Avenue, Use Permit #ZP2015-0229 (Continued from
November 13, 2018.)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Continue the public hearing and, upon conclusion, uphold the
appeal and adopt a Resolution approving the project based on the Findings and
Conditions presented by staff to the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) on June 28,
2018, for Use Permit #2P2015-0229, to demolish a gas station structure and
construct a five-story, 40,557 square foot mixed-use building with ground-floor retail
uses and 23 dwelling units.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

Public Testimony: The Mayor asked for testimony from the public. 9 speakers.
M/S/C (Droste/Davila) to close the public hearing.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett, Worthington.

Councilmember Worthington absent 9:31 p.m. — 9:52 p.m.

Action: M/S/C (Droste/Maio) to adopt Resolution No. 68,687—N.S. to uphold the
appeal and adopt a Resolution approving the project based on the Findings and
Conditions presented by staff to the Zoning Adjustments Board (ZAB) on June 28,
2018, for Use Permit #2P2015-0229, to demolish a gas station structure and
construct a five-story, 40,557 square foot mixed-use building with ground-floor retail
uses and 23 dwelling units amended to include two additional conditions written
below.
¢ Include the revised site plan submitted by the applicant that includes a loading
zone.
e The project shall comply with the City of Berkeley wage theft ordinance and
ensure that those that work on the are notified of their rights under state wage
theft prevention law.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — Davila,
Harrison; Abstain — Hahn; Absent — Bartlett.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 15

144



Page 19 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

39.

40.

Renewal of the EImwood Avenue BID for Calendar Year 2019

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution confirming the Annual Report and Budget for the EImwood Business
Improvement District (hereafter, “the District”, “the EImwood BID” or “the BID”) for
2018-19 and, if no majority protest exists, levy annual assessments in the District for
calendar year 2019 to finance services and improvements and authorize a fiscal
agency contract with EImwood Business Association for receipt and expenditure of
District funds.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-7530

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 1 speaker.

M/S/C (Droste/Worthington) to close the public hearing.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain —
None; Absent — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn.

Action: M/S/C (Worthington/Droste) to adopt Resolution No. 68,688—N.S.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison.

Renewal of the Solano Avenue BID for Calendar Year 2019

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and, upon conclusion, adopt a
Resolution confirming the Annual Report and Budget for the Solano Avenue
Business Improvement District (hereafter, “Solano BID Advisory Board” or “the BID”)
for 2018-19 and, if no majority protest exists, levy annual assessments in the District
for calendar year 2019 to finance services and improvements and authorize a fiscal
agency contract for receipt and expenditure of District funds.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-7530

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 0 speakers.

M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to close the public hearing.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison.

Action: M/S/C (Hahn/Maio) to adopt Resolution No. 68,689-N.S.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None;
Abstain — None; Absent — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 16

145



Page 20 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

41. Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support Small
Businesses
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and adopt the first reading of an
Ordinance amending the Berkeley Municipal Code to streamline and clarify the
permitting process for small businesses in commercial districts by:
1. Reducing the amount of parking required for businesses moving into existing
commercial spaces;
2. Simplifying food service categories by reducing them from three to one;
3. Reducing permitting time and costs for small businesses that request a change of
use in existing commercial spaces;
4. Clarifying the permit process for new business types that may not be specifically
defined in the City’s zoning rules;
5. Making ‘commercial recreation’ uses (such as bowling alleys, miniature golf
courses or ping pong clubs) easier to permit in commercial districts; and
6. Streamlining the permit process and providing clear performance standards for
restaurants that wish to serve beer and wine.
The ordinance would amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapters 23E.16, 23E.36,
23E.40, 23E.44, 23E.48, 23E.52, 23E.56, 23E.60, 23E.64, 23E.68, and 23E.98.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Jordan Klein,
Economic Development, 981-7530
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Maio) to continue the public hearing on Item 41 to a date
certain of December 4, 2018.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain —
None; Absent — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn.
Councilmember Hahn 8:42 p.m. — 8:50 p.m.
Councilmember Davila 8:42 p.m. — 8:51 p.m.
Councilmember Harrison 8:42 p.m. — 8:52 p.m.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 17

146



Page 21 of 72

Action Calendar — Old Business

42. Proposed Amendment to Berkeley’s Minimum Wage Ordinance: Berkeley
Municipal Code Chapter 13.99 (Continued from November 13, 2018. Item contains
revised material.)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending Berkeley
Municipal Coder Chapter 13.99, revising Section 13.99.040 to reinstate the
exemption for youth job training programs, freezing the rate at the current rate of
$13.25 and allowing the programs to adhere to the state of California Minimum Wage
schedule thereafter.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to take no action on ltem 42.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

43. Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning Department
on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program (Continued from November 13, 2018.)

From: Councilmembers Bartlett, Worthington, and Davila
Recommendation: That the Council provides requested direction to the Planning
Department on how to proceed with the Equity Program recommended by the
Cannabis Commission in the October 9, 2018 staff report. Recommending allowing 4
equity applicants and 2 non-equity applicants to apply and be processed by the City
within 2 years.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130
Action: Item held over to December 4, 2018.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 18

147



Page 22 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

44,

FY 2018 Year-End Results and FY 2019 First Quarter Budget Update

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Discuss and determine funding allocations based on the FY
2018 General Fund Excess Equity for: 1. the General Fund Reserves and 2. the
Mayor’s June 26, 2018, Supplemental Budget Recommendations and the Council’s
Budget Referrals that were deferred to November 2018.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, 981-7000

Action: M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to

11:30 p.m.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —

Wengraf; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Action: 7 speakers. M/S/C (Worthington/Maio) to adopt the City Manager’s
recommendation with the Mayor’s revision contained in Supplemental Reports
Packet #1)

Approve the following allocations of FY 2018 General Fund Excess Equity:

1. Pursuant to the adopted General Fund Reserve Policy, allocate $10,180,000 to the
General Fund Reserves as follows ($5.60 Million to the Stability Reserve Fund and $4.58
Million to the Catastrophic Reserve Fund);

2. Allocate $1,500,000 to be reserved for Negotiated COLAs in Bargaining Unit Memoranda

Agreements;

3. Allocate $4,000,000 to the CALPERS Section 115 Supplemental Trust to address

Unfunded Liabilities;

4. Allocate the remaining $5.67 Million in Unassigned Excess Equity as follows (and

reflected in Attachment 1):

e $200,000 for a Temporary Staff Position to support the Undergrounding Project

e $100,000 for Secure Storage at an additional location

e $1,500,000 to fully fund the Enterprise Resource Software Project

e $117,737.50 (half from GF, remainder from Permit Fund) for a 2-year Senior Planner
for the LRDP project and other Land Use Planning work

¢ $400,000 for Traffic Calming at the California and Dwight Intersection (Dist 3 and 4)

e $100,000 for a Pedestrian Activated Crosswalk at Cedar/Rose Park (District 1)

e $100,000 for a Pedestrian Activated Crosswalk at Grant and University (Dist 4 and 1)

e $50,000 for a Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFB) at Eton and Claremont
(Partially Funded, District 8)

e $50,000 for a RRFB at Claremont and Russell (Partially Funded, District 8)

e $200,000 for the Hopkins Corridor Study (District 5)

e $575,000 set aside for implementation of Fire Safety, Education, Prevention and
Disaster Preparedness Recommendations

e $50,000 for RFP to address gaps for marginalized youth in Berkeley

e $25,000 to extend the hours that the Frances Albrier Community Center is open

e $86,924 to pay full city Minimum Wage to YouthWorks employees for FY 2019

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 19

148



Page 23 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

45,

¢ $250,000 to fully fund Environmental Impact Report for Southside area land use changes
(implementing the More Student Housing Now Resolution).

¢ $1,820,338.50 to repay the Workers Compensation Fund for payment of part of the
outstanding principal for the purchase of the 1001, 1007, 1011 University and 1925 Ninth
Street properties

e $25,000 for project manager for major planning initiatives: Pacific Steel Casting and North
Berkeley BART

¢ $20,000 for Age Friendly Berkeley Study

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Amendment: FY 2019 Annual Appropriations Ordinance

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance amending the FY 2019
Annual Appropriations Ordinance No. 7,617-N.S. for fiscal year 2019 based upon
recommended re-appropriation of committed FY 2018 funding and other adjustments
authorized since July 1, 2018, in the amount of $124,106,105 (gross) and
$112,090,748 (net).

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, 981-7000

Action: 0 speakers. M/S/C (Maio/Wengraf) to adopt first reading of Ordinance No.
7,634-N.S. with amended amounts of of $152,385,440 (gross) and $105,727,086
(net). Second reading scheduled for December 4, 2018.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 20

149



Page 24 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

46.

Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the framework and procedures for
standing policy committees of the City Council as part of the City’s legislative
process.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, 981-7000

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to accept revised materials from the City
Manager on Item 46.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett, Worthington.

Councilmember Worthington absent 11:10 p.m. — 11:28 p.m.

Action: 1 speaker. M/S/C (Hahn/Arreguin) to hold over Items 46 and 47 to
December 4, 2019.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain
— None; Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf, Worthington.

Councilmember Wengraf absent 11:17 p.m. — 11:28 p.m.

Council Action Items

47.

Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations

From: Councilmembers Davila and Harrison

Recommendation: Short-term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design
Review Committee (DRC) to research and draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance
requiring tree planting upon completion of new residential construction and certain
alterations. The Planning Commission and DRC should consider the following:
-Establishing appropriate tree planting requirements, e.g. a ratio of trees required per
square foot, for new single-family and multi-family construction, as well as qualifying
alterations to existing residential buildings. -Establishing appropriate tree planting
requirements for larger projects, including options to plant trees at alternative
locations identified by the City and within the City limits. The developer should incur
the cost of maintenance of the trees for a defined period of years after planting.
-Establishing appropriate California Natives species requirements. Refer to the
California Native PlantSociety for a list of eligible trees. https://www.cnps.org/
Financial Implications: Unknown

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Item held over to December 4, 2018.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 21

150



Page 25 of 72

Information Reports

Information Reports

48.

49,

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

City Council Short Term Referral Process — Monthly Update
From: City Manager

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Action: Item held over to December 4, 2018.

Condominium Conversion Program — Annual Report

From: City Manager

Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Received and filed.

LPC NOD: 2355 Telegraph Avenue / #LMSAP2018-0001 for the Cambridge
Apartments Building

From: City Manager

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

Action: Received and filed.

LPC NOD: 2580 Bancroft Way / LMSAP#2017-0007

From: City Manager

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400
Action: Received and filed.

LPC Annual Report to City Council for the period May 2017 to May 2018
From: Landmarks Preservation Commission

Contact: Fatema Crane, Commission Secretary, 981-7400

Action: Received and filed.

City Auditor’s Snapshot: Quarterly Summary Report on Audit
Recommendations

From: Auditor

Contact: Ann-Marie Hogan, Auditor, 981-6750

Action: Received and filed.

Update on Berkeley Library Whistleblowers

From: Councilmember Worthington

Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Iltems Not Listed on the Agenda - 0 speakers.

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 22

151



Page 26 of 72

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Maio/Harrison) to adjourn the meeting in memory of:

1. Tony Wuichet, Berkeley Small Business Owner, Artist, Spouse of City
Auditor Ann-Marie Hogan

2. Mayor George Moscone and Supervisor Harvey Milk on the 40t
Anniversary of their assassination

Persons affected by California wildfires
Palestinians killed in Gaza
Gene Rocklin, Local Activist

I

Amunka Davila, Berkeley Neighbor

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None;
Absent — Bartlett, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste.

Councilmember Droste absent 11:26 p.m. — 11:28 p.m.
Adjourned at 11:28 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular meeting of
November 27, 2018 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Item 44: FY 2018 Year-End Results and FY 2019 First Quarter Budget Update
1. “Fund Underground Study Phase 3” form letters: 148 emails

Undergrounding Supervisor
Kristina Grondahl

Frances Kandl

Nico Pemantle

Linnea Christiani

Rachel Sing

Charles and Gail Drulis
Pamela Blair

. Marilyn and Harry Margulius
10.Robert Mathews

11.Russell and Kathleen Lopes
12.Barbara Lewis

©CONOORWN

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 23

152



Page 27 of 72

13.Walter and Milly Alvarez
14.Fred Dodsworth

15. George Buffington
16.Kim Marder

17.Terry

18. Cynthia Larson

Support for Scooter Share Pilot Program
19. Commission on Aging

Marina Fund Request — One-Time Funding
20.Parks and Waterfront Commission

Cameras in San Pablo Park
21.David Freeling

Stop Pesticides, Save the Trees
22.Isis Feral

lllegal Creation of Additional Lanes of Traffic
23.Val Cipollone

FlixBus Franchise Agreement
24 . Tay Costa, on behalf of FlixBux

Homeless Encampments
25.Pedro Alvarez, Jr.
26.Richard James

Free Speech for Humans
27.Phoebe Anne Sorgen

Trash Pickup at Harriet Tubman Terrace (HTT)
28.Darinxoso Oyamasela

29.Chris Slama, Community Manager of HTT

30. Environmental Health Department

ADA Issues of New Parking Structure
31.Barbara Brust

Renew Item 25 of the October 30, 2018 Agenda and Rescind
32.Carlvin Justice

People’s Park
33.Unknown

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 24
153



Page 28 of 72

Substance Abuse Resources
34.Cassidy Webb

Sidewalk Ordinance
35.Sarah Garrett

RV’s on 8th and Gilman
36.Ann Nguyen

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #23: Request from Bay Area Migrant Welcome Committee for City of
Berkeley welcome and contributions to accompany these migrant asylum seekers
to the US and specifically to the Bay Area

37.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Davila.

Item #25: Comprehensive Investment Policy based on ESG Principles
38.Peace and Justice Commission

Item #26: Short Term Referral to Expedite Components of the More Student
Housing Now Resolution, and budget referral to the annual appropriation
ordinance adoption

39.Vote Yes on ltem 25, form letters: 6 emails

Item #38: ZAB Appeal: 3000 Shattuck Avenue, Use Permit #P2015-0229
40. Supplemental materials, submitted by the Planning Department

Item #41: Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support
Small Businesses
41.Heather Haxo Phillips, on behalf of the Lorin Business District

Item #42: Proposed Amendment to Berkeley’s Minimum Wage Ordinance: Berkeley
Municipal Code Chapter 13.99
42.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Davila

Item #44: FY2018 Year-end Results and FY 2019 First Quarter Budget Update
43. Supplemental materials, submitted by Mayor Arreguin
44 Fund Underground Study Phase 3 form letters: 88 emails

Item #45: Amendment: FY 2019 Annual Appropriations Ordinance
45. Supplemental materials, submitted by the City Clerk’s Department.

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Item #1: Safe Storage of Firearms; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.69
46. Juliet Leftwich

Item #20: Encouraging Long-Term Tenant Stability
47.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Maio

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 25
154



Page 29 of 72

Item #24: Short-Term Referral to City Manager and Office of Energy and
Sustainable Development to Draft Ordinance Amending Berkeley Municipal Code
Chapter 7.52, Reducing Tax Imposed for Qualifying Electrification, Energy
Efficiency and Water Conservation Retrofits

48.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Item #26: Short Term Referral to Expedite Components of the More Student
Housing Now Resolution, and budget referral to the annual appropriation
ordinance adoption

49. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Worthington

50.Vote Yes on Item 26, form letters: 11 emails

Item #30: Refer the Transportation Commission to consider incentives for the
public to use sustainable modes of transportation similarly to Bologna, Italy.
51. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Worthington

Item #32: Refer to the City Manager to consider boycotting Amazon for its role in
tracking immigrants in cooperation with ICE
52. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Worthington

Item #33: Referral to the Transportation Commission: Explore Possibilities for
Initiating Equitable Exchange with Transportation Network Companies (TNC)
53. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Worthington

Item #35: Referral for City Manage to Take a Fresh Look at Repurposing the Old
City Hall Building

54. Similarly worded from letters: 16 emails
55.Summer Brenner
56.Nick Galloro
57.Mike Lee

58.Leah Mazel

59. Miguel

60.Carol Denney
61.Janice Schroeder (2)
62.Jonathan Walden
63. Melissa Quilter
64.Arnold Kessler

65. Eric Friedman
66.David Trachtenberg
67.Bruce Bagnell

68. Jennifer Pearson
69.Tom Luce

70.Kelly Hammargren
71.Julia Cato

72.Sarah Herbold

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 26

155



Page 30 of 72

73. Christopher Kroll
74_Elliot Halpern
75.M. Zint
76.Boona Cheema
77.Geraldine Clifford
78.Ben Buettner
79.Mischa Lorraine
80.Josh Maddox
81.Denah Bookstein
82.David Mayer
83.0sha Neumann
84.Genevieve Wilson
85.Joseph Michael
86.Vera Hannush
87.Nuha Khalfay

Item# 36: Support League of California Cities’ Efforts to “Stop Wandering Weed”
88. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Worthington

Item #38: ZAB Appeal: 3000 Shattuck Avenue, Use Permit #ZP2015-0229
89. Patrick Sheahan

90.Robert Lauriston

91.Gale Garcia

Item #44: FY2018 Year-end Results and FY 2019 First Quarter Budget Update

92.Fund Underground Study Phase 3, similarly-worded form letters: 15 emails

93.Use Mid-Year Budget to Fund Undergrounding Utilities, similarly-worded from
letters: 10 emails

94.Doug

95. Peter Barglow

Item #41: Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support

Small Businesses

96.100 Communications submitted via Berkeley Considers, includes summary
information

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #1: Safe Storage of Firearms; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.69
97. Students Demand Action Berkeley High School

Item #17: North Berkeley BART Site Recommendations

98. David Ying
Item #22: Budget Referral: Gun Buybck and Art of Peace Program
99. Unknown
Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 27

156



Page 31 of 72

Item #23: Request from Bay Area Migrant Welcome Committee for City of
Berkeley welcome and contributions to accompany these migrant asylum seekers
to the US and specifically to the Bay Area

100. Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Davila

Item #26: Short Term Referral to Expedite Components of the More Student
Housing Now Resolution, and budget referral to the annual appropriation
ordinance adoption

101. Student Housing form letters: 16 emails

102. Marcus Pasimio

103. Igor Tregub

104. Dana Alpert

105. Dohee Kim

Item #35: Referral for City Manage to Take a Fresh Look at Repurposing the Old
City Hall Building
106. David MacFadden-Elliott
107. Robin McDonnell and David Mayer, on behalf of the McKinley Addison
Allston Grant Neighborhood Association
108. Ben Buettner
109. Cindy Shamban
110. Nilang
111. Tom Rothschild
112. Chimey Lee
113. Thomas Lord
114. Ezra Alanis
115. Jean Cain
116. Regina Kim
117. Martha Knobler
118. Idalys Perez
119. Amanda Reilly
120. Gael Alcock
121. Barbara Brust
122. Moni Law
123. Lisa Carey

Item #38: ZAB Appeal: 3000 Shattuck Avenue, Use Permit #P2015-0229
124. Patrick Sheahan, Commissioner of the Zoning Adjustments Board
125. Nathan George
126. Christine Schwartz
127. Athan Magganas
128. Mark Rhoades

Item #41: Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support
Small Businesses
129. Presentation, submitted the Office of Economic Development

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 28

157



Page 32 of 72

Item #43: Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning
Department on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program

130.

Charley Pappas, District 6, Berkeley Cannabis Commission

Item #44: FY2018 Year-end Results and FY 2019 First Quarter Budget Update

131.
132.
133.
134.
135.
136.
137.
138.
139.
140.
141.

Helaine and Blair Prentice
Bruce Winkelman
Ray White

Robert Hester
Julian Waldo
Tom Lent

Dan Leaverton
Colleen Busch
Charles Ferguson
Lisa Lutzker
Victoria Legg

Item #46: Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees

142.

Revised material, submitted by the City Clerk’s Department

HS Lordships Remodel

143.

D. Caraway, Architect

Berkeley Historical Society’s Holiday Open House

144.

Unknown

Tuesday, November 27, 2018 MINUTES Page 29

158



Page 33 of 72
Attachment 3

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, December 4, 2018
6:00 PM

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — LINDA MAIO DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — KRISS WORTHINGTON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  6:05 p.m.

Present: Maio, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste,
Arreguin

Absent: None

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Recognition of outgoing City Councilmembers and City Auditor.

Recess 7:55p.m. — 8:15 p.m.
City Manager Comments: None
City Auditor Comments: None

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 8 speakers.

Consent Calendar

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Iltems Only: 4 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as
indicated.
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 1
159



Page 34 of 72

Consent Calendar — Continued Business

A.

Safe Storage of Firearms; Adding Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.69
(Continued from November 27, 2018)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,633-N.S. adding
Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.69 regarding safe storage of firearms.

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington,
Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Farimah Brown, City Attorney, 981-6950

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,633-N.S.

Amendment: FY 2019 Annual Appropriations Ordinance (Continued from
November 27, 2018)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,634-N.S. amending
the FY 2019 Annual Appropriations Ordinance No. 7,617-N.S. for fiscal year 2019
based upon recommended re-appropriation of committed FY 2018 funding and other
adjustments authorized since July 1, 2018, in the amount of $152,385,440 (gross)
and $105,727,086 (net).

First Reading Vote: Ayes — Maio, Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington,
Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain — None; Absent — Bartlett.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, 981-7000

Action: Adopted second reading of Ordinance No. 7,634-N.S.

Consent Calendar

1. Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on December 4, 2018
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached
to staff report) that will be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the
requesting department or division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold
will be returned to Council for final approval.
Financial Implications: Parks Tax Fund - $375,000
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, 981-7300
Action: Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 2

160



Page 35 of 72

Consent Calendar

2. Jointly Apply for and Accept $1.3M in State of California No Place Like Home
Program (NPLH) Funds and Award NPLH Technical Assistance Funds to the
Berkeley Way Development
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt three Resolutions that enable the proposed Berkeley Way
development project to access State of California No Place Like Home program
funds by:

1. Authorizing the City Manager to apply for and accept the City’s Noncompetitive
Allocation of State of California No Place Like Home (NPLH) housing program funds.
The Department of Housing and Community Development requires this resolution
before the City can submit an application for a specific development project;

2. Authorizing the City Manager to prepare and submit a joint application with the
proposed Berkeley Way development for Berkeley’s $1,350,299 in State No Place
Like Home funds;

3. Awarding $65,000 in State No Place Like Home (NPLH) Technical Assistance
program funding to the proposed Berkeley Way development; and

4. Authorizing the City Manager to take actions needed for the City’s participation in
the No Place Like Home program by adopting state-required terms about submitting
applications, entering into the State’s Standard Agreement and other documents,
and providing mental health services for tenants of the resulting housing. The
Department of Housing and Community Development requires this resolution before
the City can submit an application for a specific development project.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400

68,690—N.S. (Accept NPLH Funds); Resolution No. 68,691-N.S. (Award NPLH
Funding); and Resolution No. 68,692—-N.S. (Participate in NPLH).

3. Reserving Up to an Additional $12.5M in Housing Trust Funds for the Berkeley
Way Development
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution reserving up to an additional $12.5M in
Housing Trust Funds for the potential Berkeley Way development, bringing the total
reserved amount to up to $23.5 million, contingent on the development’s securing full
funding and any required land use approvals and permits in the next twenty-four
months.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,693—-N.S.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 3
161



Page 36 of 72

Consent Calendar

4. 2019 Health Plan Changes
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions:
1. Approving rates for the Kaiser Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) health
plans as follows: (a) -0.44% decrease for Kaiser S1 Group #60 (Active Group); (b) -
0.95% decrease for the HSA-Qualified Deductible HMO Plan (Active Group); (c) -
3.38% increase for Pre-Medicare Eligible Retirees (Retiree Group); and (d) 6.08%
increase for Post-65 Senior Advantage (Retiree Group).
2. Approving rates for the Sutter Health Plus health plans as follows: (a) 5.04%
increase for HMO Group (Active Group); and (b) 9.13% increase for Pre-Medicare
HMO Group (Retiree Group).
The health plan premium rates will be effective for the period of January 1, 2019
through December 31, 2019.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, 981-6807
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,694—N.S. (Kaiser); and Resolution No. 68,695—
N.S. (Sutter Health) revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2 to correct 2018
Monthly Premium Rates and correlating percentages for Kaiser Senior Advantage
Retiree Group Plan.

5. Fee Assessment — State of California Self-Insurance Fund (Workers’
Compensation Program)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing payment to the State of
California Department of Industrial Relations for Fiscal Year 2019 for administering
the Workers’ Compensation Program, in an amount not to exceed $219,000.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,696—N.S.

6. Contract No. 10853A Amendment: Atera Prime, Inc. DBA Emgage, Inc. for
Sharepoint and Intranet Implementation Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 10853A with Atera Prime, Inc. DBA Emgage Inc. for
implementation services of Emgage’s Sharepoint and Intranet implementation
services, for an amount not-to-exceed $72,000 and a total contract value not-to-
exceed $156,275 from March 28, 2018 to June 30, 2020.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Savita Chaudhary, Information Technology, 981-6500
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,697—-N.S.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 4
162



Page 37 of 72

Consent Calendar

Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit an
application to the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle)
for the Beverage Container Recycling City/County Payment Program for the period
of December 4, 2018 through December 3, 2023; to accept funds and execute all
necessary applications, payment requests, agreements and any amendments; and
to appropriate funding for related expenditures, subject to securing the program
funds.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,698—N.S.

Adopt a Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Program

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the terms and conditions for a
Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Franchise Program.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Maio) to accept revised material from staff on Item 8.
Vote: All Ayes.

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 12 speakers. M/S/C (Worthington/Hahn) to adopt

Resolution No. 68,699-N.S. amended to include provisions for privacy, reporting to
Council, public survey, and compliance measures and refer comments from the
Council to staff for consideration.

Vote: Ayes — Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste, Arreguin; Noes

— Maio; Abstain — Davila.

Council Consent Items

9.

Appointment of Vice-President of the Council
From: Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation: Rescind Resolution No. 67,768-N.S. and adopt a Resolution
establishing a one-year term for the office of Vice-President of the Council, to be
appointed at the first Council meeting in December every year.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100
Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 3 speakers. M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to adopt
Resolution No. 68,700-N.S. as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2 to allow
for appointments over a two-year period.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — Davila.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 5

163



Page 38 of 72

Council Consent Items

10. Appointment of Councilmember Sophie Hahn as Vice-President of the Council
From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmember Bartlett
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution appointing Councilmember Sophie Hahn to
be the Vice-President of the Council for a term of one year beginning December
2018 to December 2019.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100
Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 2 speakers. M/S/C (Maio/Worthington) to adopt
Resolution No. 68,701-N.S. as revised in Supplemental Reports Packet #2 to
appoint Councilmember Wengraf as Vice-President of the Council starting December
2018 and Councilmember Hahn starting December 2019.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — Davila.

11.  Revitalization of the Civic Center Park Fountain
From: Mayor Arreguin, Councilmembers Harrison and Hahn
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to work with the Turtle Island Fountain
Project in developing a plan to revitalize the fountain at Martin Luther King Jr. Civic
Center Park.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100
Action: Councilmember Bartlett added as a co-sponsor. Approved recommendation
amended to refer to staff to consider this referral as part of the Civic Center Park
visioning RFP.

12.  Authorizing Additional Inclement Weather Shelter from December 2018-April
2019
From: Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation:
1. Authorize the City Manager to open an additional as-needed inclement weather
Winter Shelter from December 2018-April 2019 to provide a safe, dry indoor location
for our unhoused community;
2. Approving the allocation of $60,000 in funding for this additional inclement weather
shelter with funds from the June 26, 2018 budget appropriation for an expanded
Emergency Shelter program or by state Homeless Emergency Aid Program (HEAP)
funding; and
3. Authorizing the City Manager to amend Contract No. 10577B with Dorothy Day
House for the operation of the as-needed inclement weather shelter.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100
Action: Councilmembers Davila, Hahn, and Bartlett added as co-sponsors.
Approved recommendation.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 6

164



Page 39 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

C. Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support Small
Businesses (Continued from November 27, 2018)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and adopt the first reading of an
Ordinance amending the Berkeley Municipal Code to streamline and clarify the
permitting process for small businesses in commercial districts by:
1. Reducing the amount of parking required for businesses moving into existing
commercial spaces;
2. Simplifying food service categories by reducing them from three to one;
3. Reducing permitting time and costs for small businesses that request a change of
use in existing commercial spaces;
4. Clarifying the permit process for new business types that may not be specifically
defined in the City’s zoning rules;
5. Making ‘commercial recreation’ uses (such as bowling alleys, miniature golf
courses or ping pong clubs) easier to permit in commercial districts; and
6. Streamlining the permit process and providing clear performance standards for
restaurants that wish to serve beer and wine.
The ordinance would amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapters 23E.16, 23E.36,
23E.40, 23E.44, 23E.48, 23E.52, 23E.56, 23E.60, 23E.64, 23E.68, and 23E.98.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Jordan Klein,
Economic Development, 981-7530
Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 3 speakers.
M/S/C (Wengraf/Droste) to close the public hearing.
Vote: Ayes — Maio, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
None; Abstain — None; Absent — Davila, Worthington.
Councilmember Worthington absent 10:05 p.m. — 10:29 p.m.
Councilmember Davila absent 10:25 p.m. — 10:33 p.m.
Action: M/S/C (Droste/Maio) to adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. as
proposed by staff and amended as follows:

o Refer to staff and the Planning Commission to consider amendments related
to beer and wine sales in the M District.

e Retain the 300-foot noticing requirement for all projects whose level of review
will be reduced from UP(PH) to AUP; and report to Council on the effects of
the requirement after one year.

e Retain the requirement for findings for AUPs for food establishments in the C-
W district.Second reading scheduled for December 11, 2018.

Vote: All Ayes.
Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Hahn) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:30 p.m.
Vote: All Ayes.
Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 7

165



Page 40 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

13.

Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and West
Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion:

1. Adopt a Resolution amending the General Plan land use designations for a portion
of 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street from a Manufacturing designation to
Avenue Commercial, and amending the West Berkeley Plan land use designation
from Mixed Use / Light Industrial to General Commercial (Amendments affect
Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs): 054-1763-001-03, 054-1763-010-00); and

2. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance:

a. Rezoning a portion of the project site from Mixed Use — Light Industrial (MU-LI) to
West Berkeley Commercial (C-W) (Amendments affect APNs 054-1763-001-03 and
054-1763-010-00); and

b. Amending the C-W District development standards to allow for a 4-story / 50-foot
tall building on the subject property (Amendments affect APNs 054-1763-001-03,
054-1763-010-00, and 054-1763-003-03); and

3. Adopt a Resolution adopting findings under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) that determine how potential impacts are to be mitigated, to adopt an
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration that concludes that all impacts of the
rezone and re-designations can be reduced to a less-than-significant level under
CEQA, and to adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program that ensures the
measures will be implemented.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Maio) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to 11:45
p.m.

Vote: Ayes — Maio, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Worthington, Arreguin; Noes — Davila,
Harrison, Droste.

Public Testimony: The Mayor opened the public hearing. 10 speakers.

M/S/C (Wengraf/Harrison) to continue the public hearing to a date certain: December
11, 2018.

Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 8

166



Page 41 of 72

Action Calendar — Continued Business

D.

Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees (Continued from
November 27, 2018. Item contains supplemental materials)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the framework and procedures for
standing policy committees of the City Council as part of the City’s legislative
process.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, 981-7000

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to hold over Items D and E to December 11,
2018.

Vote: All Ayes.

Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning Department
on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program (Continued from November 27, 2018)

From: Councilmembers Bartlett, Worthington, and Davila

Recommendation: That the Council provides requested direction to the Planning
Department on how to proceed with the Equity Program recommended by the
Cannabis Commission in the October 9, 2018 staff report. Recommending allowing 4
equity applicants and 2 non-equity applicants to apply and be processed by the City
within 2 years.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130

Action: Item E held over to December 11, 2018.

Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations (Continued from November 27, 2018)

From: Councilmembers Davila and Harrison

Recommendation: Short-term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design
Review Committee (DRC) to research and draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance
requiring tree planting upon completion of new residential construction and certain
alterations. The Planning Commission and DRC should consider the following:
-Establishing appropriate tree planting requirements, e.g. a ratio of trees required per
square foot, for new single-family and multi-family construction, as well as qualifying
alterations to existing residential buildings. -Establishing appropriate tree planting
requirements for larger projects, including options to plant trees at alternative
locations identified by the City and within the City limits. The developer should incur
the cost of maintenance of the trees for a defined period of years after planting.
-Establishing appropriate California Natives species requirements. Refer to the
California Native PlantSociety for a list of eligible trees. https://www.cnps.org/
Financial Implications: Unknown

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Item F held over to December 11, 2018.

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 9

167



Page 42 of 72

Action Calendar — Continued Business

G.

City Council Short Term Referral Process — Monthly Update (Continued from
November 27, 2018)

From: City Manager

Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900

Action: Amended to add back to the list Item C from the 12/5/2017 agenda titled
Ministerial Approval of Zoning-Compliant Affordable Housing. Moved to Consent
Calendar.

Action Calendar — New Business

14.

15a.

Presentation: Pedestrian Master Plan Update

From: City Manager

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Worthington) to refer Item 14 to the Agenda Committee for
future scheduling.

Vote: All Ayes.

Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended Green Stormwater
Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or Properties

From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission

Recommendation: Since the drought-storm-flooding cycle is predicted to get worse,
refer to the City Manager to develop and implement measures to help reduce runoff
from private property when rain exceeds two inches in a 24-hour period. The City
Manager and staff should consider the following: - Comply beyond the State and
Alameda County current requirements; -Encourage the treating and detaining of
runoff up to approximately the 85th per-centile of water deposited in a 24-hour
period; -Establish site design measures that include minimizing impervious surfaces;
-Require homeowners to include flooding offsets in preparing properties for sale; -
Offer option(s) for property owners to fund in-lieu centralized off-site storm-water
retention facilities that would hold an equivalent volume of runoff; -Require
abatements for newly paved areas over a specific size; -Make exceptions for
properties that offer significantly below-market rent or sale prices; -Authorize a fee
for all new construction or for title transfer to cover the cost of required compliance
inspections. -Incorporate these measures for private property with similar measures
for Public Works, while coordinating with EBMUD, BUSD, UCB and LBNL.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 10

168



Page 43 of 72

Action Calendar — New Business

15b. Companion Report to Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended
Green Stormwater Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or
Properties
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Express appreciation for the intent of the Community
Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC) recommendation to develop and
implement measures to help reduce runoff from private property when rain exceeds
two inches in a 24-hour period, and allow staff to continue existing efforts to
implement Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit regulations in coordination with the
14 other local governments and agencies that participate in the Alameda Countywide
Clean Water Program.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Phillip
Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Items 15a and 15b held over to December 11, 2018.

16. Adopt an Ordinance to amend BMC Chapter 3.80 allow Mayor and City Council
employees serve as a Commissioner
From: Councilmember Worthington
Recommendation: Adopt revisions to Chapter 3.80 in Berkeley Municipal Code
(BMC) concerning Membership On Boards And Commissions to allow City Staff
and/or Mayor and City Council employees to serve as a Commissioner by repealing
section 3.80.030.
Financial Implications: Minimal
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170
Action: Item 16 removed from the agenda by Councilmember Worthington.

Information Reports

17.  City Council Referral Process — 2018 Interim Update
From: City Manager
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900
Action: Received and filed.

18. Civic Arts Commission 2018-2019 Work Plan
From: Civic Arts Commission

Contact: Jennifer Lovvorn, Commission Secretary, 981-7530
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Items Not Listed on the Agenda - 0 speakers.

Adjournment

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 11
169



Page 44 of 72

Action: M/S/C (Harrison/Maio) to adjourn the meeting in memory of:

1. Deanna Despain, Former Berkeley City Clerk
2. George H. W. Bush, 415t President of the United States

Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 11:44 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular meeting of
December 4, 2018 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Okinawa Environmental Justice organization
1. Diana Bohn

Teenager and Grandson of Holocaust Survivors Demand Climate Action
2. Jane Kelly

Adding Attic Insulation Requires Hardwired Smoke and CO Detectors
3. David Lerman

Open Shelters Now
4. Adam Kol

Mayor’s Comments on November 9th, J Article
5. Carol Sanders (2)

2-1-1 Monthly Report for October 2018
6. Eden I&R

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #13: Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and
West Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review

7. Mitchel Bornstein

Item #18: Civic Arts Commission 2018-2019 Work Plan
8. Gina Moreland
9. Laurie Rich

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 12
170



Page 45 of 72

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #4: 2019 Health Plan Changes
10.Revised material, submitted by Human Resources

Item #8: Adopt a Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Program
11.Bryce Nesbitt
12.Irene Rosethal

Item #9: Appointment of Vice-President of the Council
13.Revised material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #10: Appointment of Councilmember Sophie Hahn as Vice-President of the
Council
14.Revised material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #13: Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and
West Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review

15. Patrick Sheahan

16.Rick Auerback

Item E: Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning
Department on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of
an Equity Program

17.Brian CIiff

18. Jerry McDaniel

19.Bill Hsu

20.Charles Pappas

Item F: Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations

21.Miranda Ewell, Bernard Marszalek and Stephen Most

Item #15a: Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended Green Stormwater
Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or Properties
22.Jim McGrath

Item #16: Adopt an Ordinance to amend BMC Chapter 3.80 allow Mayor and City
Council employees serve as a Commissioner
23.Evan McDonald

24.Sharon Rudnick

25.Carol Strand

26. April Gilbert

27.Jack Kurzwell

28.Marti Grubb

29.Mark Stuhr

30.Fran Haselsteiner

31.Don Melandry

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 13
171



Page 46 of 72

32.Eric Friedman
33.Jessica Behrman
34.Steven Berger
35.Wende Micco
36.Judy Hunt
37.Barbara Gilbert

Item #18: Civic Arts Commission 2018-2019 Work Plan
38.Paula Shryne

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #8: Adopt a Shared Electric Scooter Pilot Program
39. Revised material, submitted by Public Works
40.George Porter

Item #C: Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support
Small Businesses

41.Presentation, submitted by Office of Economic Development

42.Loni Gray

43.Nicole Meyer and Chris Meyer

Item #13: Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and
West Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review

44 . Presentation, submitted by Planning

Item E: Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning
Department on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of
an Equity Program

45.Carol Denney

Item F: Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations

46.Theo Posselt

Item #14: Pedestrian Master Plan Update
47.Presentation, submitted by Transportation Department

Item #16: Adopt an Ordinance to amend BMC Chapter 3.80 allow Mayor and City
Council employees serve as a Commissioner
48.Carol Denney

Mobility Systems
49. Avotcja Jiltonilro

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 14
172



Page 47 of 72

In Appreciation of Councilmember Maio
50.Friends of Ohlone Park

Fountain Project at MLK Civic Center Park
51.Unknown

Tuesday, December 4, 2018 MINUTES Page 15
173



Page 48 of 72
Attachment 4

MINUTES
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL

Thursday, December 6, 2018

4:00 P.M.
SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — LINDA MAIO DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — KRISS WORTHINGTON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

Preliminary Matters

Roll Call:  4:10 p.m.
Present: Davila, Droste, Hahn, Harrison, Wengraf

Absent: Bartlett, Maio, Worthington, Arreguin

Mayor Arreguin present at 5:16 p.m.

Worksession

1.

Climate Action Plan Update

From: City Manager

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400
Action: 3 speakers. Presentation made and discussion held.

Semi-Annual Report on Measure T1 City Infrastructure Bond Program
From: City Manager

Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700;

Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: 2 speakers. Presentation made and discussion held.

Recess from 6:27 p.m. - 6:41 p.m.
Update on the Berkeley Strategic Plan
From: City Manager

Contact: Paul Buddenhagen, City Manager's Office, 981-7000
Action: 1 speaker. Presentation made and discussion held.

Thursday, December 6, 2018 MINUTES Page 1 174



Page 49 of 72

Adjournment

Action: M/S/C (Droste/Wengraf) to adjourn the meeting.
Vote: Ayes — Davila, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes — None; Abstain —
None; Absent — Maio, Bartlett, Worthington.

Adjourned at 7:26 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the special meeting of
December 6, 2018 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

April Richardson, Assistant City Clerk

Communications

° None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

° None

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2
Item #1: Climate Action Plan Update
1. Kelly Hammargren

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #1: Climate Action Plan Update
2. Presentation, submitted by the Planning Department

Item #2: Semi-Annual Report on Measure T1 City Infrastructure Bond Program
3. Presentation, submitted by Public Works and Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
4. Attachment 1 of the above presentation, submitted by PW and PRW.

Item #3: Update on the Berkeley Strategic Plan
5. Presentation, submitted by the City Manager’s Office

Thursday, December 6, 2018 MINUTES Page 2 175



Page 50 of 72
Attachment 5

MINUTES
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, December 11, 2018
6:00 PM

SCHOOL DISTRICT BOARD ROOM - 1231 ADDISON STREET, BERKELEY, CA 94702

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR
Councilmembers:

DISTRICT 1 — RASHI KESARWANI DISTRICT 5 — SOPHIE HAHN
DISTRICT 2 — CHERYL DAVILA DISTRICT 6 — SUSAN WENGRAF
DISTRICT 3 — BEN BARTLETT DISTRICT 7 — RIGEL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 4 — KATE HARRISON DISTRICT 8 — LORI DROSTE

Preliminary Matters
Roll Call:  6:07 p.m.

Present: Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin

Absent: None

Ceremonial Matters:
1. Swearing in of newly elected and re-elected officials.
2. Recognition of Judith Montell, Berkeley Filmmaker

3. Recognition of Berkeley High African American Studies Program
City Manager Comments: None

City Auditor Comments:

The City Auditor provided general introductory remarks about audit priorities and highlighted
items #13 and #15 on the agenda regarding street paving and future steps on these audits.

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: 10 speakers.

Consent Calendar
Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Iltems Only: 28 speakers.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to adopt the Consent Calendar in one motion except as
indicated.
Vote: All Ayes.

Recess 8:12 p.m. — 8:32 p.m.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 1
176



Page 51 of 72

Consent Calendar — Continued Business

A. Referral Response: Modifications to the Zoning Ordinance to Support Small
Businesses (Continued from December 4, 2018)
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt second reading of Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. amending
the Berkeley Municipal Code to streamline and clarify the permitting process for
small businesses in commercial districts by: 1. Reducing the amount of parking
required for businesses moving into existing commercial spaces; 2. Simplifying food
service categories by reducing them from three to one; 3. Reducing permitting time
and costs for small businesses that request a change of use in existing commercial
spaces; 4. Clarifying the permit process for new business types that may not be
specifically defined in the City’s zoning rules; 5. Making ‘commercial recreation’ uses
(such as bowling alleys, miniature golf courses or ping pong clubs) easier to permit in
commercial districts; and 6. Streamlining the permit process and providing clear
performance standards for restaurants that wish to serve beer and wine.
The ordinance would amend Berkeley Municipal Code Chapters 23E.16, 23E.36,
23E.40, 23E.44, 23E.48, 23E.52, 23E.56, 23E.60, 23E.64, 23E.68, and 23E.98.
First Reading Vote: All Ayes.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Jordan Klein,
Economic Development, 981-7530

Action: Moved to the Action Calendar. 1 speaker. M/S/C (Droste/Wengraf) to adopt
a new first reading of the ordinance amended to remove the noticing requirements
for AUP projects. Second reading of Ordinance No. 7,635-N.S. scheduled for
January 22, 2019.

Action: On the severed portion to remove the additional noticing requirement for
AUP projects.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin;
Noes — Davila, Hahn.

Action: On the severed portion to adopt the new first reading of the ordinance.
Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 2
177



Page 52 of 72

Consent Calendar

1. Confirming the Results of the November 6, 2018, General Municipal Election
From: City Manager
Recommendation:
1. Adopt a Resolution: a) Confirming the results of the November 6, 2018, General
Municipal Election; and b) Declaring the passage of Measure O — General Obligation
Bond for Affordable Housing, Measure P — Transfer Tax Measure, Measure Q —
Amendments to the Berkeley Rent Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause
Ordinance, and Measure R — Advisory Measure - Vision 2050.
2. Adopt two Ordinances amending the Berkeley Municipal Code to incorporate the
passage of Measure P — Transfer Tax Measure, and Measure Q - Amendments to
the Berkeley Rent Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause Ordinance.
3. Adopt two Resolutions codifying the text of Measure O — General Obligation Bond
for Affordable Housing, and Measure R — Advisory Measure - Vision 2050.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900
Action: 1. Adopted Resolution No. 68,702—-N.S. (Confirming Results) as revised in
Supplemental Reports Packet #2 to include the final certified precinct-by-precinct
results and the certifications by the Registrar of Voters and the City Clerk ; 2.
Adopted Ordinance No. 7,636—N.S. (Measure P) and Ordinance No. 7,637—N.S.
(Measure Q); 3. Adopted Resolution No. 68,703—-N.S. (Measure O) and Resolution
No. 68,704—-N.S. (Measure R).

2. Minutes for Approval
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the Council meeting of November 13,
2018 (regular).
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900
Action: Approved minutes as submitted.

3. Annual Commission Attendance and Meeting Frequency Report
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving a revised commission meeting
frequency schedule, changing the reporting period for the annual attendance report,
and accepting the annual attendance report.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, 981-6900
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,705-N.S.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 3
178



Page 53 of 72

Consent Calendar

4. Contract: UC Berkeley Economic and Fiscal Impact Study
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract, for an amount not to exceed $150,000, and any amendments thereto, with
a vendor to be determined, to study the economic and fiscal impacts of the University
of California, Berkeley on the City of Berkeley.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, 981-7530
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,706—N.S.

5. Contract: Wittman for Fire Inspection and Emergency Response Billing and
Related Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract and any amendments with Wittman Enterprises LLC (Contractor) to provide
the following services for the Berkeley Fire Department (Department) from January
1, 2019 to December 31, 2023, in an amount of $3,655,677, with an option to extend
for ten additional years in two five-year increments in the amount of $2,055,233 for
the first option term, and $2,157,995 for the second optional term, for a total contract
amount not to exceed $7,868,905: -Emergency response billing, and -Fire inspection
billing, and -Related hardware, software, and program oversight.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: David Brannigan, Fire, 981-3473
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,707-N.S.

6. Contract No. 9111E Amendment: City Data Services to add a Housing Trust
Fund Monitoring and Inspection Module
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 9111E with City Data Services (CDS) for an online data management
system through June 30, 2020 to add $35,860 for ongoing monitoring and a new
monitoring module, bringing the total contract amount to $198,630, and execute any
amendments with CDS for ongoing maintenance of the community agency online
applications and reporting.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,708-N.S.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 4
179



Page 54 of 72

Consent Calendar

7. Memorandum of Understanding: Public Employees Union PEU Local 1
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions:
1. Approving a new twenty (20) month Memorandum of Understanding (hereafter
referred to as “MOU”) with Public Employees Local One (hereafter referred to as the
“Union”) with a term of October 21, 2018 through June 27, 2020 and authorizing the
City Manager to execute and implement the terms and conditions of employment set
forth in the new MOU; and
2. Approving a new salary resolution for Representation Units M, P1, and P2 that
implement the new salary levels negotiated in the new labor agreement and
rescinding Resolution No. 67,485-N.S. Also, authorize the City Manager to make non
substantive edits to the format and language of the Memorandum of Understanding
in alignment with Council Direction, the tentative agreements and conforming to legal
requirements.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: LaTanya Bellow, Human Resources, 981-6800
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,709-N.S. (MOU) and Resolution No. 68,710—
N.S. (Salary).

8. Contract: Hyphae Design Laboratory for Citywide Restroom Assessment
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her
designee to execute an expenditure contract, and any amendments or extensions
with Hyphae Design Laboratory (“Hyphae”) to perform professional consulting
services for the Citywide Restroom Assessment Project in an amount not to exceed
$148,215 for the period January 1, 2019 to July 31, 2020.
Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, 981-6700
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,711-N.S.

9. Contract No. 10874A Amendment: Street Level Advisors for Development Fee
Feasibility Analysis
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an
amendment to Contract No. 10874A with Street Level Advisors, to analyze the
impact of fees and other variables on development project feasibility and to gather
additional stakeholder input, increasing the contract amount by $30,000 to a new
total not-to-exceed contract amount of $75,400, and extending the contract period to
December 31, 2019.
Financial Implications: See report
Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,712—-N.S.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 5
180



Page 55 of 72

Consent Calendar

10. Contract: Disability Access Consultants for ADA Self Evaluation and Transition
Plan
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
contract for with Disability Access Consultants to provide an updated and
comprehensive Title || Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Self-Evaluation and
Transition Plan for one year starting February 1, 2018, in an amount not to exceed
$406,600.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,713—-N.S.

11. Contract No. 10552A Amendment: Revel Environmental Manufacturing, Inc. for
on-call Storm Water Maintenance Services
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend
Contract No. 10552A with Revel Environmental Manufacturing, Inc. for on-call storm
water maintenance services, increasing the current contract by $225,000 for a total
contract amount not to exceed $500,000.

Financial Implications: See report
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,714—-N.S.

12. Contract No. 9893B Amendment: ABM Industries for Continuing Electric
Vehicle Charging Station Operations and Extended Maintenance Program
From: City Manager
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a
five-year contract amendment with AMB Industries to purchase Electric Vehicle (EV)
charging stations, provide EV network operations and maintenance, plus extended
warranty services, in an amount of $366,962 for a total Contract not to exceed
$413,940 through June 30, 2023.

Financial Implications: Various Funds - $366,962
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,715-N.S.
Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 6

181



Page 56 of 72

Consent Calendar

13.

14.

15.

Contract: Gallagher & Burk, Inc. for FY 2018 Measure M Street Rehabilitation
Project

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving plans and specifications for the
FY 2018 Measure M Street Rehabilitation Project, Specification No. 18-11179-C (Re-
Issued); accepting the bid of Gallagher & Burk, Inc. as the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder; and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments, extensions or other change orders until completion of the project in
accordance with the approved plans and specifications in an amount not to exceed
$3,863,909.

Financial Implications: Street Capital Improvement Program Fund - $3,863,909
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,716—N.S.

Letter of Support on Behalf of SB 3342 - Housing, Opportunity, Mobility, and
Equity Act of 2018

From: Housing Advisory Commission

Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to send a letter of support on behalf of
proposed SB 3342, referred to as the HOME Act.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Amy Davidson, Commission Secretary, 981-5400

Action: Approved recommendation.

Public Works Commission Recommendation for the Five-Year Street
Rehabilitation Plan

From: Public Works Commission

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution that recommends approval of the Five-Year
Street Rehabilitation Plan for FY2019 to FY2023 as proposed by Staff.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Nisha Patel, Commission Secretary, 981-6300

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. 8 speakers. M/S/C (Harrison/Droste) to adopt
Resolution No. 68,717-N.S. that recommends approval of the Five-Year Street
Rehabilitation Plan for FY2019 to FY2023 as proposed by Staff amended to include
Milvia Street from Blake Street to Russell Street in FY2019. Provide direction to staff
and request additional information from staff as follows:

Review the Plan after two years

Consult the Transportation Commission on the Plan

Provide the Lifecycle analysis and the Bike Plan overlay analysis

Consider a two-year bid process

Annual report to Council on Measure M projects

Report to Council on the funding sources for scheduled and completed paving
projects

Vote: All Ayes.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 7

182



Page 57 of 72

Council Consent Items

16a.

16b.

Referral Response: Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction
Ordinance

From: Zero Waste Commission

Recommendation: Review the results of the Zero Waste Commission’s community
outreach and analysis provided in response to Council’s referral and consider
incorporating the Zero Waste Commission recommendations for improvements into
the referred draft proposed Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction
Ordinance.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Heidi Obermeit, Commission Secretary, 981-6300

Companion Report: Referral Response: Proposed Single Use Foodware and
Litter Reduction Ordinance

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Staff appreciates the Zero Waste Commission’s diligent and
thoughtful work and requests that Council refer their recommendations for the
proposed Berkeley Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance to the City
Manager to review, to quantify the potential impacts, and to report back to Council
with an analysis.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Moved to Action Calendar. M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to hold over ltems
16a and 16b, Iltem D, and ltem 27 to January 22, 2019.
Vote: All Ayes.

Council Consent Items

17. Seating Arrangement for Councilmembers during City Council Meetings
From: Mayor Arreguin
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution changing the seating placement of City
Councilmembers as follows on the dais (From left to right, facing the dais):
Kesarwani, Harrison, Bartlett, Hahn, Arreguin, Wengraf, Droste, Davila, Robinson.
Financial Implications: None
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100
Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,718-N.S.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 8

183



Page 58 of 72

Council Consent Items

18.

19.

Eighth Annual Martin Luther King Jr. Celebration: City Sponsorship and
Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of
Such Fund

From: Mayor Arreguin, and Councilmembers Davila and Bartlett
Recommendation:

1. Adopt a Resolution co-sponsoring the 8th Annual Martin Luther King Jr.
Celebration Breakfast on January 21, 2019.

2. Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not to exceed $500
per Councilmember including $500 from Mayor Arreguin, to the Rotary Endowment,
the fiscal sponsor of the 8th Annual Martin Luther King Jr. celebration, with funds
relinquished to the City’s general fund for this purpose from the discretionary Council
Office Budgets of Mayor Arreguin and any other Councilmembers who would like to
contribute.

Financial Implications: Mayor's Discretionary Funds - $500

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,719-N.S. (Co-sponsor) and Resolution No.
68,720-N.S. (Expenditure) amended to include contributions from the following
Councilmembers up to amounts listed: Councilmember Wengraf - $500;
Councilmember Droste - $500; Councilmember Davila - $200; Councilmember
Harrison - $250; Councilmember Robinson - $150; Councilmember Hahn - $200.

Funding for United Against Hate Week Event

From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmember Bartlett

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution retroactively sponsoring the November 11,
2018 United Against Hate Week Kick-Off, waiving city fees and costs associated with
the event and authorizing reimbursement of $7,725 for the cost of stage and
production for the event.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Action: Councilmember Wengraf added as a co-sponsor. Adopted Resolution No.
68,721-N.S.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 9

184



Page 59 of 72

Council Consent Items

20.

Establishment of Traffic Circle Policy Task Force

From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmembers Davila, Bartlett, and Droste
Recommendation: Establish a Traffic Circle Policy Task Force comprised of
representatives of the Parks and Waterfront Commission, Transportation
Commission, community representatives from the neighborhoods where traffic
circles are located, and city staff in the Parks and Public Works Departments as
follows: City Staff, 1 representative from the Transportation Department and 1
representative from the Parks Department; Commissions, 1 representative from the
Parks and Waterfront Commission and 1 representative from the Transportation
Commission; Community, Several representatives from the neighborhoods currently
maintaining traffic circles, chosen from geographically diverse parts of the city and 1
representative from Berkeley Partners for Parks.

The charge of this Task Force is to: a) Evaluate the City’s current traffic circle
vegetation policy; and b) Conduct a community led process to update that policy to
ensure pedestrian/bicycle/ vehicle safety and preserve community efforts to beautify
traffic circles.

Task Force activities may include, but are not limited to: -Determine appropriate
characteristics and parameters for allowed plantings; -Develop policy that ensures
lines of sight and other important safety considerations; -Conducting a survey of
current traffic circles and their vegetation; -Conducting a survey of neighborhood
associations, neighborhood captains, community and community groups such as
Berkeley Partners for Parks to determine which traffic circles are being maintained
by community members; Examining the City of Oakland’s ‘Adopt a Spot’ initiative to
encourage community involvement in the maintenance of public spaces by loaning
tools, supplies, and technical assistance to committed members of the community; -
Hosting a presentation from City staff to better understand concerns with the current
traffic circle policy and any safety concerns that should be taken into consideration; -
Developing a clear set of guidelines/criteria to allow for community maintenance of
traffic Circles; -Outlining the appropriate community outreach strategy and process to
share the updated policy for managing vegetation in traffic circles; -Developing a
replanting strategy, with emphasis on drought-resistant plants.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications
Packet #2.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — Harrison.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 10

185



Page 60 of 72

Council Consent Items

21.

22,

Send a Letter to Sutter Health Requesting a Plan to Retrofit/Rebuild Alta Bates
Hospital or sell to another operator

From: Mayor Arreguin and Councilmembers Hahn, Harrison, and Droste
Recommendation: Direct the City Manager to send a letter to, and follow-up with,
Sutter Health requesting a plan to retrofit and rebuild Alta Bates to state regulations
by 2030 or agree to sell Alta Bates hospital to an operator who will maintain a full-
service, acute care hospital in Berkeley. The City of Berkeley expresses its strong
desire to work in collaboration with Sutter Health to develop a plan to keep a full-
service, acute care hospital in Berkeley. The letter shall reference the findings from
the Health Impact Assessment completed by the University of California, Department
of Public Health, dated September 2018 and state that the closure of Alta Bates
would: -Create a harmful cascade effect on remaining hospitals and emergency
services, exacerbating already overcrowded ERs; -Lengthen wait times for hospital
beds; -Reduce the ability of first responders and emergency service vehicles to
respond due to increased transport times through the East Bay’s congested
roadways; -Disproportionally affect marginalized communities; -Impact acute care
services in this region that need to be expanded, not consolidated.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, 981-7100

Action: Approved recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications
Packet #2 and at the meeting to revise the text of the letter.

African American Tobacco Control Leadership Council (AATCL) work on
reducing youth tobacco use in Berkeley: Relinquishment of Council Office
Budget Funds to General Fund and Grant of Such Funds

From: Councilmember Davila

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $250 per Councilmember including $150 from Councilmember Cheryl
Davila, to African American Tobacco Leadership Council for their great work
reducing youth tobacco use, particularly among African American youth, in Berkeley,
with funds relinquished to the City’s general fund for this purpose from the
discretionary Council Office Budgets of Councilmember Davila and any other
Councilmembers who would like to contribute.

Financial Implications: Councilmember's Discretionary Funds - $150

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,722—N.S. revised to include contributions from
the following Councilmembers up to the amounts listed: Councilmember Wengraf -
$100; Councilmember Harrison - $100; Councilmember Bartlett - $250;
Councilmember Robinson - $150; Councilmember Hahn - $200.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 11

186



Page 61 of 72

Council Consent Items

23.

24,

Short-term referral to City Attorney and Health Housing and Community
Service to amend Berkeley Municipal Code 7,441-N.S. to expand the control of
flavored tobacco across the City of Berkeley toward preventing youth and
young adult tobacco use

From: Councilmember Davila

Recommendation: Short-term referral to City Attorney and Health Housing and
Community Service to amend Berkeley Municipal Code 7,441-N.S. according to the
changes made in the attached amended ordinance to prohibit the sale of flavored
tobacco products and require a minimum package size for cigars and little cigars
across the City of Berkeley. The primary purpose of the amendment to the ordinance
is to do more to prevent youth and young adult tobacco use.

Financial Implications: None

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Councilmembers Hahn and Harrison added as co-sponsors. Approved
recommendation as revised in Supplemental Communications Packet #1 to make
the referral to the City Manager and further amended to include consideration of
minimum package size and/or price.

Referral to City Manager to establish Recreational Vehicle Waste Discharge
Facility on City Property and Referral to FY 2020/21 Budget Process

From: Councilmembers Harrison and Davila

Recommendation:

1. Refer to the City Manager to establish a recreational vehicle waste discharge
facility on City property and equitable administrative fee program, and

2. Refer costs associated with the facility to the FY 2020/21 Budget Process.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, 981-7140

Action: Approved recommendation amended to include consideration of 1) method
of pump out; 2) cost; 3) locations; and 4) capacity.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 12

187



Page 62 of 72

Council Consent Items

25.

The Berkeley Public Library Foundation 17th Annual Authors Dinner:
Relinquishment of Council Office Budget Funds from General Funds and Grant
of Such Funds

From: Councilmembers Hahn, Wengraf, and Droste

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the expenditure of an amount not
to exceed $500 per Councilmember including $500 from Councilmembers Wengraf
and Droste to the Berkeley Public Library Foundation’s 17th Annual Authors Dinner
with funds relinquished to the City’s General Fund for this purpose from the
discretionary Council Office Budgets of Councilmembers Wengraf, Droste, and any
other Councilmembers who would like to contribute. The Berkeley Public Library
Foundation raises funds to support and enhance the facilities, programs and services
of the Berkeley Public Library. The proceeds from this event will subsidize library
programs and would fulfill the municipal public purpose.

Financial Implications: Councilmembers’ Discretionary Funds - $500

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, 981-7150

Action: Adopted Resolution No. 68,723—N.S. amended to include contributions from
the following Councilmembers up to the amounts listed: Councilmember Wengraf -
$500; Councilmember Droste - $500; Councilmember Davila - $100; Councilmember
Harrison - $250; Councilmember Bartlett - $250; Councilmember Robinson - $150;
Mayor Arreguin - $500.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 13

188



Page 63 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

B.

Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and West
Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with
associated Environmental Review (Continued from December 4, 2018.)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Continue the public hearing and upon conclusion:

1. Adopt a Resolution amending the General Plan land use designations for a portion
of 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street from a Manufacturing designation to
Avenue Commercial, and amending the West Berkeley Plan land use designation
from Mixed Use / Light Industrial to General Commercial (Amendments affect
Assessor Parcel Numbers (APNs): 054-1763-001-03, 054-1763-010-00); and

2. Adopt first reading of an Ordinance:

a. Rezoning a portion of the project site from Mixed Use — Light Industrial (MU-LI) to
West Berkeley Commercial (C-W) (Amendments affect APNs 054-1763-001-03 and
054-1763-010-00); and

b. Amending the C-W District development standards to allow for a 4-story / 50-foot
tall building on the subject property (Amendments affect APNs 054-1763-001-03,
054-1763-010-00, and 054-1763-003-03); and

3. Adopt a Resolution adopting findings under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA) that determine how potential impacts are to be mitigated, to adopt an
Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration that concludes that all impacts of the
rezone and re-designations can be reduced to a less-than-significant level under
CEQA, and to adopt a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program that ensures the
measures will be implemented.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Robinson) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:30 p.m.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — Harrison.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:40 p.m.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
Davila, Harrison, Hahn.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to suspend the rules and extend the meeting to
11:50 p.m.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
Davila, Harrison, Hahn.

Public Testimony: 4 speakers.
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to call the question on the pending motion.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Davila, Bartlett, Wengraf, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
Harrison, Hahn, Robinson.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 14

189



Page 64 of 72

Action Calendar — Public Hearings

Action: M/S/Failed (Harrison/Davila) to refer to the Planning Commission to develop
a medical overlay for the property.

Vote: Ayes — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn; Noes — Kesarwani, Wengraf,
Robinson, Droste, Arreguin.

Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Robinson) to:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 68,724—-N.S. (General Plan)

2. Adopt first reading of Ordinance No. 7,638-N.S. (Zoning). Second reading
scheduled for January 22, 2019.

3. Adopt Resolution No. 68,725-N.S. (CEQA)

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste, Arreguin; Noes —
Davila, Harrison, Hahn.

Action Calendar — Continued Business

C.

Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees (Continued from
December 4, 2018. Item contains revised material.)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the framework and procedures for
standing policy committees of the City Council as part of the City’s legislative
process.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager, 981-7000

Action: M/S/C (Arreguin/Wengraf) to accept revised material from Mayor Arreguin
on ltem C.
Vote: All Ayes.

Action: 2 speakers. M/S/Failed (Kesarwani/Wengraf) to adopt the policy as
submitted at the meeting with the original policy committee groupings as proposed
by the Agenda Committee.

Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Wengraf, Droste; Noes — Davila, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn,
Robinson, Arreguin.

Action: M/S/Carried (Hahn/Harrison) to adopt Resolution No. 68,726—N.S. with the
Attachment 1, Exhibit A in the revised materials submitted by Mayor Arreguin at the
meeting further amended to clarify the 120 day limit and adjust the policy committee
groupings from the agenda committee as revised to move Climate Action Plan,
Sustainability, and Energy and Water Conservation to the Facilities Committee.
Vote: Ayes — Kesarwani, Bartlett, Harrison, Hahn, Wengraf, Robinson, Droste,
Arreguin; Noes — Davila.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 15

190



Page 65 of 72

Action Calendar — Continued Business

D.

Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning Department
on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program (Continued from December 4, 2018.)

From: Councilmembers Bartlett, Worthington, and Davila

Recommendation: That the Council provides requested direction to the Planning
Department on how to proceed with the Equity Program recommended by the
Cannabis Commission in the October 9, 2018 staff report. Recommending allowing 4
equity applicants and 2 non-equity applicants to apply and be processed by the City
within 2 years.

Financial Implications: Minimal

Contact: Ben Bartlett, Councilmember, District 3, 981-7130

Action: Item D held over to January 22, 2019.

Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations (Continued from December 4, 2018.)

From: Councilmembers Davila and Harrison

Recommendation: Short-term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design
Review Committee (DRC) to research and draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance
requiring tree planting upon completion of new residential construction and certain
alterations. The Planning Commission and DRC should consider the following:
-Establishing appropriate tree planting requirements, e.g. a ratio of trees required per
square foot, for new single-family and multi-family construction, as well as qualifying
alterations to existing residential buildings. -Establishing appropriate tree planting
requirements for larger projects, including options to plant trees at alternative
locations identified by the City and within the City limits. The developer should incur
the cost of maintenance of the trees for a defined period of years after planting.
-Establishing appropriate California Natives species requirements. Refer to the
California Native PlantSociety for a list of eligible trees. https://www.cnps.org/
Financial Implications: Unknown

Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, 981-7120

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Approved recommendation as revised in
Supplemental Communications Packet #2 and written below.

Six-month referral to the Planning Commission to research and draft an Urban
Forestry Ordinance requiring tree planting upon completion of new construction,
excluding single-family homes and ADUSs, as well as construction in High Hazard
Fire Zones. The Planning Commission should consider the following:
e Appropriate tree planting requirements for new construction, with the goal of
increasing the tree canopy in Berkeley.
e Appropriate species requirements.

e Establishing a Tree Planting Fund to support increased tree planting
throughout Berkeley.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 16

191



Page 66 of 72

Action Calendar — Continued Business

Fa.

Fb.

Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended Green Stormwater
Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or Properties (Continued
from December 4, 2018)

From: Community Environmental Advisory Commission

Recommendation: Since the drought-storm-flooding cycle is predicted to get worse,
refer to the City Manager to develop and implement measures to help reduce runoff
from private property when rain exceeds two inches in a 24-hour period. The City
Manager and staff should consider the following: - Comply beyond the State and
Alameda County current requirements; -Encourage the treating and detaining of
runoff up to approximately the 85th per-centile of water deposited in a 24-hour
period; -Establish site design measures that include minimizing impervious surfaces;
-Require homeowners to include flooding offsets in preparing properties for sale; -
Offer option(s) for property owners to fund in-lieu centralized off-site storm-water
retention facilities that would hold an equivalent volume of runoff; -Require
abatements for newly paved areas over a specific size; -Make exceptions for
properties that offer significantly below-market rent or sale prices; -Authorize a fee
for all new construction or for title transfer to cover the cost of required compliance
inspections. -Incorporate these measures for private property with similar measures
for Public Works, while coordinating with EBMUD, BUSD, UCB and LBNL.
Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Viviana Garcia, Commission Secretary, 981-7460

Companion Report to Referral Response: Mandatory and Recommended
Green Stormwater Infrastructure in New and Existing Redevelopments or
Properties (Continued from December 4, 2018)

From: City Manager

Recommendation: Express appreciation for the intent of the Community
Environmental Advisory Commission (CEAC) recommendation to develop and
implement measures to help reduce runoff from private property when rain exceeds
two inches in a 24-hour period, and allow staff to continue existing efforts to
implement Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit regulations in coordination with the
14 other local governments and agencies that participate in the Alameda Countywide
Clean Water Program.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Timothy Burroughs, Planning and Development, 981-7400; Phillip
Harrington, Public Works, 981-6300

Action: Items Fa and Fb held over to January 22, 2019.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 17

192



Page 67 of 72

Council Action Items

26.

27.

Referral to the City Manager to Update the Housing Pipeline Report to Address
Timeline between Planning Entitlements and Submission of Building Permit
Applications and Consider Reasons for Delay

From: Councilmember Harrison

Recommendation: Referral to the City Manager to include in the Housing Pipeline
Report an analysis of the time between planning entitlements and building permit
requests for all projects of five units or greater over the past five years. On an
ongoing basis, refer to the City Manager and Commission to propose changes to
current Planning approval process to address the causes of delays between
entittements and building permits for construction or substantial rehabilitation of five
or more dwelling units.

Financial Implications: Staff time

Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, 981-7140

Action: Moved to Consent Calendar. Adopted recommendation as revised in
Supplemental Communications Packet #2 to also refer the item to the Planning
Commission.

Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance

From: Councilmember Hahn and Mayor Arreguin

Recommendation:

1. Adopt a first reading of the Single Use Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance.
2. Refer to the City Manager to: a. Establish a mini-grant program administered and
funded either directly by the City or by community partners to help Prepared Food
Vendors with one-time costs associated with conversion to Reusable Foodware for
eating on the premises (“eating-in”), to be launched by January 1, 2020 (six months
before the date Reusable Foodware requirements become effective). b. Establish a
program administered and funded either directly by the City or by community
partners to provide technical assistance to Prepared Food Vendors implementing the
Single Use Foodware Ordinance, on a free or sliding-scale fee basis, to be launched
by July 1, 2019. c. Create a Reusable Takeout Foodware program for launch July 1,
2021, in collaboration with community partners such as the Ecology Center, Rethink
Disposables and StopWaste. d. Draft for approval amendments to the Single Use
Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance to implement the Reusable Takeout
Foodware program as an alternative to Compostable Takeout Foodware, and
impose a charge, similar to or the same as the Disposable Cup charge, on other
Disposable Foodware containers. e. Create a program to expand and support
composting, to ensure Single Use Disposable Foodware is actually composted.

3. Refer to the City Manager to determine funding and staffing needs and sources of
funds for each program/phase, and submit funding allocations or requests to the
budget process.

Financial Implications: See report

Contact: Sophie Hahn, Councilmember, District 5, 981-7150

Action: Item 27 held over to January 22, 2019.

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 18

193



Page 68 of 72

Information Reports

28. Referral Response: Study Possible Scenarios of the Loss of Federal Funds
From: City Manager
Contact: Kelly Wallace, Housing and Community Services, 981-5400
Action: Received and filed.

29. Measure U1 Reporting
From: Housing Advisory Commission
Contact: Amy Davidson, Commission Secretary, 981-5400
Action: Received and filed.

Public Comment — Iltems Not Listed on the Agenda - 1 speaker.
Adjournment
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Arreguin) to adjourn the meeting in memory of:

1. Julia Vinograd, Berkeley Poet
Vote: All Ayes.

Adjourned at 11:48 p.m.

This is to certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the regular meeting of
December 11, 2018 as approved by the Berkeley City Council.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Communications

Another Location for Apothecarium Dispensary
1. Lauren Kerr

2. Paul Lundahl

3. Anthony Bonet

East Bay Community Energy
4. From the CEQO’s desk of EBCE

Homeless Encampments to Vacate
5. Diana Bohn

UASI Committee Problem
6. Bob Flasher

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 19
194



Page 69 of 72

Smart Kiosks
7. Kathryn Stein
8. Carol Denney

Supplemental Communications and Reports 1

Item #23: Short-term referral to City Attorney and Health Housing and Community
Service to amend Berkeley Municipal Code 7,441-N.S. to expand the control of
flavored tobacco across the City of Berkeley toward preventing youth and young
adult tobacco use

9. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Davila

Item #27: Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance
10.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Hahn

Supplemental Communications and Reports 2

Item #1: Confirming the Results of the November 6, 2018, General Municipal
Election
11. Supplemental material, submitted by the City Clerk

Item #20: Establishment of Traffic Circle Policy Task Force
12. Supplemental material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin
13.Karl Reeh

Item #21: Send a Letter to Sutter Health Requesting a Plan to Retrofit/Rebuild Alta
Bates Hospital or sell to another operator
14.Supplemental item, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #23: Short-term referral to City Attorney and Health Housing and Community
Service to amend Berkeley Municipal Code 7,441-N.S. to expand the control of
flavored tobacco across the City of Berkeley toward preventing youth and young
adult tobacco use

15.Liz Williams

Item #B: Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and West
Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with associated
Environmental Review

16.Patrick Sheahan, on behalf of the Zoning Adjustment Board

Item #C: Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees
17.Supplemental material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #D: Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning
Department on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program

18.Brian Auerbach

19.Susan Raeburn

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 20
195



Page 70 of 72

Item E: Short-Term Referral to the Planning Commission and Design Review
Committee to Research and Draft an Urban Forestry Ordinance Requiring Tree
Planting Upon Completion of New Residential Construction and Certain
Alterations

20. Supplemental material, submitted by Councilmember Davila

Item #Fa: Mandatory and Recommended Green Stormwater Infrastructure in New
and Existing Redevelopments or Properties
21.Supplemental material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #26: Referral to the City Manager to Update the Housing Pipeline Report to
Address Timeline between Planning Entitlements and Submission of Building
Permit Applications and Consider Reasons for Delay

22.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Harrison

Item #27: Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance

23.Revised material, submitted by Councilmember Hahn

24 . Alison Piccoli, on behalf of the California Restaurant Association

25.Allen King, President of Excellent Packaging

26.Miriam Gordon

27.Sandra Curtis

28.Paula White

29. Monica Wilson

30.Mary Ann Brewin

31.Jon Corn

32.Mimi Moungovan

33.Katherine Pope

34.Anna Whitney

35. 16 similarly-worded letters, submitted by Jeff Shaddock, Natasha Ham, Vivienne
Lam, Leah Redwood, Marilyn and Victor Ichioka, Caryn Graves, Diana Bohn, Natalie
Nava, Serena Patel, Julia Sherman, Leslie Yin, Liam Will, Kylie Murdock, Claire
Rausser, Den Paul Cortez, Sarah Abdeshahian

36. 11 another similarly-worded letters, submitted by Betsy Bigelow-Teller, Tom Miller,
Mary Ann Fredson, Ellen Hahn, Michael Wallman, Danny Wedding, Sandra Ludlow,
Jacque Ensign, Jon Stewart, Sheila Jordan, Becky Grether

Item #27: Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance
37.143 Communications submitted via Berkeley Considers, includes summary
information.

Supplemental Communications and Reports 3

Item #6: Contract No. 9111E Amendment: City Data Services to add a Housing
Trust Fund Monitoring and Inspection Module
38.Barbara Gilbert

Item #20: Establishment of Traffic Circle Policy Task Force
39.Nancy Carleton

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 21
196



Page 71 of 72

40.John Steere, on behalf of Berkley Partners for Parks

Item #21: Send a Letter to Sutter Health Requesting a Plan to Retrofit/Rebuild Alta
Bates Hospital or sell to another operator

41.Sharon Singer

42.Nancy Lemon

43. Andrew Johnson, on behalf of the Bateman Neighborhood Association

44. Andy Katz

Item #23: Short-term referral to City Attorney and Health Housing and Community
Service to amend Berkeley Municipal Code 7,441-N.S. to expand the control of
flavored tobacco across the City of Berkeley toward preventing youth and young
adult tobacco use

45.Cassie Ray, on behalf of the American Cancer Society

46.Holly Schneider

Item #B: Referral Response: Reclassifying the Zoning and the General Plan and West
Berkeley Plan designations at 1050 Parker Street / 2621 Tenth Street, with associated
Environmental Review

47.Patrick Sheahan, on behalf of the Zoning Adjustment Board

48.Chris Barlow, on behalf of Wareham Development

Item #C: Structure for City Council Standing Policy Committees
49. Supplemental Material, submitted by Mayor Arreguin

Item #D: Providing Requested Direction to the City Manager and Planning
Department on the Number of Cannabis Retail Establishments and the Creation of an
Equity Program

50.Charles Pappas

51.Lynn Silver

52.Amanda Naprawa

Item #27: Single Use Disposable Foodware and Litter Reduction Ordinance

53. Juliet Lamont and Phil Price

54.Bonnie Borucki

55.Shirley Dean

56. Amir Wright

57.Melissa Romero

58. Angie Chen

59.John Paluska (2)

60. Ashely Coneff, on behalf of Dunkin Donuts

61.Aladdin Dino Sammakieh, McDonald’s Owner/Operator

62.Liv Johansson

63. Monica Wilson, on behalf of GAIA

64.Eight similarly-worded letters, submitted by Claire Perrin, Ayako Nagano, Mark
Green, Sarah Bancroft, Dante Gonzales, Nuha Khalfay, Kelia Hai Liang, Roxana
Horowitz

65. Six similarly-worded letters, submitted by Diana Bohn, Nuha Khalfay, Ayako
Nagano, Bonnie Borucki, Greenpeace, Sandra Curtis

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 22
197



Page 72 of 72

Leonard Powell’s Home
66. Friends of Adeline (2)

Memories of the 60’s, by Julia Vinograd
67.Unknown

Tuesday, December 11, 2018 MINUTES Page 23
198



Page 1 of 5

( CITY °F

-

o
o
7
)
AL

=

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Henry Oyekanmi, Director, Finance

Subject: Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled for Possible
Issuance After Council Approval on January 22, 2019

RECOMMENDATION

Approve the request for proposals or invitation for bids (attached to staff report) that will
be, or are planned to be, issued upon final approval by the requesting department or
division. All contracts over the City Manager’s threshold will be returned to Council for
final approval.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
Total estimated cost of items included in this report is $9,078,600.

04

PROJECT Fund Source Amount

Implementation plan for
civic center park and 511 Measure T1 $300,000
adjustment buildings

127 State

Transportation Tax

On—gall traffic engineering 134 Measure BB $2.000,000
services

501 Capital

Improvement

Food services for summer 319 Youth Lunch
lunch program $325,000
External Evaluator 157 Tobacco Control $93,600
Berkeley Rose Garden 138 Parks Tax $2,000,000
Pergola Reconstruction and 511 Measure T1
Site Improvements

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@cityofberkeley.info Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager

199


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
04


Page 2 of 5

Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals CONSENT CALENDAR
Scheduled for Possible Issuance After Council January 22, 2019
Approval on January 22, 2019

Community-Based 011 General $4,360,000

Organizations Funding Fund

Opportunity

Total: $9,078,600

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

On May, 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S. effective June 6, 2008,
which increased the City Manager’s purchasing authority for services to $50,000. As a
result, this required report submitted by the City Manager to Council is now for those
purchases in excess of $100,000 for goods; and $200,000 for playgrounds and
construction; and $50,000 for services. If Council does not object to these items being
sent out for bid or proposal within one week of them appearing on the agenda, and
upon final notice to proceed from the requesting department, the IFB or RFP may be
released to the public and notices sent to the potential bidder/respondent list.

BACKGROUND
On May 6, 2008, Council adopted Ordinance No. 7,035-N.S., amending the City
Manager’s purchasing authority for services.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Finance Department reviews all formal bid and proposal solicitations to ensure that
they include provisions for compliance with the City’s environmental policies. For each
contract that is subject to City Council authorization, staff will address environmental
sustainability considerations in the associated staff report to City Council.

CONTACT PERSON
Shari Hamilton, General Services Manager, Finance, 510-981-7329

Attachments:
1: Formal Bid Solicitations and Request for Proposals Scheduled For Possible Issuance
After Council Approval on January 22, 2010

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation:

Implementation plan for Civic Center Park and Adjustment Buildings
On-Call Traffic Engineering Services

Food Services for Summer Lunch Program

External Evaluator

Berkeley Rose Garden Pergola Reconstruction and Site Improvement
Community-Based Organizations Funding Opportunity

a
b

-
2220358

Note: Original of this attachment with live signature of authorizing personnel is on file in
General Services.

Page 2 of 2 200



Rege.d oo

DATE SUBMITTED: January 22, 2019

Attachment 1

SPECIFICATION | DESCRIPTION OF APPROX. APPROX. INTENDED USE ESTIMATED BUDGET CODE TO BE DEPT. / DIVISION CONTACT NAME &
NO. GOODS / RELEASE BID COST CHARGED PHONE
SERVICES BEING DATE OPENING
PURCHASED DATE
19-11286-C Implementation 3/6/2019 4/3/2019 Retain a vendor to $300,000|T-1 Bond CMO/OED Eleanor Hollander
Plan for Civic lead a transparent 981-7536
Center Park and public process on the 511-21-208-251-0000-
Adjacent Buildings implementation plan 000-446-612990-
for the retrofit and
reuse of Veteran’s The funding will be
Memorial Building, appropriated as part of
Old City Hall, and the Second Amendment
Civic Center Park. to the FY 2019 Annual
Appropriations
Ordinance.
19-11289-C On-Call Traffic 1/23/2019 2/21/2019 Under direct FY19-FY21|Potential budget codes to|Transportation/ Hamid Mostowfi
Engineering supervision of City be charged: Traffic Engineering 981-6403
Services traffic engineering Total of three (3)
staff, consultant will years|127-54-622-668-0000-
provide on-call 000-431-612310-
municipal traffic Total[134-54-622-668-0000-
engineering services NTE|000-431-612240-
to the City. $2,000,000(501-54-622-668-0000-
000-431-612310-
No costs will be incurred
until applicable City
Projects emerge
19-11290-C Food Services for  (1/24/2019 2/21/2019 The City of Berkeley | $65,000 per year;|FUND$: 080-5964-450- |Parks Recreation & Christina Erickson

Summer Lunch
Program

is soliciting proposals
from qualified firms or
individuals to prepare
and deliver lunches
and snacks for the
Summer Lunch
Program, beginning
2019.

5-year total:
$325,000

55-50;

ERMA:
319-52-543-570-1004-
000-461-644110-

Funding for first year
available in this budget
code. Additional amounts
to be appropriated in
future years.

Waterfront Department

981-6703

201
1of 3



Rege.gofld

DATE SUBMITTED: January 22, 2019

Attachment 1

SPECIFICATION | DESCRIPTION OF APPROX. APPROX. INTENDED USE ESTIMATED BUDGET CODE TO BE DEPT. / DIVISION CONTACT NAME &
NO. GOODS / RELEASE BID COST CHARGED PHONE
SERVICES BEING DATE OPENING
PURCHASED DATE
19-11292-C External Evaluator (1/23/2019 2/21/2019 In partnership with the $93,600.00|HHPLLA1901/ HHCS/PH Rebecca Day-
ga:)'f?r:a El’tipaﬂﬂ‘e”tlf 4| (FY19-831,200;INONPERSONNEL/ Rodriguez,
Ageney. the Cityor | FY20-$31,200;| CONTRSERVI/ 981-5337
Berkeley is required to hire FY21-$31 ,200)|CNSLTNTS
an External Evaluator (EE) NONPERSONN
from outside of the agency CONTRSERVI
who fulfills the requirements CNSLTNTS
of the Local Program
Evaluator (LPE). The EE
provides an outside, 157-51-506-559-2053-
unbiased, and objective 000-451-612990
point-of-view; therefore, the
EE must be completely
separate from the health
department or agency that
performs tobacco control
interventions. The EE is
generally responsible for
designing the evaluation
plan and providing
consultation on the entire
scope of work; developing
data collection instruments,
protocols, and
methodology; analyzing
data; and preparing
evaluation reports.

19-11294-C Berkeley Rose 1/23/2019 5/27/2019 Reconstruction of Historic $2,000,000(138-52-545-000-0000-  |Parks, Recreation & Evelyn Chan
Garden Pergola feiivgzﬁsci’ig;gi'\% :athway 000-461-663110- Waterfront, Capital 981-6430
Reconstruction and improvemems: and other PRWT119012 Projects Scott Ferris
Site Improvements miscellaneous site and 981-6700

utility improvements. 511-52-545-000-0000-
000-461-663110-
PRWT119012

202
20of 3



Rege.s o

DATE SUBMITTED: January 22, 2019

Attachment 1

SPECIFICATION
NO.

DESCRIPTION OF
GOODS /
SERVICES BEING
PURCHASED

APPROX.
RELEASE
DATE

APPROX.
BID
OPENING
DATE

INTENDED USE

ESTIMATED
COST

BUDGET CODE TO BE
CHARGED

DEPT. / DIVISION

CONTACT NAME &
PHONE

19-11295-C

Community-Based
Organizations
Funding
Opportunities

1/23/2019

2/27/2019

To release a Request For

Proposals (RFP) for a two-

year grant opportunity for
BUSD and community-
based organizations
consistent with SSBPPE’s
goals to reduce the
consumption of SSBs and
to address the effects of
SSB consumption.

Council Report from
SSBPPE Commission
slated to be on the
01/22/2019 Council
Agenda.

Council Resolution No.
(pending Council
approval on 01/22/2018).

Up to $4,360,000
million over two
years subject to

Council approval.

011-51-507-507-0000-
000-459-636110

HHCS/PHD

Dechen Tsering
981-5394

DEPT. TOTAL

$9,078,600

GRAND TOTAL

$9,078,600

203
3of 3



204



Page 1 of 3

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, HHCS

Subject: Authorize Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda County for Winter
Relief Program

RECOMMENDATION
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
through April 30, 2019 with Alameda County for a Winter Relief Program.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Alameda County will provide the City of Berkeley $22,500 to pay for all services
associated with the Winter Relief Program. The funds will be deposited and expensed
from the One-Time Grant: No Capital Expenditures Fund and will be officially
appropriated as part of the Second Amendment to the FY 2019 Annual Appropriations
Ordinance.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

During the typically cold, rainy winter months, unsheltered homeless individuals
experience increased vulnerability and the potential for further physical and
psychological decompensation. Providing these individuals short-term shelter in local
motels not only protects them from the elements, but can also create the opportunity to
engage them in services to help stabilize their lives. Alameda County will provide
funding to the Mental Health Division to pay for motel stays for high-need, long-term
unsheltered homeless individuals outreached or referred to the Homeless Outreach &
Treatment Team (HOTT). The length of stay for each participant will be based on their
needs and the availability of other appropriate shelter options, but shall not exceed 29
days.

BACKGROUND
The Housing & Community Services Division of HHCS administered a similar program
with funding from Alameda County during last fiscal year.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

05

205


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
05


Page 2 of 3

Memorandum of Understanding with Alameda County for Winter Relief Program CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

High-need long-term homeless individuals currently living on the streets are amongst
the most vulnerable populations in Berkeley, and are also among the most difficult to
serve. Providing this program will not only get them in out of the cold, but will also
create an opportunity to get them engaged in services to improve their situation for the
long term.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
No alternative actions were considered.

CONTACT PERSON
Steven Grolnic-McClurg, Division Manager, Mental Health, 510-981-5249

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

206



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

AUTHORIZE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH ALAMEDA COUNTY
FOR WINTER RELIEF PROGRAM

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2018 the Council of the City of Berkeley adopted Resolution
No. 68,288-N.S. to enter into a previous Memorandum of Understanding with the County
of Alameda for a Winter Relief Program during the period of December 1, 2017 through
March 31, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the County of Alameda (“COUNTY”) has allocated a total of $22,500 for
respite from the elements for literally homeless people living on the streets of Berkeley
during the period of November 1, 2018 through April 30, 2019; and

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge that there is a lack of available shelter space to
provide shelter for the homeless populations of Berkeley, Albany, and Emeryville; and

WHEREAS, the County and the City of Berkeley further acknowledge that funding for
motel stays for unsheltered homeless individuals during the typically cold and rainy winter
season will improve health and safety outcomes for residents who would otherwise
remain unsheltered during inclement weather; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Homeless Outreach and Treatment Team (HOTT) staff will utilize
these funds and place high need and vulnerable homeless people in temporary lodging,
allowing them a respite from the streets while support services staff assess needs and
develop a long-term housing plan.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to receive funds and negotiate and execute a memorandum
of understanding (MOU) through April 30, 2019 with the County of Alameda that outlines
the services to be provided and the responsibilities of the County and the City in the
Winter Relief Program. A record contract of said MOU and any amendments are on file
with the Office of the City Clerk.

207



208



Page 1 of 3

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, Health, Housing and Community Services
Department

Subject: Revenue Contract: Community Services Block Grant for Calendar Year
2019

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her designee to accept the
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) Contract Number 19F-4001 for the amount of
$266,863 to provide services for low-income people for the period January 1, 2019 to
December 31, 2019.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Berkeley’s Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) allocation for the period January 1,
2019 through December 31, 2019 is $266,863 (Community Action Program Fund - 334-
51-504-530-0000-000-000-431110-). The CSBG allocation amount is included in the
City’s anti-poverty Community Action Fund and supports oversight and management of
anti-poverty funds within the Health, Housing and Community Services Department.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City of Berkeley is a Community Action Agency (CAA) and therefore receives
Community Services Block Grant funds (CSBG) to support anti-poverty programs.
CSBG funds are part of the federal Department of Health and Human Services budget
passed through the state to local CAAs. Historically, the City of Berkeley has awarded
Community Services Block Grant funds to community service programs.

The Human Welfare and Community Action Commission (HWCAC) acts as the tri-
partite advisory Board for CSBG funding. As such, it is responsible for reviewing
performance of funded programs, reviewing compliance with the implementation of the
community action program, providing public participation in the administration of the
CSBG funds and advising Council on CSBG funding decisions. CSBG funds
complement anti-poverty General Funds which are used for other critical community
services, including disability and senior services, medical care, child care and additional
homeless services. The Berkeley City Council is responsible for all final CSBG funding
decisions.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

06

209


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
06


Page 2 of 3

Revenue Contract: Community Services Block Grant for Calendar Year 2019 CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

At its November 28, 2018 meeting, the Human Welfare and Community Action
Commission (HWCAC) passed a motion to recommend that the City accept the CSBG
Funds and contract for 2019. (M/S/C: Sood/Dunner. Ayes: — Sood, Dunner, Kohn,
Omodele. Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Whitson, Holman, Vrankovecki
(Excused).

BACKGROUND

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) supports the City of Berkeley’s anti-poverty
efforts at a minimum funded level. The City received $160,000 until December of 2005.
In 2006 the award for minimum-funded agencies was increased to $173,556. In 2008,
the award for minimum-funded agencies increased to $259,646 annually; in 2013 the
award was reduced to $244,908. In 2016 and 2017, the annual award was increased to
$265,577.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
The Community Services Block Grant is necessary to support the provision of services
for residents living in poverty in Berkeley.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

Rejecting CSBG funding would reduce funding for services to low-income Berkeley
residents and HHCS staffing. This would negatively impact low-income services in
Berkeley.

CONTACT PERSON
Mary-Claire Katz, Associate Management Analyst, Health, Housing & Community
Services Department, (510) 981-5414

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

210



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.
REVENUE CONTRACT: 2019 COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG)

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is a Community Action Agency and receives CSBG
funds as the Berkeley Community Action Agency to support anti-poverty programs; and

WHEREAS, the Human Welfare and Community Action Commission (HWCAC) acts as
an advisory tri-partite Board to the Council providing public participation in the governing
process; and

WHEREAS, at the November 28, 2018 HWCAC meeting a motion was passed
recommending that the City accept the Community Service Block Grant Funds; and

WHEREAS, this CSBG revenue contract covers the calendar year 2019 (January 1, 2019
through December 31, 2019) for a contract amount of $266,863 (351-7902-331-1012);
and

WHEREAS, the funds have historically been used to support anti-poverty services and to
support City of Berkeley oversight and management of anti-poverty programs (budget
code (334-51-504-530-0000-000-444-Various to 334-51-504-535-0000-000-444-
Various).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is authorized to accept Community Service Block Grant
Contract Number 19F-4001 for the amount of $266,863, and execute any resultant
agreements and amendments including amendments that may increase the contract
amount to provide low-income services for the time period January 1, 2019 to December
31, 2019. A record signature copy of said agreement and any amendments shall be on
file in the office of the City Clerk.

211



212



Page 1 of 3

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Kelly Wallace, Interim Director, Health, Housing & Community Services

Subject: Revenue Grant Agreement: Medi-Cal Administrative Activities Funding from
the State of California to Conduct Public Health Promotion Services

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to submit grant agreements to the
State of California, to accept the grants, and execute any resultant revenue agreements
and amendments to conduct public health promotion for Medi-Cal Administrative
Activities (MAA) Program for an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 for period of the
agreement, Fiscal Years 2020 through 2022.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The MAA program reimburses a portion of the City’s public expenditure that supports
Medi-Cal-related activities. This funding can be up to $1,000,000 per year for three
years for the Public Health Division, the Aging Services Division and the HHCS Office of
the Director together. The precise amount of revenue the City earns is determined by
the City’s level of match funding, program staff time-studies, and level of eligible
services. The revenue and expense for this contract will be tracked in Targeted Case
Management/Linkages fund in the Aging Services, Public Health and Office of the
Director Divisions within the HHCS department.

Spending of all referenced grant funds is subject to Council approval of the budget for
each fiscal year and the Annual Appropriations Ordinance.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Health, Housing & Community Services Department provides a broad range of
public health and community health services to the community, with the goals of
promoting healthy environments and behaviors, protecting residents from disease, and
preventing illness, disability, and premature death. Funding through Medi-Cal
Administrative Activities supports this work by supporting program efforts to enroll
community members into Medi-Cal and assist their access to Medi-Cal services.

BACKGROUND
The City of Berkeley receives funding from many sources annually to complete work
related to improving the health of the community. As a local health jurisdiction, the City

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

07

213


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.infos
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
07


Page 2 of 3

Revenue Grant Agreement: Medi-Cal Administrative Activities Funding CONSENT CALENDAR
from the State of California to Conduct Public Health Promotion Services January 22, 2019

is entitled to specific State funding to meet core public health objectives. The Division is
committed to providing essential services to the community to prevent the spread of
disease and to promote healthy environments.

The State establishes funding caps for the MAA program, with actual revenue
determined by City matching funds and service delivery. Revenue projections are based
on recent year actual revenues in these programs, service-delivery staffing, eligible
client populations, and available matching funds. These projections will enable the
Department to keep expenditures within actual revenues, by budgeting expenditures to
realistic revenue projections.

Medi-Cal Administrative Activities (MAA) Program provides administrative activities that
directly support efforts to identify and enroll potentially eligible persons into Medi-Cal in
the Public Health and Aging Services Divisions.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identified environmental impacts with this agreement.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

These funds support vital services related to our mandates as a public health
jurisdiction and local initiatives designed to improve the health of Berkeley residents.
These non-competitive grants support the Department’s mission and provide the City
with funding to continue working to protect and improve the health of the community.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED

This funding is essential for the Department’s mission and goals. The Health, Housing
and Community Services Department assesses each funding source to ensure that it
supports the City’s mission and goals. The alternative action of not seeking any of these
funding sources would result in a significant reduction in public health services to the
community.

CONTACT PERSON
Leah Talley, Interim Deputy Director, Health, Housing & Community Services, 981-5420

Attachments:
1. Resolution: Medi-Cal Administrative Activities program

Page 2

214



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. -N.S.

GRANT AGREEMENT: STATE OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE MEDI-CAL
ADMINISTRATIVE ACTIVITIES PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing & Community Services
is committed to identification and enroliment of potentially eligible persons into Medi-Cal;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing & Community Services
provides a broad range of needed public and community health services to the
community; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing & Community Services
works to promote healthy environments and behaviors, protect residents from disease,
and prevent illness, disability, and premature death; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley Department of Health, Housing & Community Services
seeks to eliminate health inequities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley should seek outside funding wherever possible to fund
vital health services.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager or her designee is hereby authorized to submit grant agreements to the
State of California, to accept the grants, and execute any resultant revenue agreements
and amendments to conduct public health promotion for Medi-Cal Administrative
Activities (MAA) Program for an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 for period of the
agreement, Fiscal Years 2020 through 2022. The revenue and expense for this contract
will be tracked in Targeted Case Management/Linkages fund in the Aging Services,
Public Health and Office of the Director Divisions within the HHCS department. A record
signature copy of said agreements and any amendments shall be on file in the office of
the City Clerk.

215



216



Page 1 of 8

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: Kelly Wallace, Director, Health, Housing & Community Services
Phillip L. Harrington, Director, Public Works

Subject: Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed
Berkeley Way Project

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate, enter into and cause the
City to perform its obligations under one or more agreements (including amendments)
with the BRIDGE Housing Corporation, Berkeley Food and Housing Project (BFHP),
and/or their affiliates (including BRIDGE Berkeley Way LP and BFHP Hope Center LP),
relating to a grant application to the California Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities (AHSC) Program for Berkeley Way project-related transportation and
infrastructure improvements, for a total amount up to $3,800,000 for City-projects, and
to accept and perform the grant if awarded.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The project team will also apply directly to the state for about $14M for housing
development from the same source. That segment of the application does not require
City participation, and housing funds will be loaned directly to the project without
passing through the City. The housing portion of the application cannot go forward
without the transportation and infrastructure portion discussed in this report.

If awarded, this AHSC application would bring up to $3,800,000 of competitive grant
revenue to the Fund 344 for bicycle and pedestrian improvements that were previously
identified in City plans. The resolution authorizes the City Manager to enter into
agreements that will allow the project sponsors to pass through the funds to the City if
their application is successful.

The grant program requires that each project be 90% funded between the AHSC grant
funds and funds already committed. Based on current project cost estimates, the
projects would be 100% funded between the AHSC grant funds and funding already
committed.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7

08

217


rthomsen
Typewritten Text
08


Page 2 of 8

Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities CONSENT CALENDAR
Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed Berkeley Way Project January 22, 2019

If the AHSC grant application is successful, the City will need to complete the agreed
projects within three years of the grant award. The resulting City agreements are
expected to include generally customary provisions requiring the City (i) to complete the
agreed improvements by the deadline, (ii) to be responsible for any funding shortfalls,
(iii) to not seek reimbursement for any grant amounts not otherwise spent on the
projects, and (iv) to be responsible for certain damages suffered by other Berkeley Way
project parties (including the project sponsors, lenders and AHSC) caused by any City
breach or default, including completion delays.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

BRIDGE and BFHP proposed to apply for AHSC funds for the proposed Berkeley Way
project. On March 13, 2018, Council directed staff to prioritize all actions needed to
meet AHSC deadlines. In order for the project to be eligible for about $14M in housing
development funds, the application also needs to include about $6M in transportation
and infrastructure improvements consistent with a complex system of priorities, for a
total funding request of about $20M.

The Berkeley Way project team, City staff, BART staff, and AC Transit staff have met
multiple times over the past year to identify a total of $6M of transportation and
infrastructure projects meeting the applicable criteria. City participation will not be
required for the BART and AC Transit projects. The full $6M of proposed transportation
and infrastructure improvements are:

e $900,000 for BART to purchase and install bike lockers at the North Berkeley
BART station and to install a cycletrack at the station. These are part of BART’s
larger station area improvement project which includes Ohlone Greenway
crossing improvements and a Delaware Street protected bikeway, which were
identified in the City’s Bicycle Plan. BART will enter into one or more separate
agreements with the Berkeley Way project sponsors to apply for and receive
these funds, and deliver the improvements.

e $1.3M for AC Transit to purchase new zero-emissions buses for use on the F line
through Berkeley as part of the Transbay Tomorrow improvements. AC Transit
will also enter into one or more separate agreements with the Berkeley Way
project sponsors to apply for and receive these funds, and deliver the
improvements.

e $3.8M for City projects identified below.

Page 2
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7 218



Page 3 of 8

Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities

CONSENT CALENDAR

Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed Berkeley Way Project

January 22, 2019

The following table shows two alternatives for the $3.8M in proposed City projects:

C(ty Transpprtatlon Pro;ects. (if the Mlly/a AHSC Current City Amour_1t_s of
Bikeway project does not receive an Active Remaining
; . Funds Cost e

Transportation Program (ATP) grant in Requested Estimates Identified
January 2019) 9 Funds
Milvia Bikeway — Hearst to Allston (source: $2,264,000 $2,659,000 $395,000*
2017 Bicycle Plan)
Addison Bike Boulevard — Sacramento Street $775,000 $ 775,000 $0
to Martin Luther King, Jr. Way (source: 2017
Bicycle Plan)
University Avenue Transit Priority Street — $600,000 $ 600,000 $0
sidewalk bulbouts with bus stops at Grant &
Sacramento St. (source: Pedestrian Master
Plan)
Southside Complete Streets project — $161,000 $8,043,602 | $7,882,602**
matching funds for already-acquired $7M
federal grant (source: Berkeley Strategic
Transportation Plan)

Total $3,800,000 | $12,077,602 $8,277,602
A(ternatlve Qty Pro;ects_(/f the M//\{/a AHSC Current City Amour_1t_s of
Bikeway project does receive an Active Remaining

; ; Funds Cost ie:

Transportation Program (ATP) grant in Requested Estimates Identified
January 2019) 9 Funds
Shattuck intersection pedestrian safety $2,890,000 $2,890,000 $0
treatments and bus stop bulbouts — Berkeley
Way to Vine Street (source: Pedestrian
Master Plan)
Addison Bike Boulevard — Sacramento Street $775,000 $ 775,000 $0
to Martin Luther King, Jr. Way (source: 2017
Bicycle Plan)
Southside Complete Streets project — $135,000 $8,043,602 | $7,908,602**
matching funds for already-acquired $7.1M
federal grant (source: Berkeley Strategic
Transportation Plan)

Total $3,800,000 [ $11,708,602 $7,908,602

*$350,000 from a grant from the Alameda County Transportation Commission for preliminary engineering
and the environmental study using Alameda County Measure B Discretionary Bicycle and Pedestrian
Program funding; $45,000 from the City’s Direct Local Distribution funding from the Alameda County

Measure BB Bicycle and Pedestrian Program.

**$7.121M from a federal grant; the remainder of the funding has been identified and programmed from
University of California Long-Range Development Plan (UC LRDP) settlement agreement funding.

Page 3

OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7

219



Page 4 of 8

Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities CONSENT CALENDAR
Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed Berkeley Way Project January 22, 2019

All required actions under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and, with
respect to the projects receiving federal funding, the National Environmental Policy Act
(NEPA) will be taken. At this time, there is no known opposition to any of the proposed
City projects. Since all of them have been generally known for some time, the City
would generally have already learned of any opposition. Staff is not aware of any other
reason why CEQA and NEPA approvals would not be timely obtained. While there are
no guarantees, City staff therefore understands the City will timely receive all required
CEQA and NEPA approvals.

The attached resolution would allow the City Manager to negotiate and execute one or
more agreements with the BRIDGE Housing Corporation, Berkeley Food and Housing
Project (BFHP), and their affiliates (including BRIDGE Berkeley Way LP and BFHP
Hope Center LP) agreeing to accept grant funds and complete the proposed City
projects if the funds are awarded. As required by AHSC rules, it would also enable the
transportation and infrastructure portion of the Berkeley Way funding application to rely
on the City’s extensive experience with similar projects, without requiring the City to act
as a co-applicant for the entire AHSC project grant application. Under the attached
resolution, direct agreements between the City and other Berkeley Way project parties
(such as lenders) would require separate Council approval.

BACKGROUND

Administered by the Strategic Growth Council and implemented by the Department of
Housing and Community Development (HCD), the AHSC Program funds land-use,
housing, transportation, and land preservation projects to support infill and compact
development that reduce greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions. Funding for the AHSC
Program is provided from the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF), an account
established to receive Cap-and-Trade auction proceeds.

To assist with the application, BRIDGE hired Enterprise, which worked with 15 of the 25
AHSC applications funded in 2017. Enterprise is providing technical assistance on
developing a competitive application for the Berkeley Way project. Enterprise advises
that to be competitive the application needs to include:

e Two miles of bike lanes that connect to key destinations and/or close key
network gaps, or two miles of streets with new sidewalk or pedestrian crossing
improvements at sequential intersections, or a combination of both;

e Sustainable Transportation Infrastructure (STIs) such as transit, bike lanes,
sidewalks, and crosswalks; and

e Transportation-Related Amenities (TRAs) such as bike parking, repair kiosks,
and bus shelters. The BART bike lockers and bus bulbouts satisfy this category.

e Significant reductions to greenhouse gases as measured on a quantitative tool.
AC Transit’s buses are an important component to this part of the application.

Enterprise has indicated its belief that the proposed BART, AC Transit and City projects
above should satisfy these criteria.

Page 4
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7 220



Page 5 of 8

Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities CONSENT CALENDAR
Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed Berkeley Way Project January 22, 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The purpose of the AHSC program is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions in California,
and all of the projects identified for the funding will help accomplish that goal.

Increasing cycling and walking would help the City achieve the Berkeley Climate Action
Plan greenhouse gas emission reduction targets of 33% below year 2000 levels by the
year 2020, and 80% below year 2000 levels by 2050. The Climate Action Plan states
that, in order to meet these targets, “Transportation modes such as public transit,
walking and bicycling must become the primary means of fulfilling our mobility needs.”

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The City transportation and infrastructure projects proposed for inclusion in this AHSC
funding application were all previously identified in existing City plans, including the
City’s Bicycle Plan, Pedestrian Plan, and Berkeley Strategic Transportation Plan. This
grant opportunity has the potential to provide up to a total of $3.8M directly to the City,
and another $2.2M to BART and AC Transit, for bicycle, pedestrian and transit
improvements in Berkeley at the same time that the program provides funding for
affordable housing in the proposed Berkeley Way project. If the grant application is
successful, staff believes that the City will need only the already-committed funds from
the UC Long-Range Development Plan Settlement Agreement of not more than
$787,602 for the City to complete its required transportation and infrastructure
improvements, based on current cost estimates, already budgeted City funds and
already awarded federal funds. Nevertheless, if this turns out to be incorrect, the City
will be required to make up any shortfalls from other sources.

Accepting this AHSC grant, like almost all funding grants, comes with some risks.
Nevertheless, City staff believes that the City can reasonably bear these risks in light of
(i) the understanding that all of the anticipated costs have already been identified or
budgeted, (ii) the expectation that all CEQA and NEPA approvals will be timely
received, (iii) the City’s general extensive experience with executing similar
transportation and infrastructure projects, and specific understandings that all of the
projects at issue can be completed within the required three-year period, and (iv) other
than customary requirements for carrying out any public works project, staff is not aware
of any other significant pre-conditions or risks for the City executing the projects.

Specific design, construction, procurement and related contracts to deliver the City
projects will be subject to customary City approvals at the appropriate times, including
Council approval when otherwise required.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
Staff have not identified an alternative action that is consistent with Council’s March 13,
2018 direction to prioritize all actions needed to meet AHSC deadlines.

CONTACT PERSON
Amy Davidson, Senior Community Development Project Coordinator, Health, Housing &
Community Services, (510) 981-5406

Page 5
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7 221



Page 6 of 8

Grant Application: California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities CONSENT CALENDAR
Infrastructure and Agreements in Connection with Proposed Berkeley Way Project January 22, 2019

Beth Thomas, Principal Planner, Public Works, (510) 981-7068

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 6
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7 222



Page 7 of 8

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

CALIFORNIA AFFORDABLE HOUSING AND SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES
INFRASTRUCTURE GRANT APPLICATION AND AGREEMENT WITH PROPOSED
BERKELEY WAY PROJECT

WHEREAS, Milvia Bikeway and the Addison Bike Boulevard were identified in the
Berkeley Bicycle Plan (2017); and

WHEREAS, Shattuck intersection treatments from Berkeley Way to Vine Street and
sidewalk bulbouts at the University Avenue intersections with Grant and Sacramento
Streets were identified in the Berkeley Pedestrian Master Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Southside Complete Streets project was identified in the Berkeley
Strategic Transportation Plan; and

WHEREAS, City General Plan Policy T-2 calls on the City to “implement improvements
to make transit more convenient, dependable, and attractive” and Policy T-4 establishes
the City’s Transit-First Policy concerning identified Primary and Secondary Transit
Routes; and

WHEREAS, Shattuck Avenue and University Avenue are identified in the City General
Plan as Primary Transit Routes; and

WHEREAS, the Milvia Bikeway, Addison Bike Boulevard, University Avenue Transit
Priority Street and Southside Complete Streets project are referred to as the “City
Transportation Projects,” and the Shattuck intersection treatments and sidewalk bulbouts,
Addison Bike Boulevard and Southside Complete Streets project are referred to as the
“Alternative City Projects;” and

WHEREAS, the City selected the BRIDGE Housing Corporation and the Berkeley Food
and Housing Project acting in partnership to develop the City-owned site at 2012 Berkeley
Way into affordable housing, permanent supportive housing, temporary housing and
shelter for the homeless and homeless service space, and entered into a Disposition and
Development Agreement dated June 8, 2016, as amended, relating to the proposed
development of the site; and

WHEREAS, the City Transportation Projects and Alternative City Projects are all related
to the proposed Berkeley Way project; and

WHEREAS, the BRIDGE Housing Corporation and the Berkeley Food and Housing
Project, and/or their affiliates (including BRIDGE Berkeley Way LP and BFHP Hope
Center LP), propose to apply for California Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities (AHSC) funding for about $20M in housing, transportation and infrastructure
improvements in February 2019 which, if the application is successful, would result in up
to approximately $3.8M required to be passed through to the City to deliver either the City

OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7

223



Page 8 of 8

January 22, 2019

Transportation Projects (if the Milvia Bikeway project does not receive an Active
Transportation Program (ATP) grant in January 2019) or the Alternative City Projects (if
the Milvia Bikeway project does receive an ATP grant in January 2019); and

WHEREAS, the Council of the City of Berkeley on March 13, 2018 directed staff to
prioritize all actions needed to meet AHSC deadlines.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is authorized to negotiate, enter into and cause the City to perform its
obligations under one or more agreements (including amendments) with the BRIDGE
Housing Corporation, Berkeley Food and Housing Project (BFHP), and their affiliates
(including BRIDGE Berkeley Way LP and BFHP Hope Center LP), relating to a grant
application to the California Affordable Housing and Sustainable Communities (AHSC)
program for Berkeley Way project-related transportation and infrastructure
improvements, for a total amount up to $3,800,000 for City-projects, and to accept and
perform the grant if awarded.

Page 2
OAK #4832-0581-7218 v7

224



Page 1 of 18

{ CITY ©F

[

Office of the City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager

Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources

Subject: Classification and Salary: Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and
Equipment Superintendent

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution amending Resolution No. 68,710-N.S. Classification and Salary
Resolution for Public Employees Union - Local One, to increase the salary range for
Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and Equipment Superintendent, 6.3% and
6.0% respectively, to an hourly salary range of $55.7482 - $67.3564 effective January 22,
2019.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The Superintendent classifications in the City have three pay ranges. The Equipment
Superintendent pay range is $52.6173-$63.5814; the Public Works Maintenance
Superintendent salary pay range is $52.4689-$63.3265; the Parks Superintendent and
the Facilities Maintenance Superintendent classification pay ranges are $55.7482-
$67.3564.

The current Equipment Maintenance Division is comprised of two (2) sections:
Corporation Yard and Transfer Station. The Division reporting structure consists of: one
(1) Equipment Superintendent, one (1) Senior Equipment Supervisor, two (2) Mechanic
Supervisors, one (1) Lead Mechanic, eight (8) Mechanics, five (5) Service Technicians,
and one (1) Welder Mechanic. The Division is also responsible for all fleet replacements
and new-to-fleet purchases.

The current Public Works Maintenance Division is comprised of three (3) sections:
Sewers/Clean Cities  Operations, Parking Meter  Maintenance/Collection,
Street/Stormwater Maintenance, and Traffic Maintenance. The Division reporting
structure consists of one (1) Superintendent, two (2) Senior Supervisors, sixteen (16)
Supervisors, one (1) Equipment Operator, fifteen (15) Skilled Laborers, twenty one (21)
Laborers, six (6) Parking Meter Maintenance Workers, five (5) Parking Meter Mechanics,
three (3) Traffic Maintenance Worker |, two (2) Traffic Maintenance Worker I, one (1)
Construction Equipment Operator, two (2) Concrete Finishers, and one (1) Concrete
Equipment Operator.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

09

225


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
09


Page 2 of 18

Classification and Salary: Public Works Maintenance Superintendent CONSENT CALENDAR
and Equipment Superintendent January 22, 2019

The current Parks Division is comprised of three (3) sections: Urban Forestry,
Landscape Operations and Building Maintenance. The Division reporting structure
consists of: one (1) Superintendent, three (3) Senior Supervisors, six (6) Supervisors, one
(1) Forestry Technician, three (3) Senior Forestry Climbers, four (4) Forestry Climbers,
three (3) Sr. Landscape Gardeners, fifteen (15) Gardeners, four (4) Landscape
Equipment Operators, one (1) Rosarian, one (1) Senior Groundskeeper, one (1)
Management Analyst, nine (9) Building Maintenance Mechanics, and one (1) Office
Specialist.

The current Facilities Maintenance Division is comprised of three (3) sections: Electrical,
Building Maintenance and Janitorial. The Division reporting structure consists of: one (1)
Superintendent, two (2) Senior Supervisors, two (2) Supervisors, three (3) Lead
Electricians, seven (7) Electricians, one (1) Lead Communication Technician, three (3)
Communication Technicians, five (5) Building Maintenance Mechanics, seven (7)
Janitors, one (1) Electrical Parts Technician, and one (1) Warehouse Operations
Specialist.

The Parks Superintendent and Facilities Maintenance Superintendent Classifications
share the same pay range which is higher than the Public Works Maintenance
Superintendent and Equipment Superintendent Classification ranges. Increasing the
salary range for Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and Equipment
Superintendent, 6.3% and 6.0% respectively, to an hourly salary range of $55.7482
- $67.3564 would align pay ranges across the Superintendent classifications.

BACKGROUND

The Human Resources Department contracted with Cooperative Personnel Services
(CPS) to conduct a classification survey and make a recommendation on the internal
equity for the following classifications: Facilities Maintenance Superintendent, Parks
Superintendent, Equipment Superintendent and Public Works Maintenance
Superintendent. After a thorough review of the duty focus and classification of each
position, a recommendation was made to assign all Superintendent classifications to the
same pay range based on essential duties and scope of responsibility.

The Personnel Board met on December 3, 2018 and approved the following actions which
include aligning pay ranges across the four Superintendent Classifications:

Action Item VII. Recommendation to Amend the Classification of Facilities
Superintendent, Equipment Superintendent and Parks Superintendent.

Motion Seconded and Carried by Board Members Dixon and Murray
Vote: Ayes: 7

Noes: 0

Abstains: 0

Absent: 2

Page 2

226



Page 3 of 18

Classification and Salary: Public Works Maintenance Superintendent CONSENT CALENDAR
and Equipment Superintendent January 22, 2019

Action Item VIIl. Recommendation to Amend the Salary of Public Works Maintenance
Superintendent.

Motion Seconded and Carried by Board Members Dixon and Murray
Vote: Ayes: 7

Noes: 0

Abstains: 0

Absent: 2

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

It has been the policy of the City to create the necessary classification and salary schedule
to accommodate new duties and responsibilities, reflect programmatic changes, maintain
competitive salaries and, when applicable, comply with regulatory requirements.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, (510) 981-6807

Attachments:
1. Class Specification: Equipment Superintendent

2. Class Specification: Public Works Maintenance Superintendent
3. Resolution and Exhibit A and B: Salary Schedules

Page 3 227



Page 4 of 18

Equipment
Superintendent i

Bargaining Unit: Public Employees Union, Local One

CITY OF BERKELEY
Established Date: Nov 1, 1988
Revision Date: December 3, 2018

SALARY RANGE

$52.62 - $63.58 Hourly
$4,209.38 - $5,086.51 Biweekly
$9,120.33 - $11,020.78 Monthly
$109,443.98 - $132,249.31 Annually

DESCRIPTION:

DEFINITION

Under administrative direction, plans, organizes, and directs, through subordinate supervisors, the activities of the
Equipment Maintenance Division; per forms related work as assigned.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class has division level responsibility for the administration of the City wide vehicle and equipment maintenance
program within general policy guidelines. The incumbent is responsible for formulating policy, developing goals and
objectives, supervising staff, administering the division budget, and directing day to day activities. It is distinguished from
Senior Equipment Supervisor in that it has program planning and administration responsibilities for the entire division. It
is further distinguished from Operations Manager, which is responsible for the administration of several assigned divisions
or programs.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES:

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types of work that may be performed and the level of
technical complexity of the assignment(s) and is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties. The omission of a specific
duty statement does not exclude it from the position if the work is consistent with the concept of the classification, or is
similar or closely related to another duty statement.

1. Plans, organizes, coordinates, administers and directs the work of the Equipment Maintenance Division; develops and
directs the implementation of goals, objectives, policies, procedures and work standards for the Division;

2. Develops and implements management systems, procedures and standards for program evaluation; prepares or directs
the preparation of a variety of studies and reports related to current and long range City needs and develops specific
proposals to meet them;

3. Directs maintenance and repair activities, including planning, estimation, scheduling, inspection and monitoring work
being performed;

4. Directs the preparation and administration of the division budget; prepares and maintains a wide variety of written
records and correspondence;

5. Directs the selection, supervision, work evaluation and discipline of division staff and provides for their training and
development; interprets City personnel and MOU provisions; provides technical assistance to staff;

6. Prepares or reviews reports for the City Manager, boards, commission and other organizations; works closely with
public and private organizations or individuals to explain or coordinate proposed programs; responds to complaints or
inquiries by phone or in person;

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

228


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager

Page 5 of 18

7. Coordinates the work of the division with other City divisions and departments, outside agencies or concerned groups;
8. Ensures compliance of division activities to pertinent codes, regulations and guidelines; monitors developments related
to equipment maintenance, evaluates their impact and implements policy and procedure improvements;integrates new
program activities into maintenance schedules; prepares specifications and makes recommendations on the purchase,
sale, and disposal of new and used vehicles and equipment;

9. Maintains security of the Corporation Yard;

10. Performs related duties as assigned.

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES:

Note: The level and scope of the knowledges and skills listed below are related to job duties as defined under Class
Characteristics.

Knowledge of:

1. Principles and practices of vehicle and equipment maintenance and repair as related to a large and varied fleet
maintenance program;

2. Administrative principles and methods, including goal setting, program development and implementation, and
employee supervision;

3. Principles and practices of budget development and administration;
4. Theories, principles, techniques and equipment used vehicle and equipment of maintenance and repair;

5. Safety regulations, safe work practices and safety equipment related to the work; codes, ordinances and guidelines
pertaining to the work microcomputer applications related to the work;

6. Microcomputer applications related to the work.

Skill in:

1. Planning, assigning, directing and coordinating a variety of functional specialties with overlapping work areas;
2. Managing and directing a large vehicle and equipment program;

3. Selecting, motivating, and evaluating staff and providing for their training and development;

4. Preparing, administering and monitoring a division budget;

5. Analyzing complex operational and administrative problems, evaluating alternatives and recommending or
implementing effective courses of action;

6. Developing and implementing goals, objectives, policies, procedures, work standards and management controls;
7. Preparing clear and concise records, reports, correspondence and other written materials;
8. Exercising independent judgment within general policy guidelines;

9. Establishing and maintaining effective working relationships with those encountered in the course of the work.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS OUTLINED ABOVE IS:

Equivalent to graduation from high school supplemented by college level coursework in automotive mechanics or a closely
related field and seven (7) years of increasingly responsible equipment maintenance experience at the journey level or
above which includes a minimum of three (3) years supervision at a level equivalent to or above the m class. Additional
administrative experience may be substituted for the supplemental coursework.

College level coursework in public or business administration, engineering or a closely related field may be substituted for

229



Page 6 of 18

the non supervisory experience, on a year-for-year basis.
OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Must possess a valid California driver's license and have a satisfactory driving record.

230



Page 7 of 18

Public Works
Maintenance s co:
Superintendent

Bargaining Unit: Public Employees Union, Local One

e
rm
A
)
m
Ir__|1
-

CITY OF BERKELEY
Established Date: Oct 1, 1988
Revision Date: November 5, 2018

SALARY RANGE

$52.47-$63.33 Hourly
$4,197.51 - $5,066.12 Biweekly
$9,094.61 - $10,976.60 Monthly
$109,135.31 - $131,719.12 Annually

DESCRIPTION:

DEFINITION

Under direction, plans, organizes, and directs, through subordinate supervisors, the activities of the Street and Sanitation
Division; performs related work as assigned.

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS

This class has division level responsibility for the administration of the City wide streets and sanitation program within
general policy guidelines, responsibility for formulating policy, developing goals and objectives, supervising staff,
administering the division budget, and directing day to day activities. It is distinguished from Senior Public Works
Supervisor in that it has program planning and administration responsibilities for both the streets and sanitation
programs, whereas the latter class is responsible for the daily operations for an assigned section. It is further
distinguished from Operations Manager, which is responsible for the administration of several assigned divisions or
programs.

EXAMPLES OF DUTIES:

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types of work that may be performed and the level of
technical complexity of the assignment(s) and is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties. The omission of a
specific duty statement does not exclude it from the position if the work is consistent with the concept of the
classification, or is similar or closely related to another duty statement.

1. Plans, organizes, coordinates, administers and directs the work of the Street and Sanitation Division; develops and
directs the implementation of goals, objectives, policies, procedures and work standards for the Division;

2. Develops and implements management systems, procedures and standards for program evaluation;

3. Prepares or directs the preparation of a variety of studies and reports related to current and long range City needs and
develops specific proposals to meet them;

4. Directs maintenance and construction activities, including planning, estimation, scheduling, inspection and monitoring
work being performed;

5. Directs the preparation and administration of the division budget;

6. Directs the selection, supervision, work evaluation and discipline of division staff and provides for their training and

231



Page 8 of 18

development;

7. Interprets City personnel and MOU provisions;

8. Prepares or reviews reports for the City Manager, boards, commission and other organizations;

9. Works closely with public and private organizations or individuals to explain or coordinate proposed programs;
10. Responds to citizen complaints or inquiries by phone or in person;

11. Coordinates the work of the division with other City divisions and departments, outside agencies or concerned citizen
groups;

12. Ensures compliance of division activities to pertinent codes, regulations and guidelines; monitors developments
related to street and sewer construction and maintenance, evaluates their impact and implements policy and procedure
improvements;

13. Provides technical assistance to staff;

14. Prepares and maintains written records and correspondence;

15. Integrates new program activities into maintenance schedules;

16. Responds to hazardous waste spills on emergency basis and coordinates inter agency response;

17. Coordinates City's Emergency Operations Plan for the Department.

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES:

Note: The level and scope of the knowledge and skills listed below are related to job duties as defined under Class
Characteristics.

Knowledge of:

1. Principles and practices of street and sewer construction, maintenance and repair;

2. Administrative principles and methods, including goal setting, program development and implementation;

3. Principles and practices of effective employee supervision, including selection, training, work evaluation and discipline;
4. Principles and practices of budget development and administration;

5. Theories, principles, techniques and equipment used in public works street and sewer maintenance and operations;
6. Safety regulations, safe work practices and safety equipment related to the work;

7. Codes, ordinances and guidelines pertaining to the work;

8. Micro computer applications related to the work.

Skill in:

1. Planning, assigning, directing and coordinating a variety of functional specialties with overlapping work areas;

2. Managing and directing a large street and sewer maintenance and construction program;

3. Selecting, motivating, and evaluating staff and providing for their training and development;

4. Preparing, administering and monitoring a division budget;

5. Analyzing complex operational and administrative problems, evaluating alternatives and recommending or
implementing effective courses of action;

6. Developing and implementing goals, objectives, policies, procedures, work standards and management controls;

7. Preparing clear and concise records, reports, correspondence and other written materials;

232



Page 9 of 18

8. Exercising independent judgment within general policy guidelines;

9. Establishing and maintaining effective working relationships with those encountered in the course of the work.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:

Must possess a valid California driver's license and have a satisfactory driving record.

Equivalent to graduation from high school supplemented by college level coursework in civil engineering or a closely
related field and seven (7) years of increasingly responsible street and sewer construction and maintenance experience
which includes a minimum of three (3) years supervision equivalent to the level of the Public Works Supervisor class.
Additional administrative experience may be substituted for the supplemental coursework.

College level coursework in public or business administration, civil engineering or a closely related field may be
substituted for the non supervisory experience, on a year-for-year basis.

CLASSIFICATION HISTORY:

Public Works Maintenance Superintendent
Classification Code13120

Classification Established10/01/1988

Classification Revised10/6/2008

Classification Revised11/5/2018

FLSA Status Exempt

Administrative Leave/Overtime Administrative Leave
Representation Unit Local One

Probationary Period One year

Workers’ Compensation Code8830

233



Page 10 of 18

RESOLUTION NO. ## ###-N.S.

CLASSIFICATION REVISION : PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE SUPERINTENDENT
AND PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT SUPERINTENDENT

WHEREAS, the Human Resources Department maintains the Classification and
Compensation plan for the City of Berkeley; and

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works had recommended revising the Public Works
Maintenance Superintendent and Equipment Superintendent classification; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Public Works and Human Resources Department have
completed a classification and salary review; and

WHEREAS, the Personnel Board recommended on December 3, 2018 to revise the
classifications of Public Works Maintenance Superintendent and Equipment Superintendent
to an to an hourly salary range of $55.7482 - $67.3564; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that
Resolution No. 68,710-N.S., Classification and Salary Resolution for Public Employees
Union - Local One is amended to increase the salary range for Public Works Maintenance
Superintendent and Equipment Superintendent to an hourly salary range of $55.7482 -
$67.3564 effective January 22, 2019 (Exhibits A and B).

234



Page 11 of 18

EXHIBIT A — Salaries — 3% COLA Eff 12/16/18

JOB REP AL | STEP | STEP | STEP | STEP | STEP | STEP
i e CLASSIFICATION TITLE FLsa| | 5 c 5 - .
13500 M | Accounting Manager E | AL | 57.8978 | 60.7848 | 63.8284 | 67.0195 | 70.3673
14630 M f‘ﬂir:;rgztrra”ve & Fiscal Services E | AL | 51.3399 | 53.9111 | 56.6067 | 59.4405 | 62.4125 | 65.4742
13170 M | Animal Services Manager E | AL | 57.5277 | 60.2906 | 63.2164 | 66.3215 | 69.5123
14590 P1 QZSAZS;‘: Building and Safety E | AL | 58.6470 | 61.7204 | 64.9779 | 68.3993 | 71.9999
22060 P1 | Assistant Civil Engineer (Reg) E | AL | 50.7011 | 53.0710 | 55.7140 | 58.4260 | 61.3171
14720 Mo | A3sistantManager of Mental Health E | AL | 55.4254 | 58.2015 | 61.1145 | 64.1706 | 67.3815
22070 P1 | Assistant Public Works Engineer E | OT | 485027 | 50.7011 | 53.0710 | 55.7140 | 58.4260
20010 P1 Assistant Traffic Engineer E AL | 49.0681 | 51.2915 | 53.7311 | 56.4019 | 59.1398
22050 P1 | Associate Civil Engineer E | AL | 55.8425 | 58.5884 | 61.3767 | 64.2854 | 67.4763
22030 P1 Associate Traffic Engineer E AL | 55.8425 | 58.5884 | 61.3767 | 64.2854 | 67.4763
22020 P1 | Associate Utility Engineer E | AL | 55.8425 | 58.5884 | 61.3767 | 64.2854 | 67.4763
13060 M Building and Safety Manager E AL | 70.8366 | 74.9173 | 79.4328 | 83.8470 | 88.7022
22300 P1 | Building Plans Engineer E | AL | 51.6649 | 54.3821 | 57.2452 | 60.2612 | 63.4301
14200 M Camp Manager E | AL | 34.2878 | 36.0034 | 37.7971 | 39.6928 | 41.6747
37040 P1 | Chief of Party N | OT | 44.5399 | 46.6539 | 48.8911 | 51.2928 | 53.6781
14690 M Circulation Services Manager E AL | 48.4453 | 50.6960 | 53.1049 | 55.6504 | 58.3614
28370 P1 | Civic Arts Coordinator E | OT | 44.1326 | 46.2334 | 48.5104 | 50.8864 | 53.3349
14270 P1 | Code Enforcement Supervisor E | AL | 46.8775 | 49.1702 | 51.5737 | 54.0632 | 56.6124
14160 M Communications Manager E | AL | 50.4773 | 53.1281 | 55.9269 | 58.8739 | 61.9688
28140 P1 | Community Services Specialist Ill E | AL | 49.2214 | 51.5737 | 54.1144 | 56.7662 | 59.5122
28050 P1 | Contract Administrator E | AL | 43.4049 | 45.9629 | 48.6774 | 51.5477 | 54.5088
28530 P1 | Crime Analyst N | OT | 44.2768 | 45.4199 | 47.6881 | 50.0754 | 52.5760
14550 P1 | Crime Scene Supervisor E | OT | 44.1572 | 46.1164 | 48.4259 | 50.8379 | 53.3875
13150 M Customer Service Manager E AL | 54.0119 | 56.6549 | 59.3240 | 62.1983 | 65.1834
26160 P1 | Database Administrator E | AL | 49.7192 | 52.3361 | 55.0910 | 57.9898 | 61.0447
37020 P2 | Drafting Technician N | OT | 34.6021 | 36.2274 | 37.8614 | 39.6407 | 41.5824
29230 M| goonamie Development Project E | AL | 54.0119 | 56.6549 | 50.3240 | 62.2069 | 65.1834
24160 P1 Emergency Medical Services Advisor E AL | 47.9783 | 49.7382 | 52.2223 | 54.8379 57.5771
28280 P1 Employment Programs Administrator E AL | 48.6444 | 50.9557 | 53.4726 | 56.0964 | 58.7945
14260 M Energy Program Manager E AL | 53.8579 | 56.5512 | 59.3789 | 62.3480 | 65.4665
37030 P2 Engineering Inspector N OT | 41.6529 | 43.5694 | 45.7489 | 47.8710 | 50.1331
24570 P1 | Environmental Health Supervisor E | AL | 48.8416 | 50.7082 | 52.6481 | 54.6610 | 56.7536
13480 M Eq:f'f‘;'gt?\',‘; fluz':‘/’; g‘te"de"t E | AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 | 67.3564
13440 M Facilities Maintenance E | AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 | 67.3564

Superintendent

235




Page 12 of 18

JOB REP N At A - an AL | STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP
13210 M General Services Manager E AL | 55.1750 | 57.9297 | 60.8722 | 63.9433 | 67.2025
65210 P1 Harbormaster E oT 43.7328 | 45.4067 | 47.2804
13770 M Hazardous Materials Manager E AL | 58.8930 | 61.7800 | 64.6918 | 67.8422 | 71.0663
16090 P1 Health Nutrition Program Coordinator N OT | 43.6695 | 45.3890 | 47.1599 | 48.9733 | 50.9406
24470 P1 Efoar:gt%ﬁ””ing’ Education and E | OT | 45.1439 | 46.8972 | 48.8739 | 50.8885 | 52.9998
24730 P1 Health Services Program Specialist E OT | 41.6081 | 43.2250 | 44.9014 | 46.6551 48.5027
16100 P1 Health Services Supervisor E AL | 54.3455 | 56.4499 | 58.7852 | 61.2657 63.7551
23120 P1 Hearing Examiner E AL | 52.6602 | 56.0731 | 59.0331 | 61.6594 | 65.4316
14110 M Home Energy Administrator E AL | 45.7541 | 47.7633 | 49.9063 | 52.0495 54.3336
28980 P1 Homeless Services Coordinator E AL | 48.8488 | 51.1899 | 53.7038 | 56.3429 | 59.0652
14580 P1 Housing Inspector Supervisor E AL | 46.8775 | 49.1702 | 51.5737 | 54.0632 56.6124
22080 P1 Junior Public Works Engineer E OT | 40.8466 | 42.7286 | 44.7732 | 46.9204 | 49.2043
13540 M Land Use Planning Manager E AL | 69.3924 | 72.8483 | 76.5010 | 80.3161 82.8825
14640 M ';\igrﬁ%;t’:;‘ig:‘a“o” Systems E | AL | 50.7021 | 55.7985 | 58.6103 | 61.5646 | 64.7279
14680 M Library Services Manager E AL | 51.0692 | 53.5070 | 56.1160 | 58.6653 | 61.5398
13290 M Manager of Aging Services E AL | 57.7964 | 60.2442 | 63.2582 | 66.4215 69.7414
13730 M Manager of Economic Development E AL | 62.2668 | 65.3976 | 68.6651 | 72.0527 | 75.7225
13100 M Manager of Engineering E AL | 70.8296 | 74.9184 | 79.2470 | 83.8404 88.6996
13680 M Manager of Environmental Health E AL | 57.8012 | 60.6070 | 63.4815 | 66.5694 | 69.7433
13520 M '\S":r’\‘lfcgeir of Housing and Community E | AL | 60.3942 | 63.4301 | 66.5988 | 69.8873 | 73.4481
13390 M Manager of Mental Health Services E AL | 65.0468 | 68.1436 | 71.4539 | 74.9611 78.6052
13670 M Manager of Public Health Services E AL | 60.8167 | 64.0216 | 67.3934 | 70.9439 74.6790
13640 M | wanager, Famiy Health and Nursing | £ | Al | 61.9970 | 65.0990 | 68.3488 | 71.7680 | 75.3566
14220 P1 Mental Health Clinical Supervisor E AL | 46.7229 | 49.1836 | 51.7755 | 54.4985 57.3670
14210 P1 Mental Health Program Supervisor E AL | 51.1942 | 53.5385 | 56.0717 | 58.5968 | 61.2538
14280 M Parking Enforcement Manager E AL | 44.3970 | 46.4166 | 48.8612 | 51.4321 54.1427
13270 M Parking Services Manager E AL | 50.9836 | 53.4815 | 56.0477 | 58.6994 61.5398
13320 M Parks Superintendent E AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 67.3564
13710 P1 Permit Center Coordinator E AL | 55.3784 | 58.1088 | 60.8922 | 63.8486 66.8711
14560 P1 Principal Planner E AL 59.1232 | 61.8295 | 64.5355 | 67.4391
13590 P1 B‘égt‘;y”ﬁ:gﬁhpéﬁéz:“ Physician- E | AL | 83.2314 | 87.4184 | 91.7365 | 96.3099 | 101.1052
13220 M Public Safety Business Manager E AL | 56.4069 | 59.1016 | 62.0272 | 65.0812 | 68.1948

Public Works Maintenance
13120 M Superintendent E AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 | 67.3564
*** effective 1/22/19

13650 M Public Works Operations Manager E AL | 59.5863 | 62.7252 | 66.0263 | 69.5014 | 73.1565
14750 M Real Property Administrator E AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 67.3564
13510 M Records Manager E AL | 47.5788 | 49.8373 | 52.3180 | 54.8928 | 57.5104
13330 m | Recreation and Youth Services E | AL | 57.5277 | 60.0427 | 63.0451 | 66.1931 | 69.5123

Manager

236




Page 13 of 18

JOB REP At~ A tas = v aa | AL | STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP
13340 P1 Recreation Program Supervisor E AL | 39.9514 | 41.9507 | 44.0472 | 46.2554 | 48.5682
28900 M Recycling Program Manager AL | 50.7182 | 53.1907 | 55.6885 | 58.4260 | 61.2315
13530 M Revenue Collection Manager E AL | 54.0119 | 56.6549 | 59.3240 | 62.1983 | 65.1834
21350 M Revenue Development Supervisor E AL | 47.7122 | 49.9774 | 52.4422 | 54.9998 | 57.6704
21190 P1 Senior Accountant E AL | 47.7756 | 50.0767 | 52.5320 | 55.1152 | 57.7501
21200 P1 Senior Auditor E AL | 47.7072 | 49.9742 | 52.4378 | 55.0040 | 57.6644
13350 P1 gsgg’ézgﬂdmg Maintenance E | OT | 43.5071 | 45.5684 | 47.8099 | 50.0340 | 52.3951
22010 P1 Senior Building Plans Engineer E AL | 63.1136 | 66.2869 | 69.5891 | 73.0706 | 76.2274
28010 P1 Senior Buyer N OT | 40.0600 | 41.9590 | 43.8921 | 46.0225 | 48.1348
14150 M Senior Citizen Center Director E OT | 39.9007 | 41.6691 | 43.3881 | 45.1240 | 47.4353
28340 P1 gf(;}fgt%%r;‘:gi”n:gf’e"e"’pme”t E | AL | 54.0119 | 56.6549 | 59.3240 | 62.2069 | 65.1834
37130 P2 Senior Drafting Technician N OT | 37.9598 | 39.7117 | 41.5542 | 43.4704 | 45.5926
14050 P1 Senior Electrical Supervisor E AL 55.5947 | 58.1116 60.9742
14530 P1 Senior Equipment Supervisor E AL | 45.4319 | 47.5960 | 49.9572 | 52.3863 | 54.9272
14070 P1 Senior Forestry Supervisor E OT | 48.3894 | 50.6758 | 53.1763 | 55.6439 | 58.2680
24680 P1 ggggglgfa'th Services Program E | AL | 47.4592 | 49.2557 | 51.1717 | 53.3190 | 55.3633
23130 P1 Senior Hearing Examiner E AL | 59.9841 | 63.9116 | 67.2406 | 70.2527 | 74.5661
14080 P1 g'jgf&g’;dscape Gardener E | OT | 48.3894 | 50.6758 | 53.1763 | 55.6439 | 58.2680
28110 P1 Senior Management Analyst E AL | 49.2214 | 51.5737 | 54.1144 | 56.7662 | 59.5122
14060 P1 Senior Public Works Supervisor E OT | 43.5071 | 45.5684 | 47.8099 | 50.0340 | 52.3951
14540 P1 Senior Solid Waste Supervisor E OT | 43.9178 | 45.9965 | 48.2631 | 50.5047 | 52.8823
14600 P1 Senior Systems Analyst E AL | 53.5756 | 56.2445 | 59.0930 | 62.0784 | 65.2608
14500 M Seniors Nutrition Program Supervisor N OT | 41.4797 | 43.4642 | 45.4833 | 47.6562 | 50.0596
13140 M Solid Waste and Recycling Manager E AL | 65.0468 | 68.1436 | 71.4539 | 74.9611 | 78.6052
65200 P1 Solid Waste Supervisor E oT 429114 | 445315 | 46.3742
13300 P1 Supervising Building Inspector E AL | 54.7219 | 57.4335 | 60.5303 | 63.0964 | 66.1333
14040 M Supervising Civil Engineer E AL | 63.2931 | 66.3469 | 69.5550 | 72.9168 | 76.4239
12220 M Supervising Hearing Examiner E AL | 64.8770 | 68.1972 | 71.6514 | 75.2622 | 79.0671
24550 P1 Supervising Public Health Nurse E AL | 59.7071 | 62.0844 | 64.6508 | 67.3159 | 70.1041
14760 M Supervising Systems Analyst E AL | 63.9433 | 67.0826 | 70.2906 | 73.7550 | 77.2881
13400 M Supervising Traffic Engineer E AL | 63.7721 | 67.0229 | 70.4446 | 74.0374 | 77.8610
37110 P2 Survey Technician N OT | 36.3722 | 38.0666 | 39.8105 | 41.6856 | 43.7255
21210 P1 Systems Accountant E AL | 53.5756 | 56.2445 | 59.0930 | 62.0784 | 65.2608
30010 P1 Traffic Engineering Assistant N oT 36.9973 | 38.8021 40.5729
13410 M Transportation Manager E AL | 68.8611 | 72.3003 | 75.9186 | 79.7087 | 83.6999
14670 M Transportation Services Coordinator E AL | 38.7394 | 40.6815 | 42.7129 | 44.8515 | 47.0914
14620 M Treasury Manager E AL | 57.8998 | 60.7867 | 63.8296 | 67.0165 | 70.3716
13690 M Waterfront Manager E AL | 55.7482 | 58.4514 | 61.2572 | 64.2854 | 67.3564
14700 P1 Waterfront Supervisor E AL | 45.0558 | 47.4325 | 49.9294 | 52.5582 | 55.3250

237




Page 14 of 18

JOB
28870

REP
P1

A1 ACCIFIAATIAL TITI =

Watershed Resources Specialist

r1I oA

AL
AL

STEP
39.8990

STEP
42.0191

STEP
43.9874

STEP
46.1810

STEP
48.4937

STEP

238




Page 15 of 18

EXHIBIT B — Salaries — 2% COLA Eff 10/20/19

JOB REP AL | STEP | STEP | STEP | STEP STEP | STEP
coDE | UNIT CLASSIFICATION TITLE FLsa | 1, 5 c 5 c .
13500 M Accounting Manager E AL | 60.2369 | 63.2405 | 66.4071 69.7271 73.2101
14630 M Q‘;ﬂ;’g;ﬁraﬁve & Fiscal Services E | AL | 53.4140 | 56.0891 | 58.8936 | 61.8419 | 64.9340 | 68.1194
13170 M Animal Services Manager E AL | 59.8519 | 62.7263 | 65.7703 | 69.0009 | 72.3206
14590 P1 QZSAZZ"Q: Building and Safety E | AL | 61.0163 | 64.2233 | 67.6031 | 71.1626 | 74.9087
22060 P1 | Assistant Civil Engineer (Reg) E | AL | 52.7494 | 55.2150 | 57.9649 | 60.7864 | 63.7943
14720 M | AssistantManager of Mental Health | = | | | 57 6646 | 60.5528 | 63.5835 | 66.7631 | 70.1037

Services
22070 P1 | Assistant Public Works Engineer E | OT | 50.4623 | 52.7494 | 55.2150 | 57.9649 | 60.7864
20010 P1 | Assistant Traffic Engineer E | AL | 51.0505 | 53.3636 | 55.9018 | 58.6805 | 61.5291
22050 P1 | Associate Civil Engineer E | AL | 58.0986 | 60.9554 | 63.8563 | 66.8825 | 70.2023
22030 P1 | Associate Traffic Engineer E | AL | 58.0986 | 60.9554 | 63.8563 | 66.8825 | 70.2023
22020 P1 | Associate Utility Engineer E | AL | 58.0986 | 60.9554 | 63.8563 | 66.8825 | 70.2023

13060 M Building and Safety Manager E | AL | 73.6984 | 77.9439 | 82.6419 | 87.2344 | 92.2857
22300 P1 Building Plans Engineer E AL | 53.7522 | 56.5791 | 59.5579 | 62.6957 | 65.9927
14200 M Camp Manager E | AL | 35.6731 | 37.4580 | 39.3241 | 41.2964 | 43.3584
37040 P1 | Chief of Party N | OT | 46.3393 | 48.5387 | 50.8663 | 53.3651 | 55.8467
14690 M Circulation Services Manager E AL | 50.4025 | 52.7441 | 55.2503 | 57.8987 | 60.7192
28370 P1 | Civic Arts Coordinator E | OT | 45.9156 | 48.1013 | 50.4702 | 52.9422 | 55.4896
14270 P1 Code Enforcement Supervisor E AL | 48.7714 | 51.1567 | 53.6573 | 56.2474 | 58.8995
14160 M Communications Manager E | AL | 52.5165 | 55.2745 | 58.1863 | 61.2524 | 64.4724
28140 P1 | Community Services Specialist Ill E | AL | 51.2099 | 53.6573 | 56.3006 | 59.0595 | 61.9164
28050 P1 Contract Administrator E AL | 45.1585 | 47.8198 | 50.6439 53.6303 56.7110
28530 P1 | Crime Analyst N | OT | 46.0655 | 47.2549 | 49.6147 | 52.0984 | 54.7001
14550 P1 Crime Scene Supervisor E OT | 45.9411 | 47.9795 | 50.3823 | 52.8918 | 55.5444
13150 M Customer Service Manager E | AL | 56.1939 | 58.9438 | 61.7207 | 64.7111 | 67.8168
26160 P1 Database Administrator E AL | 51.7279 | 54.4505 | 57.3167 60.3326 63.5109
37020 P2 | Drafting Technician N | OT | 36.0000 | 37.6909 | 39.3910 | 41.2422 | 43.2623
29230 M | goonamie Development Project E | AL | 56.1939 | 58.9438 | 61.7207 | 64.7200 | 67.8168
24160 P1 ig“ﬁ;gf”cy Medical Services E | AL | 49.9167 | 51.7477 | 54.3320 | 57.0534 | 59.9032
28280 P1 i?ﬁﬁ:ﬁ?’sﬁg{‘;rpmgrams E | AL | 50.6096 | 53.0143 | 55.6329 | 58.3627 | 61.1698
14260 M Energy Program Manager E AL | 56.0338 | 58.8358 | 61.7778 | 64.8669 | 68.1113
37030 P2 | Engineering Inspector N | OT | 43.3357 | 45.3296 | 47.5972 | 49.8050 | 52.1585
24570 P1 | Environmental Health Supervisor E | AL | 50.8148 | 52.7568 | 54.7751 | 56.8693 | 59.0465
13480 M Eﬂ‘éﬁ:(‘:‘t’i'\‘,ﬁ‘;gzqigte"de“t E | AL | 58.005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776

239




Page 16 of 18

JOB REP e ___ | AL| STEP | STEP | STEP | STEP STEP | STEP
13440 M gigigfiﬁfeﬁ"jg:fte”ance E | AL | 58.0005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776
13210 M General Services Manager E | AL | 57.4041 | 60.2701 | 63.3314 | 66.5266 | 69.9175
65210 P1 Harbormaster E oT 454997 | 47.2411 49.1905
13770 M Hazardous Materials Manager E AL | 61.2723 | 64.2759 | 67.3053 | 70.5830 | 73.9374
16090 p1 | poalth Mutrition Program N | OT | 45.4338 | 47.2227 | 49.0652 | 50.9519 | 52.9986
24470 P1 ;’f’o""rmtgﬁ””i”g’ Education and E | OT | 46.9677 | 48.7918 | 50.8484 | 52.9444 | 55.1410
24730 P1 | Health Services Program Specialist E | OT | 432891 | 44.9713 | 46.7154 | 48.5400 | 50.4623
16100 P1 | Health Services Supervisor E | AL | 56.5410 | 58.7305 | 61.1601 | 63.7408 | 66.3308
23120 P1 Hearing Examiner E AL | 54.7877 | 58.3385 | 61.4181 64.1505 | 68.0750
14110 M Home Energy Administrator E | AL | 47.6026 | 49.6930 | 51.9225 | 54.1523 | 56.5287
28980 P1 Homeless Services Coordinator E AL | 50.8223 | 53.2580 | 55.8735 | 58.6192 | 61.4514
14580 P1 Housing Inspector Supervisor E AL | 48.7714 | 51.1567 | 53.6573 56.2474 58.8995
22080 P1 Junior Public Works Engineer E OT | 42.4968 | 44.4549 | 46.5821 48.8160 51.1922
13540 M Land Use Planning Manager E AL | 72.1958 | 75.7914 | 79.5916 | 83.5608 | 86.2310
14640 M | Library Information Systems E | AL | 52.7504 | 58.0528 | 60.9782 | 64.0518 | 67.3430
14680 M Library Services Manager E | AL | 53.1324 | 55.6686 | 58.3831 | 61.0354 | 64.0260
13290 M Manager of Aging Services E AL | 60.1313 | 62.6781 | 65.8139 | 69.1049 | 72.5589
13730 M “D”:\rl‘:lgf);gn'fconomic E | AL | 64.7823 | 68.0397 | 71.4392 | 74.9637 | 78.7817
13100 M Manager of Engineering E AL | 73.6911 | 77.9451 | 82.4485 | 87.2275 | 92.2831
13680 M Manager of Environmental Health E | AL | 60.1363 | 63.0555 | 66.0461 | 69.2588 | 72.5610
13520 M 2:"3%?33;'?; Housing and E | AL | 62.8341 | 65.9927 | 69.2894 | 72.7107 | 76.4154
13390 M Manager of Mental Health Services E AL | 67.6747 | 70.8966 | 74.3407 | 77.9895 | 81.7808
13670 M Manager of Public Health Services E | AL | 63.2737 | 66.6080 | 70.1161 | 73.8101 | 77.6961
13640 M '\N"jr“;‘r?;ggzrlgg Health and E | AL | 645016 | 67.7290 | 71.1101 | 74.6675 | 78.4010
14220 P1 | Mental Health Clinical Supervisor E | AL | 48.6105 | 51.1706 | 53.8672 | 56.7003 | 59.6846
14210 P1 Mental Health Program Supervisor E AL | 53.2625 | 55.7015 | 58.3370 | 60.9641 63.7285
14280 M Parking Enforcement Manager E AL | 46.1906 | 48.2918 | 50.8352 | 53.5099 | 56.3301
13270 M Parking Services Manager E AL | 53.0434 | 55.6421 | 58.3121 61.0709 | 64.0260
13320 M Parks Superintendent E AL | 58.0005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776
13710 P1 | Permit Center Coordinator E | AL | 57.6157 | 60.4564 | 63.3522 | 66.4281 | 69.5727
14560 P1 | Principal Planner E | AL 61.5118 | 64.3274 | 67.1427 | 70.1637
13590 P1 B:gﬁfy”::gﬂhpéﬁng Physician- E | AL | 86.5939 | 90.9501 | 95.4426 | 100.2008 | 105.1898
13220 M Public Safety Business Manager E | AL | 58.6857 | 61.4893 | 64.5331 | 67.7105 | 70.9499
Public Works Maintenance

13120 M Superintendent E | AL | 58.0005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776
*** effective 1/22/19

13650 M Public Works Operations Manager E | AL | 61.9936 | 65.2503 | 68.6937 | 72.3092 | 76.1120

240




Page 17 of 18

JOB REP A At At = v an | AL | STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP
14750 M Real Property Administrator E AL | 58.0005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776
13510 M Records Manager E AL | 49.5010 | 51.8507 | 54.4317 | 57.1105 | 59.8338
13330 M ,\Rﬂzf]rae;‘gro” and Youth Services E | AL | 59.8519 | 62.4685 | 65.5921 | 68.8673 | 72.3206
13340 P1 Recreation Program Supervisor E AL | 41.5654 | 43.6455 | 45.8267 | 48.1241 50.5304
28900 M Recycling Program Manager E AL | 52.7673 | 55.3396 | 57.9383 60.7864 63.7052
13530 M Revenue Collection Manager E AL | 56.1939 | 58.9438 | 61.7207 | 64.7111 67.8168
21350 M Revenue Development Supervisor E AL | 49.6397 | 51.9964 | 54.5608 57.2218 60.0003
21190 P1 Senior Accountant E AL | 49.7057 | 52.0998 | 54.6543 | 57.3419 | 60.0832
21200 P1 Senior Auditor E AL | 49.6345 | 51.9932 | 54.5563 | 57.2262 | 59.9941
13350 P1 gﬁgg’ggﬂdi”g Maintenance E | OT | 45.2647 | 47.4004 | 49.7414 | 52.0554 | 54.5119
22010 P1 Senior Building Plans Engineer E AL | 65.6634 | 68.9649 | 72.4005 | 76.0226 | 79.3069
28010 P1 Senior Buyer N OT | 41.6784 | 43.6542 | 45.6653 | 47.8819 | 50.0795
14150 M Senior Citizen Center Director E OT | 41.5127 | 43.3526 | 45.1410 | 46.9470 | 49.3517
28340 P1 gf;}gt%%“gg;’ggrDe"e'Opme”t E | AL | 56.1939 | 58.9438 | 61.7207 | 64.7200 | 67.8168
37130 P2 Senior Drafting Technician N OT | 39.4934 | 41.3160 | 43.2330 | 45.2266 | 47.4346
14050 P1 Senior Electrical Supervisor E AL 57.8407 | 60.4593 | 63.4376
14530 P1 Senior Equipment Supervisor E AL | 47.2673 | 49.5189 | 51.9754 54.5027 57.1462
14070 P1 Senior Forestry Supervisor E OT | 50.3443 | 52.7231 | 55.3246 | 57.8919 | 60.6221
24680 P1 gggggl';fa"h Services Program E | AL | 49.3766 | 51.2456 | 53.2390 | 55.4731 | 57.6000
23130 P1 Senior Hearing Examiner E AL | 62.4075 | 66.4936 | 69.9571 73.0910 | 77.5785
14080 P1 g‘zgie"r:,g;dscape Gardener E | OT | 50.3443 | 52.7231 | 55.3246 | 57.8919 | 60.6221
28110 P1 Senior Management Analyst E AL | 51.2099 | 53.6573 | 56.3006 | 59.0595 | 61.9164
14060 P1 Senior Public Works Supervisor E OT | 45.2647 | 47.4094 | 49.7414 | 52.0554 | 54.5119
14540 P1 Senior Solid Waste Supervisor E OT | 45.6921 | 47.8547 | 50.2130 | 52.5451 | 55.0187
14600 P1 Senior Systems Analyst E AL | 55.7400 | 58.5168 | 61.4804 | 64.5864 | 67.8973
14500 M g‘jgieorﬁs'\;‘:t”m” Program N | OT | 43.1555 | 45.2202 | 47.3209 | 49.5815 | 52.0820
13140 M ,\SA‘;'Lda;‘fr‘Ste and Recycling E | AL | 67.6747 | 70.8966 | 74.3407 | 77.9895 | 81.7808
65200 P1 Solid Waste Supervisor E oT 446450 | 46.3305 | 48.2477
13300 P1 Supervising Building Inspector E AL | 56.9326 | 59.7538 | 62.9757 | 65.6455 | 68.8051
14040 M Supervising Civil Engineer E AL | 65.8502 | 69.0273 | 72.3650 | 75.8626 | 79.5114
12220 M Supervising Hearing Examiner E AL | 67.4980 | 70.9523 | 74.5461 78.3027 | 82.2614
24550 P1 Supervising Public Health Nurse E AL | 62.1192 | 64.5926 | 67.2627 | 70.0354 | 72.9363
14760 M Supervising Systems Analyst E AL | 66.5266 | 69.7928 | 73.1303 | 76.7347 | 80.4106
13400 M Supervising Traffic Engineer E AL | 66.3485 | 69.7307 | 73.2906 | 77.0285 | 81.0066
37110 P2 Survey Technician N OT | 37.8416 | 39.6045 | 41.4188 | 43.3697 | 45.4920
21210 P1 Systems Accountant E AL | 55.7400 | 58.5168 | 61.4804 | 64.5864 | 67.8973
30010 P1 Traffic Engineering Assistant N oT 38.4919 | 40.3697 | 42.2121

241




Page 18 of 18

o — e . |AL] step | sTep | stEP | sTEP | sSTEP | sTEP
13410 M Transportation Manager E AL | 71.6431 | 75.2212 | 78.9857 | 82.9290 | 87.0814
14670 M | Transportation Services E | AL | 40.3045 | 42.3250 | 44.4385 | 46.6635 | 48.9939
Coordinator
14620 M | Treasury Manager E | AL | 60.2390 | 63.2424 | 66.4083 | 69.7239 | 73.2146
13690 M | Waterfront Manager E | AL | 58.0005 | 60.8128 | 63.7319 | 66.8825 | 70.0776
14700 P1 | Waterfront Supervisor E | AL | 46.8760 | 49.3488 | 51.9466 | 54.6816 | 57.5601
28870 P1 Watershed Resources Specialist E AL | 41.5109 | 43.7167 | 45.7644 | 48.0467 | 50.4529

242




Page 1 of 4

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources

Subject: Fee Assessment — State of California Self-Insurance Fund (Workers’
Compensation Program)

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution amending Resolution 68,696-N.S. to authorize payment to the State
of California Department of Industrial Relations for Fiscal Year 2019 for administering the
Workers’ Compensation Program for an additional amount of $4,041.84 with a total
amount not to exceed of $223,041.84.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

The Fiscal Year 2018 Assessment Fee totaled $182,176 which was a 10% increase over
the 2017 Fee. City Council met on December 4, 2018. At that time the 2019 fee had not
yet been determined by the Department of Industrial Relations. Our third party
administrator, Innovative Claims Solutions (ICS), anticipated that the Fiscal Year 2019
fee would be no more than 20% above the Fiscal Year 2018 fee. With this information,
on December 4, 2018, City Council approved Resolution No. 68,696-N.S. which
authorized payment to not exceed $219,000.

On December 7, 2018, City Human Resources Department received the official 2019
assessment fees invoice from the Department of Industrial Relations, Office of Self-
Insurance Plans. The total billed is $223,041.84 which is a 22.43% increase. This
invoice exceeds the approval amount of $219,000 in Resolution No. 68,696-N.S by
$4,041.84. Funding for this annual fee is included in the Workers’ Compensation Self-
Insurance Fund, Budget Code 676-99-900-900-0000-000-472-612240-.

BACKGROUND

The State of California Department of Industrial Relations regulates the Workers’
Compensation Insurance Industry. Under California Labor Code Sections 62.5 and 62,
every year, each City is assessed a fee by the Department of Industrial Relations to
support the administration of the State’s Workers’ Compensation Program. The
assessments provide a stable funding source to support operations of the courts to
resolve claims more quickly and improve the overall operation of the state workers’
compensation system; to ensure safe and healthy working conditions on the job; to

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 e TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

10

243


mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
10


Page 2 of 4

Fee Assessment - State of California Self-Insurance Fund CONSENT CALENDAR
(Workers’ Compensation Program) January 22, 2019

ensure the enforcement of labor standards and requirements for workers’ compensation
coverage.

Labor Code Sections 62.5 and 62.6 require allocation of the total assessment between
insured and self-insured employers in proportion to payroll for the most recent year
available. The City’s total assessment is calculated by multiplying Self-Insured Employer
Assessment Factors for each assessment by the total indemnity paid by the City.

On December 5, 2017, Council Approved Resolution No. 68,245-N.S. authorizing the
Workers’ Compensation payment to the State of California, Department of Industrial
Relations for Fiscal Year 2018 in an amount not to exceed $182,176. The actual Fiscal
Year 2018 Assessment Fee totaled $182,176.

For Fiscal Year 2019 the actual Assessment Fee total billed was $223,041.84. The
increase is primarily associated with administrative costs due to the rising costs of
pursuing employers who break employment laws, including employers who violate
workplace safety standards statewide and those who fail to carry workers’ compensation
coverage for their workforce.

The City’s share for the Fiscal Year 2019 assessment authorized under Labor Code
Sections 62.5 and 62.6 for our self-insurance plan will be broken down as follows:

l. Workers’ Compensation Administration Revolving Fund Assessment
Il. Uninsured Employers Benefits Trust Fund Assessment
II. Subsequent Injuries Benefits Trust Fund Assessment
V. Occupational Safety and Health Fund Assessment
V. Workers’ Compensation Fraud Account Assessment
VI. Labor Enforcement and Compliance Fund
ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the
subject of this report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
Required annual funding is for the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None. This is a state-mandated fee assessment.

Page 2 244



Page 3 of 4

Fee Assessment - State of California Self-Insurance Fund CONSENT CALENDAR
(Workers’ Compensation Program) January 22, 2019

CONTACT PERSON
LaTanya Bellow, Director of Human Resources, 981-6807

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 3 245



Page 4 of 4

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS (WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PROGRAM) FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2019 FEES FOR AN ADDITIONAL AMOUNT OF $4,041.84 FOR A TOTAL
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED OF $223,041.84

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is Self-Insured for Workers’ Compensation since 1979;
and

WHEREAS, the Workers’ Compensation Insurance Industry is administered and
regulated by the State of California, Department of Industrial Relations; and

WHEREAS, the State of California, under California Labor Code Section 62.5 and 62.6,
authorizes the Department of Industrial Relations to assess fees to employers for costs
of administering the Workers’ Compensation Program; and

WHEREAS, the City of Berkeley is assessed each year by the Department of Industrial
Relations to support the state program; and

WHEREAS, for Council adopted Resolution 68,696-N.S. for Fiscal Year 2019 for Fee
Assessment — State of California Self-Insurance Fund (Workers’ Compensation Program)
for $219,000.00; and

WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2019, the City’s share of assessments authorized by Labor
Code Sections 62.5 and 62.6 is not expected to exceed $223,041.84; and

WHEREAS, funds are available in the current budget in the Workers’” Compensation
Fund, budget code 676-99-900-900-0000-000-472-612240-4.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that
Resolution 68,696-N.S. be amended so that the City Manager is authorized to pay the
State of California, Department of Industrial Relations, Self-Insurance Plans invoice for
Fiscal Year 2019 for Workers’ Compensation Administration Revolving Fund
Assessment; Uninsured Employers Benefits Trust Fund Assessment; Subsequent
Injuries Benefits Trust Fund Assessment; Occupational Safety and Health Fund
Assessment; Labor Enforcement and Compliance Fund; and Workers’ Compensation
Fraud Account Assessment for an additional amount of $4,041.84 for a total amount not
to exceed $223,041.84.

246



Page 1 of 3

11

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Contract: Siegel & Strain Architects for Design Services for the Cazadero
Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any
amendments with Siegel & Strain Architects in an amount not to exceed $158,000 to
provide design services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design
Project.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

Funding is available in the FY 2019 budget in the Camps Fund budget code 125-52-
543-581-0000-000-461-612310 PRWEM16004. No other funding is required, and no
other projects will be delayed due to this expenditure. The cost of this this contract is
anticipated to be covered by insurance payments (partial payments received).

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

The City of Berkeley has owned Cazadero Camp in Sonoma County since 1927. In
April of 2016, a landslide occurred at Cazadero Camp causing irreparable damage to
the existing Jensen Dorm structure, Austin Creek Road and multiple trees. The
hazardous trees were removed, Jensen Dormitory demolished and the debris removed,
and the permanent landslide repair work (including repair of Austin Creek Road)
completed. The final landslide recovery work is to design and construct a replacement
of the Jensen Dormitory structure that was destroyed by the landslide.

BACKGROUND
The total cost estimate for the Cazadero Landslide Repair Project is $2.1M. Project
costs are anticipated to be covered by insurance.

On November 13, 2018 the City issued a request for proposals for architectural and
engineering design services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement
Design Project (Spec No. 18-11209-C). The City received one proposal, from Siegel &
Strain Architects. The City has determined that Siegel & Strain Architects are well suited
to meet the City’s needs for this Project, and insurance has accepted the proposed Siegel
& Strain scope of work and budget as eligible for claim coverage.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 247
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
11


Page 2 of 3

Contract: Siegel & Strain Architects for Design Services for the CONSENT CALENDAR
Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design Project January 22, 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

This Project replaces a destroyed building. The replacement building will be designed
to meet current building code, representing a significant improvement in energy and
water efficiency compared to the prior structure. This project will comply with the City’s
Climate Action Plan in the following ways: increased energy efficiency in public
buildings, and providing a public resource for community outreach and empowerment.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The replacement of Jensen Dormitory is necessary to restore the capacity of Cazadero
Camp, and the Project is insurance funded. The City does not have the in-house
resources to complete design of the replacement structure.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Scott Ferris, Director, PRW, 981-6700
Liza McNulty, Project Manager, PRW, 981-6437

Attachments:
1: Resolution

Page 2

248



Page 3 of 3

RESOLUTION NO. #####-N.S.

CONTRACT: SIEGEL & STRAIN ARCHITECTS FOR DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE
CAZADERO CAMP JENSEN DORM REPLACEMENT DESIGN

WHEREAS, the City has owned the Cazadero Camp since 1927; and
WHEREAS, in April, 2016 a landslide destroyed the Jensen Dormitory; and

WHEREAS, on November 13, 2018 the City issued a Request for Proposals for design
services for the Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design Project (Spec
No. 18-11209-C) and has identified Siegel & Strain Architects as well-suited for the City’s
needs; and

WHEREAS, funding is available in the FY 2019 budget in the Camps Fund (Fund 125).

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the
City Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract and any amendments with Siegel
& Strain Architects in an amount not to exceed $158,000 for design services for the
Cazadero Camp Jensen Dormitory Replacement Design Project. A record signature copy
of said agreements and any amendments to be on file in the Office of the City Clerk.

249



250



Page 1 of 224

12

( CITY °F

-

Office of the City Manager
CONSENT CALENDAR

January 22, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager
Submitted by: Scott Ferris, Director, Parks Recreation & Waterfront

Subject: Adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
Permit (46690) Project

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt a Resolution adopting the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) and Mitigation
Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) for the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit
(46690) Project.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION

There are no direct fiscal impacts associated with the adoption of mitigated negative
declaration environmental documents. The Mitigated Negative Declaration for the City
of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project was prepared by 2M Associates
under the contract number 7470E. Funding to complete the Tuolumne Camp Project
Permit (No. 46690) was appropriated in budget code 125-52-543-583.0000-000-461-
612310, Project Code PRWCP08001.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City retained
2M Associates to prepare the Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND)
and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (MMRP) environmental documents to
assess the environmental impacts of the proposed reconstruction and operation of
Berkeley Tuolumne Camp. The MND determined that the project will have less than
significant environmental impacts if specific mitigation measures are implemented. The
specific mitigation measures are detailed in the attached Final Initial Study / Mitigated
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.

On August 30, 2018, the Draft MND was distributed to the State Clearinghouse, all
regulatory agencies having jurisdiction over the Project, and interested stakeholders for
the required thirty day public review period. On September 12, 2018, the MND was
presented at the regular meeting of the Parks and Waterfront Commission. On October
2, 2018, the State Clearinghouse provided the City with comments received by the
responding agencies, and confirmation that the City has complied with the State
Clearinghouse review requirements for draft environmental document, pursuant to the

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 o Tel: (510) 981-7000 o TDD: (510) 981-6903 e Fax: (510) 981-7099 251
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager



mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
12


Page 2 of 224

Adopt MND and MMRP for the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

California Environmental Quality Act. A total of 11 written comment letters from both
agencies and members of the public were received.

On December 10, 2018, the City published the Response to Comments and Final MND,
which modified the Draft MND where appropriate, and notified all commenters of its
availability for the required 10-day review period. During this final review period,
clarifying questions from one commenter were received and responded to; no other
comments on the Response to Comment and Final MND were received.

BACKGROUND

Berkeley Tuolumne Camp, established in 1922, is a 15-acre property operated under a
Special Use Permit with the US Forest Service (USFS). The camp has served primarily as
a family camp, but also offered teen leadership programs, adult hiking camps, and private
group rental opportunities. Prior to the fire, BTC had the capacity to host approximately
280 campers, 60 staff members, and 10 counselors-in-training at one time, and served
over 4,000 campers each year. The major facilities at the Camp included a Dining Hall; a
Recreation Hall, 77 small single-story wood-frame camper tent cabins; staff cabins;
maintenance and storage structures; swimming areas; a bridge across the river; parking
and loading areas, and electric, water supply, and wastewater utilities.

In August of 2013, the Rim Fire destroyed Berkeley Tuolumne Camp (BTC) and in
December was declared a federal disaster. The majority of structures at BTC were
destroyed by the fire. The property was covered by the City’s insurance policy, and
insurance proceeds will be the primary source of reconstruction funds. The City has also
been awarded a Public Assistance Grant from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) and California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES) to partially fund
reconstruction.

Since the fire, the City has been working closely with the USFS to complete an updated
master plan in order to rebuild Camp. On March 2, 2015, the City received a letter from
the USFS formally accepting the City’s conceptual proposal for Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
rebuild, which includes expanding the Special Use Permit area to about 30 acres. On
August 30, 2018, the USFS released its environmental documentation for the Project,
which included a Draft Finding of No Significance.

The total Project budget estimate is approximately $62M, which includes planning,
design, permitting, environmental review, and construction. On April 4, 2017, the City
Council funded the estimated City cost share of $3.3 M (which includes the City’s
required FEMA grant matching funds). The City currently anticipates beginning
construction in 2020, with a goal to re-open camp in 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
The Mitigated Negative Declaration for the proposed project contains a comprehensive
environmental assessment of the project. The assessment determined that the Project

Page 2

252



Page 3 of 224

Adopt MND and MMRP for the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project CONSENT CALENDAR
January 22, 2019

will have a less-than significant impact on the environmental if the City implements
specific mitigation measures. The Mitigation, Monitoring and Reporting Plan includes
detailed roles, responsibilities, and methods for implementing and documenting
compliance with the mitigation measures.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION

The adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the proposed Tuolumne Camp
Project Permit (No. 46690) will allow the City to complete the permitting process and
move into the bidding phase of the Project in the fall of 2019.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
None

CONTACT PERSON
Liza McNulty, Capital Improvement Program Manager, PRW, 981-6437

Attachments:

1: Resolution
Exhibit A: Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Initial Study / Mitigated
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.

Page 3

253



Page 4 of 224

RESOLUTION NO. ##,###-N.S.

ADOPTING THE MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION (MND) AND MITIGATION
MONITORING AND REPORTING PLAN (MMRP) FOR THE BERKELEY TUOLUMNE
CAMP PERMIT (46690) PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City operated the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp, a residential family camp,
since 1922 on United States Forest Service land pursuance to a special use permit; and

WHEREAS, in August 2013, the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp was destroyed by the
California Rim Fire; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the City
retained 2M Associates to prepare an Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration
environmental documents and associated Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan to
assess the environmental impacts of the proposed reconstruction and operation of
Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Project Permit (No. 46690); and

WHEREAS, the MND determined that the Project will have less than significant
environmental impacts if specific mitigations measures are implemented; and

WHEREAS, the City has received and responded to comments from the public and
regulatory agencies and revised the Draft Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration
where appropriate; and

WHEREAS, there are no direct fiscal impacts associated with the process to adopt
mitigated negative declaration and environmental documents.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Berkeley adopts
the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Project Permit (No. 46690) Final Initial Study / Mitigated
Negative Declaration and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan (Exhibit A) in
accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).

Exhibits
A: City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Initial Study / Mitigated
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan.

254



Page 5 of 224

/[ CITY °F

-

o
M
2
aL

m

Parks, Recreation &
Waterfront Department

NOTICE OF AVAILABILITY AND RELEASE OF RESPONSE TO COMMENTS AND FINAL MITIGATED
NEGATIVE DECLARATION/INITIAL STUDY (MND/IS) FOR THE
BERKELEY TUOLUMNE CAMP (46690) PERMIT PROJECT

TO: All Interested Parties

PROJECT NAME: Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (466690) Project
PROJECT LOCATION: 331585 Hardin Flat Road, Groveland, Tuolumne County, CA
PROJECT SPONSOR: City of Berkeley

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The proposed Project would obtain a 30-year term Special Use Permit
(SUP) from the Forest Service that will allow the City of Berkeley to reconstruct BTC facilities to
current code and operate BTC much as it was prior to the Rim Fire. The new SUP would be
expanded to approximately 30 acres (from its currently permitted 14 acres) and would include the
Small Falls and Sugar Pine Trails that extend away from the main camp. About 14.5 acres of the
permit area is proposed to be developed for parking, the main camp area, staff camp area, all
support facilities and the Sugar Pine and Small Falls Trails. BTC would be designed to operate at a
capacity that matches, but does not exceed, the pre-fire overnight staff and camper capacity of 360
individuals. The SUP would be issued for a term period of 30 years and may be renewed upon
review and approval by the Forest Service. Because of the expanded 30-acre SUP area, a Forest
Plan Direction amendment would be completed to accommodate the Camp.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW — DRAFT MND/IS: The City of Berkeley issued a Draft Mitigated
Negative Declaration/Initial Study (Draft MND/IS) for the Project on September 1, 2018 for a 30-day
review period which concluded on October 1, 2018. The Draft MND/IS was sent to responsible
agencies, organizations and individuals; and was posted on the City’s website.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF FINAL MND/IS: The review period for the Final MND/IS starts on
December 11, 2018 and ends on December 21, 2018. All comments must be received by 5 pm on
December 21, 2018 and sent to:

Liza McNulty, Program Manager
City of Berkeley

Parks, Recreation & Waterfront
2180 Milvia Street, Third Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 Tel: 510.981.6700 TDD: 510.981.6903 Fax: 510.981.6710
E-mail: parks@cityofberkeley.info Website http://www.cityofberkeley.info/parks

255


mailto:parks@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/parks

Page 6 of 224

Page 2 of 2

Preparation of the Responses to Comments has been overseen by the City’s Parks, Recreation &
Waterfront Department and the conclusions and recommendations made in the document
represent the independent views and recommendations of the City. The Response to Comments
and Final MND/IS is available on the City’s website at:
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Parks_Rec_Waterfront/Recreation/Tuolumne_Camp.aspx.

ADOPTION OF FINAL MND/IS: The Berkeley City Council will consider adopting the Berkeley
Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Mitigated Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and
Reporting Plan on January 22, 2019 at its regular City Council Meeting held at 1231 Addison Street,
Berkeley, CA 94702.

256



Page 7 of 224

City of Berkeley
Parks Recreation & Waterfront

CITY OF BERKELY TUOLUMNE CAMP (46690)
PERMIT PROJECT

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS

December 2018

257



Page 8 of 224

penslll CITY OF BERKELY TUOLUMNE
D CAMP (46690) PERMIT PROJECT
RESPONSE TO COMMENTS

Page
1. INTRODUCTION 1-1
2. TEXT CHANGES TO THE DRAFT MND/IS 2-1
2.1 Introduction 2-1
2.1.1 Text Changes 2-1
3. COMMENTS AND RESPONSES 3-1
3.1 State and Local Agencies 3-3
Comment Letter #1: Department of Transportation 3-4
Letter #1 Response: Department of Transportation 3-6
Comment Letter #2: Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 3-7
Letter #2 Response: Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board 3-13
3.2 Organizations 3-15
Comment Letter #3: Central Sierra Environmental Resource Center 3-16
Letter #3 Response: Central Sierra Environmental Resource Center 3-21
Comment Letter #4: Friends of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp 3-28
Letter #4 Response: Friends of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp 3-29
3.3 Individuals 3-30
Comment Letter #5: Mariko H. Roberts 3-31
Letter #5 Response: Mariko H. Roberts 3-32
Comment Letter #6: Cameron Woo 3-33
Letter #6 Response: Cameron Woo 3-37
Comment Letter #7: Lucinda Chipponeri & family 3-39
Letter #7 Response: Lucinda Chipponeri & family 3-41
Comment Letter #8: Carol Hart 3-44
Letter #8 Response: Carol Hart 3-45
Comment Letter #9: Claudia Kawczynska, Member of Parks and Waterfront

Commission 3-46

Letter #9 Response: Claudia Kawczynska, Member of Parks and Waterfront
Commission 3-47
Comment Letter #10: Peggy O’Day 3-48
Letter #10 Response: Peggy O’Day 3-50
Comment Letter #11: Cameron Woo 3-54
Letter #11 Response: Cameron Woo 3-57
3.4 Public Hearing Oral Comments — September 12, 2018 3-58
Public Hearing Oral Comments 3-59
Public Hearing Oral Comments Response: Phil Coffin 3-61
Public Hearing Oral Comments Response: Richard Thomison 3-61
City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 1

258



Page 9 of 224

Table of Contents

3.4 Public Hearing Oral Comments — September 12, 2018 (continued)
Public Hearing Oral Comments (continued)
Public Hearing Oral Comments Response: Cameron Woo
Public Hearing Oral Comments Response: Kathy Brown

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 List of Commenters

Page

3-61
3-61

3-2

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018

il

259



Page 10 of 224

CHAPTER

INTRODUCTION

This Response to Comments document contains the public and agency comments received during
the public review petiod for the Berkeley Tuolummne Camp Permit (46690) Draft MND/IS (MND/1S)

and responses to each of those comments.

The MND/]IS is an informational document intended to disclose to responsible agencies and the
public the environmental consequences of approving and implementing the Berkeley Tuolumne
Camp Permit (46690) (Project). All written comments received during the public review period
(September 1, 2018 through October 1, 2018) on the Draft MND/IS are addressed in this Response
to Comments document. A public hearing was held on the Project on September 12, 2018. Oral
comments received during the public hearing are also addressed in this Response to Comments
document.

The responses addressing public comments on the Draft MND/IS correct, clarify and supplement
text in the Draft MND/IS as appropriate. Also included are text changes made at the initiative of the
City of Berkeley (City), the Lead Agency. These changes (summarized in Chapter 2) do not alter the
conclusions of the Draft MND/IS. Rather, they expand on or clarify those initial conclusions. This
document has been prepared in conformance with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public
Resources Code 21000, et seq. and California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section
15000, et seq.).

The City must file a Notice of Determination (NOD) within five working days after deciding to
approve the Project with the Tuolumne County Clerk. The Tuolumne County Clerk will post the
NOD which starts a 30-day statute of limitations on court challenges to the approval of the Project
under CEQA (California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Chapter 3, Section 15075).

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 1-1

260



Page 11 of 224

Chapter 1. Introduction

This page intentionally left blanfk

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 1-2

261



Page 12 of 224

CHAPTER

TEXT CHANGES TO THE
DRAFT MND/IS

2.1 INTRODUCTION

This chapter presents corrections, additions and revisions made to the Draft MND/IS initiated by
the City, reviewing agencies, and the public. New text is indicated in underline and text to be deleted
is reflected by strikethreugh. Text changes are presented in the section and page order in which they
appear in the Draft MND/IS.

The changes made to this Draft MND/IS represent clarifications/amplifications of the analysis
contained in the Draft MND/IS based on on-going review by City staff and consultants and do not
constitute significant new information that, in accordance with Section 15088.5 of the CEQA
Guiidelines would trigger the need to recirculate portions or all of the Draft MND/IS.

2.1.1 TEXT CHANGES

Since publication of the Draft MND/IS, City staff working with the Project design team have
refined elements of the BTC design. None of the changes to the Project Description alter any of the
significance findings in the Draft Initial Study. Additionally, text changes address typographical
errors, new information collected since publication of the Draft MND/IS and points of

claraification in response to public comments.
Page MND-3: Mitigation Measure AIR-1 is clarified:

AIR-1 A construction-phase Dust Control Plan (DCP) shall be prepared prior to the start
of any Project construction activity. The DCP shall include, at a minimum, all

basic emission control measures (listed below) and-anyadditional-measares

Page MND-4: Mitigation Measure AIR-2 is clarified:

AIR-2  Acquire burn permits from the Tuolumne County Air Pollution Control District.
The California Air Resources Board provides daily information on “burn” or “no
burn” conditions. Burning shall be prohibited on “no burn” days. Design and
implement burn plans to minimize particulate emissions. Notify the Groveland
District Wildlife Biologist prior to pile burning to minimize disturbance to
protected or sensitive species.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-1

262



Page 13 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

Page MND-5: Mitigation Measures BIO-5, BIO-6 and BIO-8 are clarified:

BIO-5 Conduct a pre-construction plant survey the spring prior to Project construction.
Flag and avoid new occurrences of sensitive plants. Notify the Groveland Ranger
District Botanist to determine esutse-efaetion any additional measures.

BIO-6 During breeding season (February 15 to September 15), cEonduct pre-

construction nest surveys for migratory birds, California spotted owls, and

northern goshawks within /4 mile of construction activities implemented-during
the-breedingseason{February 15to-September15). If active nests are discovered,

protective measures such as nest buffers or limited operations would be
implemented in consultation with a USFS biologist.

BIO-8 If any Forest Service Sensitive (FSS) or Federal-listed terrestrial wildlife species are
discovered within the BTC project site area prior to or during ground disturbance
and construction activities, such activities shall cease and not restart until USFS
biologist certifies that continued construction would not cause any harm to listed
species aJSES bielegistshall be-contactedforrecommen dations-as-to-how-to

proceed.

Page MND-10: Mitigation Measure LUP-1 is clarified:

LUP-1 SubmitallplansteObtain confirmation from the Forest Service foreensisteney

revdewwthat the Project is consistent with the Forest Plan Direction aadprior to Camp
construction.

Page 1S-2: The Project Background of the Draft Initial Study is revised to provide a more detailed
description of the pre-fire BTC facilities and operations:

Founded in 1922, the BTC was used as a family institution since its inception. Though not
the first public municipal camp established in the Stanislaus National Forest, it is the only
camp dating to the 1920s that remained in continuous use by a single municipality until the
Rim Fire. Recreational structures at BTC prior to the Rim Fire included 78 Tent Cabins

25 staff housing structures, Restroom / Shower Buildings, a Dining Hall, Recreation Hall

Nature Center, Stage and Amphitheater, Office, Store, Sports Courts, Archery Range

Seasonal Weir and Swimming Hole, Kiddie Kamp and Sauna. The pre-fire BT'C facilities are
shown in Figure 2 (refer to Map Package). Infrastructure on site included pedestrian bridges,
driveway and parking, electric and phone service, multiple propane tanks, water intake and

treatment facilities, and wastewater collection and treatment svstems. BTC generally

operated at its full capacity of 300 campers and 60 staff from late May through early

September (set up and close down activities by staff typically began in April and were

completed by November). The primary program at BTC for over 90 vears prior to the Rim
Fire was ‘Family Camp’, a multigenerational program that included arts and crafts and guided
nature exploration, weekly campfires and talent shows, sports and swimming, and a weekly
show performed by staff for Campers. In addition to Family Camp, BT'C also operated

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-2

263



Page 14 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

youth, teen leadership, and adult 50+ programs. Her9tyears-ithas-been-enjoyed-by

Page 1IS-5: Section 3.3 Proposed Project Program of the Draft Initial Study is revised to correct
typographical errors, and to clearly indicate the Special Use Permit area, requirements, and the
proposed operating period of the reconstructed BTC:

The proposed Project would obtain a 30-year term Special Use Permit (SUP) from the

Forest Service that will allow the City to reconstruct Camp facilities to current code and

operate the Camp much as it was prior to the Rim Fire. The-new-SUP-would-be-expanded-to

faeilities-and-the Sugar Pine-and-Small Halls Trails: In order to support all Camp facilities and
program operations, including protection of cultural resources, incorporation of the Sugar
Pine and Small Falls Trails, and all infrastructure requirements, the new Permit Area will be
approximately 30 acres. However, not all of that 30 acres will involve facility development.
About 14.5 acres of the permit area is proposed to be developed for access from Hardin Flat
Road, the main camp area south of the river, parking and the staff camp area north of
Hardin Flat Road, accessible paths of travel, trails and the leach field area. The remainder of

the area will consist of undeveloped forest lands that serve as the setting for the Camp.

Prior to the Rim Fire, BTC typically operated at capacity. BTC would be designed to operate

at a capacity that matches, but does not exceed, the pre-fire overnight staff and camper

eapaeityoccupancy of 360 individuals. BTC would operate during the same period as it did

before the fire, generally between April and November inclusive of Camp set-up and take-

down. BTC would be closed during the winter months. The SUP would be issued for a term
period of 30 years and may be renewed upon review and approval by the Forest Service.
Figure 3 (map package) illustrates the BTC permit areas. Because of the expanded 30-acre
SUP area, a Forest Plan Direction amendment would be completed to accommodate the
Camp.

The City’s reconstruction of BT'C is consistent with Forest Service policy encouraging

organization camp facilities and programs that promote environmental education, hiking,
fishing and similar forest-related activities (FSH 2709.14, Policy 13.2). The reconstruction is

also aligned with Forest Service objectives to provide, under special use authorization,
sufficient suitable facilities and services that supplement or complement those provided by
the private sector, state and local government on private land, and the Forest Service on

NES land to meet public needs to facilitate the use, enjoyment, understanding and
appreciation of natural resource settings in National Forests (FSM 2340.2).

Working in partnership, the Forest Service and the City developed the following project
understandings: 1) the Project will result in no increase in camper capacity/occupancy over

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-3

264



Page 15 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

pre-fire capacity/occupancy; 2) the Project will be consistent with current laws and

regulations including E.O. 11988, Floodplain Management (FEMA 1977a) and consistency

with the Forest Plan; and 3) the Project will provide for the protection of all cultural

resources. In addition the Camp Special Use Permit will require the City to comply with
applicable laws, codes, and ordinances. Tuolumne County will review and issue permits for
the project. The new Dining Hall foundation would be constructed outside the existing 100-
vear floodplain and the finished floor elevation of the hall and associated decking, while
perhaps cantilevered, would be above the 100-year floodplain.

Figure 4 (map package) illustrates the overall Facility Concept and Figure 5 illustrates the
Central Camp Facilities Concept Plan.

Page 1S-9: Table 1 under Project Description is revised to present the green building features

incorporated into the Project:

Revegetation and erosion
control (Map Package;
Figure 2.01-5)

e Erosion control mulching; liner and container planting;
plant protection and hand weeding; temporary irrigation or
hand watering for establishment period

6 acres

Green Building Features

Operating Energy

e Installation of infrastructure for seven future electrical
vehicle charging stations.

e Installation of infrastructure for future roof-mounted
photovoltaic panels at Dining Hall and Recreation Hall

e Lighting systems incorporate high efficiency LED fixtures.
Exterior lighting will be minimal. Lighting controls turn
lights off when not in use

e Windows and screen openings located to allow illumination
of interior spaces with minimal use of electrical lighting

e All buildings designed for passive cooling and heating. No
mechanical cooling systems. Mechanical heating systems

installed only at the Dining Hall and Manager’s Cabin
minimized ot eliminated elsewhere to the maximum extent

accepted by jurisdiction having authority.

Most of the tent cabins will not

have lights, walls, roofing, windows,
mechanical heating/cooling or

insulation.

Passive Cooling

e Buildings and porches oriented to reduce solar heat gain at
walls, windows and screen openings
e Slider/double hung windows and large screened openings

located to allow maximum natural ventilation

e Large louvers located on the highest point of Dining Hall

and Recreation Hall ceilings will exhaust hot air. Movement
of air will be assisted by ceiling fans

e Corrugated metal roofing installed to allow heat to be
exhausted through corrugation channels and ridge vent to

reduce radiant transfer to roofing assembly and building
intetior

e Walls and roof insulated to reduce heat gain and continuous
insulation is used at roof to reduce thermal bridging through
framing members

e All windows and glass doors have dual pane insulated glazing

e Concrete slab-on-grade buildings partially dug into grade to
reduce temperature swing during hot days

Passive Heating

e Joints and junctures sealed to reduce heat loss.

e Walls, roof and floor insulated and dual pane insulated
glazing to reduce heat loss

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-4

265



Page 16 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

Embodied Carbon e Structural framing wood dimensional and engineered lumber

e All redwood dimensional lumber, siding and trim certified as
sustainably harvested from a well-managed forest

e Use of concrete kept to minimum: building retaining walls
integrate slab-on-grade to reduce large footings; site retaining
walls built from dry-stacked boulders in lieu of concrete with
a maximum height of 8 feet

e Plastic foam roof insulation specified with pentane or CO2
blowing agents

Page 1S-21: To avoid confusion regarding the regulatory setting and jurisdictions having authority,
text is edited under Section 7, Agriculture and Forestry Resources, Section 2a:

a) Would the project convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of
Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps and prepared pursuant
to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources
Agency, to non-agricultural use?

The proposed BTC permit area is designated Public under the Tuolumne County General Plan
(County of Tuolumne 1996) and Pubhc under the Tuolumne County Ordmance Code (County
of Tuolumne).

- The BTC perrmt area is
within the SNF and contains no farmlands. As a result, the Pro1ect would not convert any

Farmland.

Page 1S-25: Section 3 Air Quality, Impact Discussion, third sentence on page 25 is deleted for clarity:

Pages 1S-28-29: For clarity, Mitigation Measure AIR-1 and AIR-2 are revised:

AIR-1 A construction-phase Dust Control Plan (DCP) shall be prepared prior to the start
of any Project construction activity. The DCP shall include, at a minimum, all basic

3

emlsslon control measures (hsted below) aﬂd—aﬁyh&e}dteeﬁa-l—meaﬁﬁes—&pphe&b}e—te

AIR-2  Acquire burn permits from the Tuolumne County Air pollution Control District.
The California Air Resources Board provides daily information on "burn" or "no
burn" conditions. Burning shall be prohibited on “no burn” days. Design and
implement burn plans to minimize particulate emissions. Notify the Groveland
District Wildlife Biologist prior to pile burning to minimize disturbance to
protected or sensitive species.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-5

266



Page 17 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

Page 1S-33: The breeding season of the California Spotted Owl contains a typographical error and is

corrected:

The breeding cycle of the California spotted owl is sensitive to disturbance extends from
mid-February to mid or late-August. September.

Page 1S-43: For clarity, Mitigation Measures BIO-5, BIO-6 and BIO-8 are revised:

BIO-5 Conduct a pre-construction plant survey the spring prior to Project construction.
Flag and avoid new occurrences of sensitive plants. Notify the Groveland Ranger
District Botanist to determine eeutse-efaetion-any additional measures.

BIO-6 During the breeding season (February 15 to September 15), conduct pre-

construction nest surveys for migratory birds, California spotted owls, and
northern goshawks within %4 mile of construction activities implemented-during

. If active nests are discovered,
protective measures such as nest buffers or limited operations would be
implemented in consultation with a USFS biologist.

BIO-8 If any Forest Service Sensitive (FSS) or Federal-listed terrestrial wildlife species are
discovered within the BTC project site area prior to or during ground disturbance
and construction activities, such activities shall cease and not restart until USFS
biologist is consulted, recommended measures are implemented, and USFS biologist

ertlﬁes that contlnued construction would not cause any harm to listed spec1es a

Pages IS 52-53: To clarify Project GHG emissions would be less than significant, text is added to
Section 7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions Subsections 7a and 7b of the Draft Initial Study:

a) Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

The California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod, Version 2016.3.2) was used to

quantlfy the Drooosed Project’s GHG emissions asseeiated-with-Projeet-constraeton

For Project construction, GHG emission rates for state-average construction equipment (as
included in the CalEEMod database) were applied to Project-specific construction activities
and equipment (as listed in Chapter 2 Project Description Table 3). Applying-thismedelte

the-Total Project construction GHG emissions would be 314.7 metric tons of COz. and its

annual emissions in the first year of operation would be 82.6 metric tons of COz. (assuming
that all construction activity would occur in the vear 2019, a worst-case scenario because the

state-average construction fleet will emit less GHG emissions in subsequent future years).

No California air district has set a CEQA significance threshold for construction GHG
emissions. Neither the Tuolumne County Air Pollution Control District nor the San Joaquin

Valley Air Pollution Control District have quantitative significance thresholds for operational
GHG emissions

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-6

267



Page 18 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

For Project operation, CalEEMod was initialized according to its land use type/size (i.e.
number of family/staff tent cabins to be built with provision for electricity) and with
Project-specific motor vehicle trips (see Section 16 Transportation and Circulation) and

Project-specific water use data (see Section 18 Utilities and Service Systems). The model’s
interim total GHG emissions were adjusted further in proportion to the Project’s planned
operation only during the summer season (15 weeks, rather than a full year’s 52 weeks). The

adjusted total Project annual operational GHG emissions as shown in Table A would be
82.6 metric tons of COy.. Both Project eenstraetionand operational GHG emissions are
would be well below the quantitative thresholds adopted by other California Aair Bdistricts
and would comply with adopted GHG reduction plans, as discussed in Subsection 7b
below), thus, Project GHG emissions impacts are less than significant.

TABLE A: PROJECT ANNUAL OPERATIONAL GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

(metric tons /vear)

Project GHG Soutrce CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Area <01 0 0 <01
Energy Use 41.7 <0.1 <01 419
Motor Vehicles 32.8 <0.1 <0.1 329
Solid Waste Disposal 1.2 0.1 0 2.9
Water Use 3.2 01 <0.1 5.0
Total 78.9 01 <01 82.6
Significance Thresholds 1,100
Significant Impact? No

: i .2) initializ i cific pa; i i
type/size, motor vehicle trip generation, water use and its planned operation only during summer

months.

CO2e¢ per year. The minimum quantitative threshold of 1,100 MT is used for this analysis.

b) Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted
for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

. The
Project would reconstruct BTC utilizing green building measures (see Table 1 in the Project

Description). As presented in Table A, Project annual operational GHG emissions would be

below the lowest established California air district significance threshold. Thus, the Project

would not conflict with the goals of AB 32 or any other State climate change prevention or

adaptation strategies, a less than significant impact.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-7

268



Page 19 of 224

Chapter 2. Text Changes to the Draft MND/IS

Pages IS 64-65: For clarity regarding Stormwater drainage systems, text is edited under Section 2,
Hydrology and Water Quality, Section 9e:

Storms that exceed the rainfall intensities of the ten-year design storm return frequency

would exceed the capacity of the storm drain system. Majorstorm-flow-patterns-would-be
inrvestigated-to-ensure-that storms-thatexeeed-the Project grading would ensure that flows in

excess of the design capacity of the storm drainage facilities are safely ehanneled directed to
dispesalin the South Fork Tuolumne River.

Page IS 74: Mitigation Measure LUP-1 is clarified:

LUP-1 Submitall-planste Obtain confirmation from the Forest Service fereensisteney

review that the Project is consistent with the Forest Plan Direction aad-prior to
Camp construction.

Page IS 75: Text is added to clarify mineral resources on the site.

a) Would the project result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource
that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?

The proposed BTC SUP area is within the SN and the Forest Plan Direction (USDA 2017)

does not identify the Project site as an area containing mineral resources. The Project would

not prevent the reasonable access to the South Fork Tuolumne River for valid mining
claimants to conduct authorized mining activities. The Project would not materially interfere
with any current or reasonably foreseeable mining operations.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 2-8

269



Page 20 of 224

CHAPTER

COMMENTS AND RESPONSES

This chapter contains the comment letters received in response to the Draft MND/IS during the
public review period (September 1, 2018 through October 1, 2018). Each comment letter is
numbered, each comment is further identified by sub-number and responses are provided for each
comment. The responses amplify or clarify information provided in the Draft MND/IS and/or refer
the reader to the appropriate places in the document where the requested information can be found.
Comments that are not directly related to environmental issues (e.g., opinions on the merits of the
project unrelated to its environmental impacts) may either be discussed or noted for the record.
Where text changes in the Draft MND/IS are warranted based on comments received, updated
project information, or information provided by agencies, those changes are included in the response

to comment, and are also listed in Chapter 2 of this Response to Comments document.

The changes to the analysis contained in the Draft MND/IS represent clarifications/amplifications
and do not constitute significant new information. In accordance with Section 15088.5 of the CEQ.A
Guidelines, recirculation of the Draft MND/IS is not required.

Table 1 presents a list of state and local agencies and individuals providing written comments on the
Draft MND/IS and oral comments heard duting the public hearing for the proposed Project.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-1

270



Page 21 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

TABLE 1: LIST OF COMMENTERS

Letter Number

Date of Letter

Commenter

State and Local Agencies

1 September 24, 2018 | Department of Transportation
2 October 2, 2018 Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board
Organizations
3 September 10, 2018 | Central Sierra Environmental Resource Center
4 September 25, 2018 | Friends of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
Individuals
5 September 11, 2018 | Mariko H. Roberts
6 September 12,2018 | Cameron Woo
7 September 17,2018 | Lucinda Chipponeri & family
8 September 18, 2018 | Carol Hart
9 October 1, 2018 Claudia Kawczynska, Member of Parks and Waterfront Commission
10 October 1, 2018 Peggy O’Day
11 October 1, 2018 Cameron Woo
Public Hearing Oral Comments — September 12, 2018
Phil Coffin
Richard Thomison
Cameron Woo
Kathy Brown
City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-2

271



Page 22 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

3.1 STATE AND LOCAL AGENCIES

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-3

272



Page 23 of 224

STATE OF CALIFORNIA—CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY EDMUND G, BROWN Jr., Governor

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DISTRICT 10 PLANNING DIVISION
P.O. BOX 2048, STOCKTON, CA 95201

(1976 E. DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD 95205)

PHONE (209) 948-7325 : Matking Conservation
FAX (209) 948-7165 : a California Way of Life.
TTY 711

www.dot.ca.gov

1-1

September 24, 2018

10-TUO-120-Post Mile (PM) R50.350
City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp

Permit 46690 Project

Initial Study (IS) and Mitigated Negative
Declaration (MND)

State Clearing House (SCH#) 2018082070

Ms. Liza McNulty, PE

Capital Improvement Program Manager
City of Berkeley

Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Department
2180 Milvia Street, Third Floor

Berkeley, CA 94704

Dear Ms. McNulty:

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) appreciates the opportunity to review the
Initial Study (IS) and Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND), State Clearing House (SCH#)
2018082070 for the City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project. The proposed
project is the reconstruction of the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp which was destroyed during the
2013 Rim Fire. The project would maintain capacity of Camp facilities at pre-Rim Fire
condition, that is 360 campers and staff, and would provide new facilities meeting current
building codes and environmental standards. The project is located at the Stanislaus National
Forest, Groveland Ranger District, 331585 Hardin Flat Road, Groveland, Tuolumne County,
California. '

Caltrans has reviewed the IS/MND and has the following comments:

The proposed site plan Initial Study states that the proposed project will only have access on Hardin
Flat Road. The address of the campground has a closer proximity and more probability of using
Golden Arrow Road to its access., Will it be signed to indicate the camp users will only use Hardin
Flat Road as its access? Any proposed directional signs that may need to be installed by the
applicant must be outside of the State highway right of way (R/W) and in accordance with State
Outdoor Advertising Program regulations and Federal laws.

“Provide a safe, sustainable, integraied and efficient fransporiation system
to enhance California’s economy and livability” 273




1-2

1-3

14

Page 24 of 224

Ms. Liza McNulty
September 24, 2018
Page 2

If work is to occur within Caltrans R/W and during bird nesting season (Feb 15 — September 1),
the project proponent will be required to complete a pre-construction bird survey. Rare plants
have been previously identified near the project area (slender-stemmed monkeyflower and
Small's southern clarkia), thus, if work will occur in Caltrans R/W, a pre-construction botanical
survey will need to be completed and survey results will need to be submitted to a Caltrans
biologist for review.

If any project construction or temporary traffic control activities will encroach into Caltrans R/W,
the project proponent must submit an application for an Encroachment Permit to the Caltrans
Permit Office. Appropriate environmental studies must be submitted with this application.

These studies will include an analysis of potential impacts to any cultural sites, biological
resources, hazardous waste locations, and/or other resources within Caltrans R/W at the project
site(s). CEQA documentation with supporting technical studies required when submitting the
Encroachment Permit.

Caltrans recommends that traffic impact fees be collected for future multimodal improvements to
reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and to mitigate cumulative impacts to the State Highway

System

If you have any questions or would like to discuss these comments, please contact me at
(209) 948-7325 (e-mail: gregoria.ponce@dot.ca.gov).

Sinze :
GREG
Office of Rural Planning

c: David Gonzalves, Director, Tuolumne County Community Resources Agency
Darin Grossi, Executive Director Tuolumne County Transportation Council
Office of Planning and Research - State Clearing House

“Provide a safe, sustainable, integrated and efficient transportation system
to enhance California’s economy and livability ' 274



Page 25 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

Letter #1 Response: Department of Transportation

1-1 As stated on page 4 of the Draft Initial Study, vehicle access to Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
(BTC) is from Hardin Flat Road. Campers would generally be traveling east on State
Highway 120 from the Bay Area. Hardin Flat Road is closer and provides direct access to
BTC. No signs are proposed on Highway 120 or within the State highway right of way. Two
signs are proposed within the Hardin Flat Road right-of-way going both directions to
announce entrance into the BTC permit area, and other signs will face Hardin Flat Road at
each of the Camp entry drives.

1-2 The Project is not anticipated to result in any construction or temporary traffic control
activities within the right-of-way of State Highway 120. However, if it becomes necessary for
construction activity within the Caltrans right-of-way, the Initial Study identifies mitigation
measures to reduce potential impacts to nesting birds (Initial Study page 41 and page 43) and
sensitive plants (Draft Initial Study page 38 and page 43).

1-3 As stated in Response 1-2 above, it is not anticipated the Project will require any
construction activity within the Caltrans right-of-way. However if it becomes necessary for
Project-related construction activities within the Caltrans right-of-way, the City will submit
an Encroachment Permit application with required supporting documentation to Caltrans.

1-4 In response to Senate Bill 743 (SB 743) the Office of Planning & Research (OPR) has
updated the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines to include new
transportation-related evaluation metrics. Draft guidelines were developed in August 2014,
and updated in January 2016 based on public comments. OPR released final proposed
CEQA Guidelines and a Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts on
November 27, 2017. The final proposed CEQA Guidelines include a new Section 15064.3
on Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) addressing criteria for analyzing transportation impacts.
Section 15064.3 states the application of the criteria do not take effect until January 1, 2020
unless the lead agency adopts them earlier. Neither Tuolumne County nor the Tuolumne
County Transportation Council (TCTC), the state-designated Regional Transportation
Planning Agency, has established any standards, thresholds or impact fees for VMT. No
determination on the significance of VMT impacts was made for the Project since none is
legally required.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-6

275



Page 26 of 224
? \O*'l"lg

c\Cod

N
;"@ Eumune G, Bruw Ju,
2 GOVERNGR

CALIFORMIA T . /‘ '5\:;11::':}:: E:,O“DBIGUEZ
Water Boards : b EMVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control B_dard Sovemor's Office of Planfin g&Rsséarsh
SEP 28 2018
24 September 2018
i TATE CLEARINGHOUSE
Liza McNulty ' CERTIFIED MAIL
City of Berkeley, Parks Recreation and Waterfront 7014 3490 0001 3008 4194

2180 Milvia Street, Third Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

COMMENTS TO REQUEST FOR REVIEW FOR THEI MITIGATED NEGATIVE
DECLARATION, CITY OF BERKELEY TUOLUMNE CAMP PERMIT (46690) PROJECT,
SCH# 2018082070, TUOLUMNE COUNTY

Pursuant to the State Clearinghouse’s 31 August 2018 request, the Central Valley Regional
Water Quality Control Board (Central Valley Water Board) has reviewed the Request for Review
for the Mitigated Negative Declaration for the City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690)
Project, located in Tuolumne County.

Our agency is delegated with the responsibility of protecting the quality of surface and
groundwaters of the state; therefore our comments will address concerns surrounding those
issues. | |

. Regulatory Setting

Basin Plan
The Central Valley Water Board is required to formulate and adopt Basin Plans for all areas

2-1

within the Central Valley region under Section 13240 of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality
Control Act. Each Basin Plan must contain water quality objectives to ensure the

reasonable protection of beneficial uses, as well as a program of implementation for
achieving water quality objectives with the Basin Plans. Federal regulations require each
state to adopt water quality standards to protect the public health or welfare, enhance the
quality of water and serve the purposes of the Clean Water Act. In California, the beneficial
uses, water quality objectives, and the Antidegradation Policy are the State's water quality
standards. Water quality standards are also contained in the National Toxics Rule, 40 CFR
Section 131.36, and the California Toxics Rule, 40 CFR Section 131.38.

The Basin Plan is subject to modification as necessary, considering applicable laws,
policies, technologies, water quality conditions and priorities. The original Basin Plans were
adopted in 1975, and have been updated and revised periodically as required, using Basin
Plan amendments. Once the Central Valley Water Board has adopted a Basin Plan
amendment in noticed public hearings, it must be approved by the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board), Office of Administrative Law (OAL) and in some cases,

KanL E. LonaLey ScD, P.E., chair | PATRICK PULUPA, £S0., EXECUTIVE OFFICER

11020 Sun Genter Drive #200, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 | www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley

276

% RECYCLEN PAPER



Page 27 of 224

City of Berkeley Tuolumne -2- 24 September 2018
Camp Permit (46690) Project
Tuolumne County

2-2

2-3

the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). Basin Plan amendments

only become effective after they have been approved by the OAL and in some cases, the
USEPA. Every three (3) years, a review of the Basin Plan is completed that assesses the
appropriateness of existing standards and evaluates and prioritizes Basin Planning issues.

For more information on the Water Quality Control Plan for the Sacramento and San
Joaquin River Basins, please visit our website:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/basin_plans/.

Antidegradation Considerations

All wastewater discharges must comply with the Antidegradation Policy (State Water Board

_Resolution 68-16) and the Antldegradation Implementatlon Policy cor]talned in the Basm

Plan. The Antldegradatlon Policy is available on page 1V-15. 01af'
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalleywater_issues/ basin_plans/sacsjr.pdf

In part it states:

Any discharge of waste to high quality waters must apply best practicable treatment or
control not only to prevent a condition of pollution or nuisance from occurring, but also to
maintain the highest water quality possible consistent with the maximum benefit to the
people of the State.

This information must be presented as an analysis of the impacts and potential impacts
of the discharge on water quality, as measured by background concentrations and
applicable water quality objectives.

The antidegradation analysis is a mandatory element in the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System and land discharge Waste Discharge Requirements (WDRs) permitting
processes. The environmental review document should evaluate potential lmpacts to both
surface and groundwater quality.

' Permitting Requirements

Construction Storm Water General Permit

Dischargers whose project disturb one or more acres of soil or where projects disturb less
than one acre but are part of a larger common plan of development that in total disturbs
one or more acres, are required to obtain coverage under the General Permit for Storm
Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activities (Construction General Permit),
Construction General Permit Order No. 2009-009-DWQ. Construction activity subject to
this permit includes clearing, grading, grubbing, disturbances to the ground, such as
stockpiling, or excavation, but does not include regular maintenance activities performed to
restore the original line, grade, or capacity of the facility. The Construction General Permit
requires the development and implementation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

277



Page 28 of 224

City of Berkeley Tuolumne -3- 24 September 2018
Camp Permit (46690) Project
Tuolumne County

2-4

2-5

(SWPPP).

For more information on the Construction General Permit, visit the State Water Resources

~ Control Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/constpermits.shtml.

Phase | and Il Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permits’

The Phase | and Il MS4 permits require the Permittees reduce pollutants and runoff flows
from new development and redevelopment using Best Management Practices (BMPs) to
the maximum extent practicable (MEP). MS4 Permittees have their own development
standards, also known as Low Impact Development (LID)/post-construction standards that
include a hydromodification component. The MS4 permits also require specific design
concepts for LID/post-construction BMPs in the early stages of a project during the
entitlement and CEQA process and the development plan review process.

For more information on which Phase | MS4 Permit this project applies to, visit the Central

Valley Water Board website at:
http.//www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/municipal_permits/.

For more information on the Phase Il MS4 permit and who it applies to, visit the State
Water Resources Control Board at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/stormwater/phase_ii_municipal.sht
mi :

Industrial Storm Water General Permit
Storm water discharges associated with industrial sites must comply with the regulations
contained in the Industrial Storm Water General Permit Order No. 2014-0057-DWQ.

For more information on the Industrial Storm Water General Permit, visit the Central Valley

Water Board website at:
hitp://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/storm_water/industrial_general_

permits/index.shtml.

Clean Water Act Section 404 Permit

If the project will involve the discharge of dredged or fill material in navigable waters or
wetlands, a permit pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act may be needed from the
United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE). If a Section 404 permit is required by
the USACOE, the Central Valley Water Board will review the permit application to ensure

' Municipal Permits = The Phase | Municipal Separate Storm Water System (MS4) Permit covers medium sized
Municipalities (serving between 100,000.and 250,000 people) and large sized municipalities (serving over
250,000 people). The Phase Il MS4 provides coverage for small municipalities, including non-traditional Small
MS4s, which include military bases, public campuses, prisons and hospitals.

278



Page 29 of 224

City of Berkeley Tuolumne -4 - 24 September 2018
Camp Permit (46690) Project
Tuolumne County

2-6

2-7

2-8

that discharge will not violate water quality standards. If the project requires surface water
drainage realignment, the applicant is advised to contact the Department of Fish and Game
for information on Streambed Alteration Permit requirements.

If you have any questions regarding the Clean Water Act Section 404 permits, please
contact the Regulatory Division of the Sacramento District of USACOE at (916) 557-5250.

Clean Water Act Section 401 Permit — Water Quality Certification

If an USACOE permit (e.g., Non-Reporting Nationwide Permit, Nationwide Permit, Letter of
Permission, Individual Permit, Regional General Permit, Programmatic General Permit), or
any other federal permit (e.g., Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act or Section 9 from
the United States Coast Guard), is required for this project due to the disturbance of waters

- of the United ‘States (such as streams and wetlands), then-a Water Quality: Certification

must be obtained from the Central Valley Water Board prior to initiation of project activities.
There are no waivers for 401 Water Quality Certifications.

Waste Discharge Requirements — Discharges to Waters of the State

If USACOE determines that only non-jurisdictional waters of the State (i.e., “non-federal”
waters of the State) are present in the proposed project area, the proposed project may
require a Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) permit to be issued by Central Valley
Water Board. Under the California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act, discharges to
all waters of the State, including all wetlands and other waters of the State including, but
not limited to, isolated wetlands, are subject to State regulation.

For more information on the Water Quality Certlflcatlon and WDR processes, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at: Co
http://www. waterboards ca gov!centralvalIeyfhelp!busmess helpipermltz shtml.

Dewatering Permit : '
If the proposed project includes construction or groundwater dewatering to be discharged

to land, the proponent may apply for coverage under State Water Board General Water
Quality Order (Low Risk General Order) 2003-0003 or the Central Valley Water Board's
Waiver of Report of Waste Discharge and Waste Discharge Requirements (Low Risk
Waiver)

R5-2013-0145. Small temporary construction dewatering projects are projects that
discharge groundwater to land from excavation activities or dewatering of underground
utility vaults. Dischargers seeking coverage under the General Order or Waiver must file a
Notice of Intent with the Central Valley Water Board prior to beginning discharge.

For more information regarding the Low Risk General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_decisions/adopted_orders/water_quality/2003/wqo/w
qo02003-0003. pdf

279



Page 30 of 224

City of Berkeley Tuolumne -5- 24 September 2018
Camp Permit (46690) Project
Tuolumne County

2-9

2-10

For more information regarding the Low Risk Waiver and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/boa rd_decisions/adopted_orders/waivers/r5-
2013-0145_res.pdf

Reqgulatory Compliance for Commercially Irrigated Agriculture

If the property will be used for commercial irrigated agricultural, the discharger will be
required to obtain regulatory coverage under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program.
There are two options to comply:

1. Obtain Coverage Under a Coalition Group. Join the local Coalition Group that
-+ supports {and ewners-with the implementation-of the Irrigated Lands ‘Regulatory

Program. The Coalition Group conducts water quality monitoring and reporting to
the Central Valley Water Board on behalf of its growers. The Coalition Groups
charge an annual membership fee, which varies by Coalition. Group. To find the
Coalition Group in your area, visit the Central Valley Water Board's website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/water_issues/irrigated_lands/for_growe
rs/apply_coalition_group/index.shtml or contact water board staff at (916) 464-4611
or via email at IrrLands@waterboards.ca.gov.

2. Obtain Coverage Under the General Waste Discharge Requirements for
Individual Growers, General Order R5-2013-0100. Dischargers not participating
in a third-party group (Coalition) are regulated individually. Depending on the
specific site conditions, growers may be required to monitor runoff from their
property, install monitoring wells, and submit a notice of intent, farm plan, and other
action plans regarding their actions to comply with their General Order. Yearly
costs would include State administrative fees (for example, annual fees for farm
sizes from 10-100 acres are currently $1,084 + $6.70/Acre); the cost to prepare
annual monitoring reports; and water quality monitoring costs. To enroll as an
Individual Discharger under the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, call the
Central Valley Water Board phone line at (916) 464-4611 or e-mail board staff at
IrrLands@waterboards.ca.gov.

Low or Limited Threat General NPDES Permit

If the proposed project includes construction dewatering and it is necessary to discharge
the groundwater to waters of the United States, the proposed project will require coverage
under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. Dewatering

discharges are typically considered a low or limited threat to water quality and may be

covered under the General Order for Dewatering and Other Low Threat Discharges to
Surface Waters (Low Threat General Order) or the General Order for Limited Threat
Discharges of Treated/Untreated Groundwater from Cleanup Sites, Wastewater from
Superchlorination Projects, and Other Limited Threat Wastewaters to Surface Water

280



Page 31 of 224

T TR TR T R CPR e
P oAttt

City of Berkeley Tuolumne -6- 24 September 2018
Camp Permit (46690) Project -

Tuolumne County

(Limited Threat General Order). A complete application must be submitted to the Central
Valley Water Board to obtain coverage under these General NPDES permits.

For more information regarding the Low Threat General Order and the application process,
visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/boa rd_decisions/adopted_orders/general_ord
ers/r5-2013-0074.pdf ' : 4 s

For more information regarding the Limited Threat General Order and the application
process, visit the Central Valley Water Board website at:
http:ﬂwww.waterboards.oa.gov!centraIvalley!board__decisio ns/adopted_orders/general_ord
ers/r5-2013-0073.pdf . ; '

NPDES Permit

If the proposed project discharges waste that could affect the quality of surface waters of
the State, other than into a community sewer system, the proposed project will require
coverage under a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit. A
complete Report of Waste Discharge must be submitted with the Central Valley Water
Board to obtain a NPDES Permit.

For more information regarding the NPDES Permit and the application process, visit the
Central Valley Water Board website at: '
http:ﬂwmv.waterboards.ca.gov!centralvalley!helplbusiness__helpipermitS.shtmI

If you have questions regarding these comments, please contact me at (916) 464-4644 or
Stephanie.Tadlock@waterboards.ca.gov. ' /

%Q@MMMCQJ{LM@QL

Stephanie Tadlock
Senior Environmental Scientist

State Clearinghouse unit, Governor's Office of Planning and Research, Sacramento

281



Page 32 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

Letter #2 Response: Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board

2-1

2-3

2-5

2-6

2-7

Comment noted. The Project is located in the South Fork Tuolumne Hydrologic Unit
(Unit 536.80 of the San Joaquin Hydrologic Basin Planning Area). The goals and policies of
the Water Quality Control Plan for the San Joaquin River Basin (CVRWQCB Resolution
No. R5-2013-0098) and other applicable Basin Plan policies will be addressed in all permit
applications to the Board.

Comment noted. The Project is being planned and designed to assure that existing water
quality will be maintained to not affect present and anticipated beneficial use of the waters of
the South Fork Tuolumne River and will not result in water quality less than that prescribed
in the Board’s policies as referenced in State Water Board Resolution 68-16. This includes a
Project design and operations where no waste or increased volume or concentration of waste
will be discharged into the South Fork Tuolumne River. The Project will meet waste
discharge requirements of Tuolumne County in terms of the best practicable treatment or
control of the discharge necessary to assure that (a) a pollution or nuisance will not occur
and (b) the highest water quality consistent with maximum benefit to the people of the State

will be maintained.

The City of Berkeley is required by the US Forest Service as part of the City’s Special Use
Permit to obtain all necessary regulatory permits for the reconstruction of the Camp,
including a Construction General Permit. The hydrology section of the Draft MND/IS and
Appendix A Tables A-1 and A-2 review the steps, criteria and best management practices
that will be followed to manage water during construction and operations of the Camp to
protect the water quality of the South Fork Tuolumne River.

As noted in the Draft MND/IS, at a minimum this will involve Water Quality Certification
and coverage under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
construction general permit for storm water discharge under Section 401(A)(1) of the Clean
Water Act and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act of 1975. The City will work
with Central Valley Regional Water Quality Board staff to determine if additional permits are
required and will submit the appropriate applications once detailed design is underway

Not applicable. The Camp is located in the Stanislaus National Forest, not a municipality,
and is not an industrial use.

As noted in the Draft MND/IS, a Section 404 permit from the USACOE will be obtained.

As noted in the Draft MND/IS, a Water Quality Certification will be obtained from the
Board. The City will work with Central Valley Regional Water Quality Board staff to obtain
the Certification and determine if additional permits are required and will submit the
appropriate applications once detailed design is underway

Not applicable. The Project includes jurisdictional waters of the United States.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-13

282



Page 33 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

2-8

2-10

2-11

It is not known at this time if during construction there will be any dewatering to be
discharged to the land. If during detailed design that is found to be the case, then a Low-risk
General Order application will be made.

Not applicable. The Project is not commercial irrigated agriculture.

The City of Berkeley is required by the US Forest Service as part of the City’s Special Use
Permit to obtain all necessary regulatory permits for the reconstruction of the Camp. As
noted in the Draft MND/1IS, at a minimum this will involve Water Quality Certification and
coverage under the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) construction
general permit for storm water discharge under Section 401(A)(1) of the Clean Water Act
and the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act of 1975. The City will work with Central
Valley Regional Water Quality Board staff to identify what type of NPDES permit is needed
and if additional permits are required and will submit the appropriate applications once

detailed design is underway.

Refer to Response 2-10.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-14

283



Page 34 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

3.2 ORGANIZATIONS

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-15

284



3-1

Page 35 of 224

Q ﬂ Central Sierra Environmental Resource Center
Box 396, Twain Harte, CA 95383 « (209) 586-7440 - fax (209) 586-4986
@ y Visit our website at: WWW.CSerc.org or contact us at: johnb@ecserc.org

September 10, 2018

Liza McNulty, Program Manager
City of Berkeley

Parks Recreation & Waterfront
2180 Milvia Street, Third Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704

Comments on the IS/MND for the Reconstruction of the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
and a 30-year Permit for the City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp

The following comments are submitted in response to the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Initial
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and the associated request for comments by the Stanislaus
National Forest concerning the 30-year permit to the City of Berkeley to reconstruct and operate the
Camp. While our staff has reviewed the entire Initial Study and Mitigated Neg Dec, our purpose with
these comments is not to critique insignificant points or to take up agency staff time on points that
don’t really matter. Accordingly, we are focusing on a few main points.

BACKGROUND FOR COMMENTS

Our staff emphasizes that we support the reconstruction of the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp
and the wide range of recreational, social, and educational opportunities that the Camp provided
when it was functioning. Many thousands of visitors have had enjoyable vacations and social
interactions with other families and individuals staying at the Camp prior to its near total destruction
by the Rim Fire. CSERC accepts the reality that while the river corridor area and adjacent habitat will
inarguably lose some wildlife, watershed, and scenic value if a major camp development is allowed to
be reconstructed on the site, we understand that the magnitude of visitors served and the quality of
the experience provided by the Camp likely justify the diminishment of wildlife, watershed, and
scenic values.

THE EXTENT OF PRIOR FACILITIES DOES NOT MINIMIZE NEED FOR PROJECT CONSIDERATION
CSERC agrees that, in general, much of what is proposed as this project is primarily
replacement of what was there prior to the Rim Fire. For purposes of planning to meet the
requirements of both CEQA and NEPA, it is important to analyze what is actually in need of
environmental review. In this instance, based strictly upon a review of the IS/MND, it appears that
the City of Berkeley proposes to gain approval for restoring/re-operating the previous Camp and to
allow everything to be “replaced” more or less consistent with past policies and planning
requirements. With these comments, CSERC asserts that as part of the CEQA process as well as the
Forest Service permit analysis, there should be a clear assessment of which of the previous sited
facilities would not likely be allowed in their current location if this was a new development
application. It is necessary to assess whether this overall site is even the right location for a Camp
serving 360 visitors. When reviewing the Forest Service EA for this same project through NEPA
analysis, it is very apparent that key comparison assessments and considerations were carefully

285



3-4

Page 36 of 224

made. As a result, the EA spells out that all tent cabins, staff cabins, the Dining Hall, and sanitary
facilities and potable water treatment and distribution utilities that were located previously within
the 100-year floodplain will now be relocated out of the floodplain. It is not readily apparent from
reading the IS/MND if those same requirements are mandated. If they are, then the IS/MND is
responsive to the environmental risks and the potential significant impacts. It will be compliant with
current federal policies and requirements. However, if the IS/MND does not contain those same
requirements (such as relocating facilities and infrastructure out of the 100-year floodplain), then
the IS/MND is deficient and needs to incorporate the proposed action adjustments to facilities and
their location as is required by the EA’s Alternative 1 (the Proposed Action) - pg 100.

With its high fire risk, its risk of flood events, and its lack of public water or sewer, the BTC site
would be unlikely to be approved for a new Berkeley Tuolumne Camp large-scale development if
there was not already the prior, historic use at this location. At the least, current Forest Service or
other applicable regulatory requirements should be adhered to if approval is be gained for a
replacement BTC.

As the IS/MND is currently written, however, CSERC asserts that the question of whether to
allow (or not allow) all of the previous facilities and uses previously established on the pre-fire site is
not adequately addressed in this Initial Study/Mitigated Neg Dec, whereas it appears to be
adequately addressed in the Forest Service EA document.

The consultants who have prepared the Initial Study/Mitigated Neg Dec appear to assert that
due to the BTC facilities covering the site prior to the Rim Fire, those pre-fire conditions are the
“baseline”, so there would be no new significant impact from reconstruction of the Camp or re-
operation of the Camp, despite the many new adjusted facilities and a much broader footprint of
permitted operations on what would otherwise be national forest lands open to all members of the
public. On that point alone, it is clear that this project is not simply replacement of the existing
camp. The previous BTC permit was for 14 acres, (although the IS on page 5 admits that the actual
area used by the Camp was roughly 25 acres when the leach field and “programmed use areas” were
counted).

Now, however, the City of Berkeley is requesting a new permit for 30 acres, despite the
IS/MND stating that 14.5 acres contain the parking, the main camp area, staff camp area, all support
facilities, and the Sugar Pine and Small Falls Trails. (Note that in the project’s EA document, the
statement is made that all of those are contained within 13.5 acres.). It is not made clear in the
IS/MND as to what justifies the expansion of the permit for the other 15.5 acres of the permit area. It
appears from maps in the IS/MND that in addition to the leach field area, the majority of the permit
expansion area is primarily intended to provide for new staff housing, a significant parking area, and
an archery range. While those may be desirable in the eyes of BTC officials, it is noteworthy that an
expanded permit area for Berkeley reduces public forest access and uses that would otherwise be
available for the general public.

The new proposal is more than double the acreage contained in the previous permit. We
assert that there should have been more analysis in the IS/MND of what would or would not be
“grandfathered” in if this was not judged to be a renewal of the previous BTC facility. And
accordingly, there should have been more sufficient rationale to explain whether there may or may
not be impacts from adding 15.5 acres to the permit.

286



Page 37 of 224

IS/MND APPEARS TO PROVIDE INADEQUATE PROTECTION FOR RESOURCES ALONG RIVER

In our previous CSERC comments concerning this project, our staff emphasized two key
resource issues of significance. The first was that we identified the problem of Camp facilities
impinging closely adjacent to or directly out into the river corridor and potentially blocking normal
wildlife movement along the river. Our second key concern was potential contamination from Camp
activities that would blow, leach, or wash into the River due to being so close to the river. We
identified both of those concerns as issues needing careful consideration.

In the IS/MND, the consultants allege that the project will have no significant effect on
riparian habitat, except possibly for the western pond turtle, and most of that risk would be from
construction. We could not find any detailed discussion in the IS/MND concerning the impingement
of the Dining Hall and its foundation/structural support intruding into the river corridor and affecting
a broad suite of wildlife. We could not find any discussion in the IS/MND as to how mitigation would
eliminate the Dining Hall and its support structure from constraining wildlife movement along the
south edge of the river corridor. Furthermore, we could not find any river corridor wildlife movement
considerations except for Special Status wildlife species — when in fact river corridor movement zones
are important for nearly the full suite of terrestrial (and some aquatic) wildlife species.

As | communicated for our Center at the Open House, our biologists supported pulling back
any infrastructure from the river area to the fullest extent feasible. As noted previously in these
comments, in the Forest EA (which apparently is intended to mirror this CEQA analysis), the Forest
Service document spells out clearly the mandate for the City to relocate most facilities out of the 100-
year floodplain. Again, as mentioned previously, a review of the IS/MND does not appear to echo
those pivotal requirements, or perhaps our staff has missed that analysis in our review. We
emphasize with these comments that whichever legal analysis may prevail, it is our strong request
that all facilities to the extent feasible be relocated outside of the river buffer area.

GHG EMISSIONS AND THE LACK OF APPROPRIATE MITIGATION

Tying back to a previous point raised in these comments, the project applicants and the
document’s consultant authors appear to suggest that there is no need for mitigation for GHG
emissions created by the operations of this very large lodging, food service, recreational destination
camp facility. CSERC believes this is not a valid conclusion. This project proposes to construct over
100 structures so that the Camp can operate as a destination that will draw large numbers of visitors
arriving in vehicles, traveling from hours away to come to this Camp. Compared to the actual, current
baseline -- which is no camp in operation at this time and no facilities at this time providing showers,
food, and other amenities for 360 users -- the newly constructed Camp will produce high levels of
GHG emissions over time once it is operating.

But page 53 of the IS/MND claims that the new BTC would not produce more GHG emissions
than pre-Rim Fire, so the project would not conflict with the goals of AB 32 and the impact is Less
Than Significant. Under that assumption, no mitigation is required. CSERC strongly disputes that
claim. When significant development (even for reconstruction purposes) is planned under CEQA,
then feasible and realistic mitigation measures should be mandated to reduce GHG emissions for
both the construction and the ongoing operations that will generate GHG emissions. New
technologies are fully available for utilizing solar panels (no forest canopy exists at all in many sites on
the project areas) or for utilizing a suite of other mitigation options to reduce emissions.

287



Page 38 of 224

CSERC urges that the Initial Study/Mitigated Neg Dec be revised to acknowledge the
responsibility of the project applicant to reduce GHG emissions to be consistent with AB 32 and to
also be consistent with an obligation to do all possible to provide feasible and cost-effective public
benefits when applying for permitted use of public lands. Appropriate mitigation requirements to
reduce GHG emissions should be incorporated into the approval process.

THE CUMULATIVE IMPACTS OF THE PROJECT ARE NOT CORRECTLY OR ADEQUATELY ANALYZED

If this project had been brought forward for consideration two years ago, there could be
grounds for suggesting (as is done on page 92 of the IS/MND) that there are no cumulatively
considerable impacts:

“Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other
current projects, and the effects of probable future projects.)

The proposed Project would not result in cumulatively considerable impacts.”

However, the current situation is much different, and there ARE cumulative impacts that must
be considered in determining whether or not to require mitigation for cumulative effects. First and
foremost, the neighboring Thousand Trails Yosemite Lakes Hardin Flat project is currently going
through Tuolumne County’s Community Resources Agency for review and potential approval by the
County. That project includes the addition of 150 RV sites, recreation cabins, and mobile-home
sites. It also includes bridge abutment repairs and culvert repairs.

Second, Hardin Flat LLC “Yosemite Under Canvas” is proposing a 99-unit luxury tent
(glamping) campground site, a mobile kitchen, dining and reception tent, laundry facility, and
restrooms/showers, etc. This second major development proposal is planned for a site just to the
northwest of the Thousand Trails Yosemite Lakes project (which lies just to the west of the BTC site).

Third, Tuolumne County has received a pre-application inquiry for a major lodge facility
directly across the highway from the glamping campground facility. While our Center has not
received an advisory notice detailing the specifics of the new lodge facility proposal for the north side
of the highway, area residents observed project consultants meeting with Cal Trans representatives
to determine the extent of needed turn lanes, etc. for this lodge facility project. It obviously is not
just speculation, since the proponents of the lodge facility have also held a meeting with local cabin
owners to discuss the project, well water supplies, wastewater treatment, etc.

The combination of just the projects identified above totals 700-900 guests all bringing
vehicles, noise, pollution, disturbance of wildlife, night-time lighting, and other impacts to an area
within 2 miles of the BTC site. To suggest that there is no cumulative impact of the BTC project
when combined with other current or proposed projects would be disingenuous.

288



Page 39 of 224

CSERC urges that the final Mitigated Neg Dec include acknowledgment that there IS a
significant cumulative impact of this project when combined with currently proposed nearby
development.

In closing, in order for a project to qualify for reliance upon a Mitigated Neg Dec, it is
necessary for there to be no potentially significant impacts that would be generated by the project.

For that to be the case with the Berkeley Tuolumne Camp project, CSERC urges that the
project as described in the final IS/MND (1) require the relocation of facilities out of the 100-year
floodplain, consistent with what is described in the Forest Service EA document, (2) that realistic GHG
emissions analysis identify how cost-effective, feasible GHG mitigation measures can reduce the
project’s GHG emissions — and that feasible mitigation measures be mandated, and (3) that there be
admission that the project will potentially create significant cumulative effects, and that in response
that realistic mitigation measures are identified to reduce to some degree the significance of those

cumulative impacts.

CSERC Executive Director

289



Page 40 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

Letter #3 Response: Central Sierra Environmental Resource Center

3-1

3-2

3-3

The purpose of the BTC Project is to continue as an organization camp consistent with
current laws, regulations, and the Forest Plan Direction (March 2017) management emphasis
for developed recreation sites. The need for the Camp is to continue at the same level of
service as prior to the Rim fire to support the City of Berkeley’s provision of broad, quality
camp programs that provide outdoor recreation and experiences benefiting all Berkeley
residents. Income from a fiscally sustainable Camps Fund supports all camp programming
and staffing at BTC, Echo Lake Camp, and Day Camp in the City of Berkeley. In addition,
the funding generated from BTC supportsannual maintenance and long-term capital
improvements at BTC, Echo Lake Camp, and Cazadero Camp.

The BTC Project is consistent with Forest Service policy encouraging organization camp
facilities and programs that promote environmental education, hiking, fishing, and similar
forest-related activities (FSH 2709.14, Policy 13.2). The Project is also aligned with Forest
Service objectives to provide, under special use authorization, sufficient suitable facilities and
services that supplement or complement those provided by the private sector, state, and
local government on private land and the Forest Service on NFS land to meet public needs
to facilitate the use, enjoyment, understanding, and appreciation of natural resource settings
in National Forests (FSM 2340.2).

Reconstructed tent cabins, staff cabins, the Dining Hall and all utilities will be located
outside of, or elevated above, the 100-year floodplain. Refer to page 67 and Figure 5 of the
Draft Initial Study.

Current Forest Service and other applicable regulatory agency requirements will be adhered
to for the replacement of BT'C. Because the initial study concluded that the Project would
have no significant and unavoidable environmental impacts, an analysis of Project

alternatives is not required (CEQA Guidelines § 15063(d)).

The Project impact analysis for each environmental factor included in the Draft Initial Study
is based on existing conditions at BT'C; i.e. post Rim Fire conditions. This is a conservative
approach, since it would be appropriate to utilize historic operational levels to establish
existing environmental conditions baseline for CEQA purposes (INorth County Adypocates v.
City of Carlsbad (2015)—Cal. App.4th—Case No. D066488). For clarity Section 3 Air Quality,
Impact Discussion, third sentence on page 25 is deleted:

The statement in the Project Description that about 14.5 acres of the permit area is proposed
to be developed for parking, the main camp area, staff camp area, all support facilities and the

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-21

290



Page 41 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

3-5

Sugar Pine and Small Falls Trails was made to provide a general understanding of the lands
that may actually be disturbed by construction. (Refer to Chapter 2 for clarity). Thus, although
the area covered by the Special Use Permit will be 30 acres (rather than the previous 14), the
actual developed area will be approximately the same.

The difference between the Draft MND/IS and the EA statements for the majority of BTC
developments occurring in 14.5 acres (vs. 13.5 acres on page 7 of the EA) is because the
Draft MND/IS included the Small Falls and Sugar Pine Trails in the acreage estimate.

An expanded Special Use Permit area for BTC does not reduce public forest access and uses
that could otherwise be available for the general public. The Special Use Permit for BTC
does not provide for exclusive use of the Permit area. The general public and individual BTC
campers have in the past, and likely will in the future, use federal lands in and around the
BTC Special Use Permit area and along the South Fork Tuolumne River for a wide variety of

dispersed recreation activities.

The expansion of the BT'C Special Use Permit area by 15.5 acres is to incorporate all
facilities, including the leach field area, and program areas into the Permit area. As shown on
Figure 3 of the Draft Initial Study, this was not the case in the past. Other technical site
considerations for the expansion of the Permit area include, but are not limited to: provision
of parking off of Hardin Flat Road as required by Tuolumne County code; avoidance of
cultural resources; and relocation of reconstructed structures out of the floodplain. The
entire Special Use Permit area was surveyed for natural and cultural constraints that might be
impacted by development to avoid potential impacts where possible or to identify the
mitigation measures included in the MND/IS. The analysis of potential environmental
impacts within the Special Use Permit area is contained in the technical reports that support
the MND/1IS.

Berkeley Tuolumne Camp is a river camp. Access to and use of the South Fork Tuolumne
River corridor is fundamental to the BTC purpose and its programs. In the larger context of
the region, the BTC location along the South Fork Tuolumne River is recognized as a
developed recreation site in the Stanislaus National Forest’s Forest Plan Direction (March,
2017). That designation balances river corridor use with multiple-use values, other goals and
objectives, management prescriptions, and the associated standards and guidelines for attaining
them. These include Riparian Conservation Areas (RCAs). Mitigation Measure HYDRO-8 and
the referenced Tables A-1 and A-2 included in the Draft Initial Study outline mitigation
parameters within which BTC must be designed and managed to accommodate the RCA goals

and objectives.

The following technical reports in support of the MND/IS are available on the City of
Berkeley web page for download. They address the full suite of terrestrial and aquatic wildlife
species in the project area and potential impacts that may occur with the development and
operation of BTC:

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-22

291



Page 42 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

3-6

e Agquatics Biological Assessment / Biological Evaluation

e Terrestrial Wildlife Biological Assessment / Biological Evaluation
e Botany Report

e DPotential Waters of the United States Report

e Migratory Landbird Conservation Report

e Management Indicator Species Report

e Noxious Weed Risk Assessment Report

e Biological Evaluation for Sensitive Plants

e Watershed Management Report

The implementation of the BT'C revegetation plan (refer to the Draft Initial Study Figure 5)
emphasizes riparian habitat and wildlife movement along the South Fork Tuolumne River,

Thimbleberry Creek, and related drainages.

In terms of pulling facilities back from the river floodplain, all reconstructed buildings would
be relocated outside of the 100-year floodplain, as clarified in Chapter 2, including the
Dining Hall, Tent Cabins, and Staff Cabins. Construction within the floodplain would be
limited to accessible paths of travel required by state and local law, a pier supporting the
reconstructed pedestrian bridge, below ground water intake facilities, and in-kind repair or
replacement of existing wall or weir structures if required. Refer to page 67 and Figure 5 of
the Draft Initial Study. As communicated by CSERC at the Open House conducted in May,
2015 as part of the scoping process, the wildlife species specifically mentioned in relation to
a suggestion to include larger buffers around the river, was raccoons. Since raccoons, and
most other terrestrial wildlife species (with the exception of most birds) that migrate along
the river corridor are generally nocturnal, an impediment to migration would be from human
activity and BTC programs. These programs generally occur in the early evening hours only,
before 10 pm. There are no facilities proposed that would block nighttime migration up or
down the stream zone. Existing and proposed revegetation of riparian vegetation will benefit
bird migration. Additionally, riparian revegetation and wildlife friendly bridges and/or
culverts will facilitate wildlife migration along Thimbleberry Creek and related drainages.

Section 7 Greenhouse Gas Emissions of the Draft Initial Study concluded greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions of the proposed Project would be less than significant based on Project-
specific GHG emission estimates from its construction and operational sources. Since
neither the Tuolumne County Air Pollution Control District (TCAPCD) nor the San Joaquin
Valley Air Pollution Control District (SfJVAPCD) have quantitative significance thresholds
for GHG emission, the Draft Initial Study GHG emissions significance determination was
based on a review of the quantitative criteria adopted by other California air districts as

summarized in the table below.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-23

292



Page 43 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

CALIFORNIA AIR DISTRICT CEQA GHG SIGNIFICANCE THRESHOLDS

Thresholds
Air District Status Stationary Sources Land Use Projects
Bay Area AQMD Adopted 2011; 10,000 MT CO2e¢/year | 1,100 MT CO2e/year; or

suspended by court
otder; re-adopted 2017

4.6 MT CO2e/yeat/Setvice Population;
or Compliance with a Qualified GHG
Reduction Plan

Mendocino County
AQMD

Adopted Bay Area
thresholds; rescinded
2013

None currently recommended pending adoption/ CEQA review

of GHG reduction plan

San Joaquin Valley | Adopted 2009 No quantitative GHG emission standards.
APCD Implement Best Performance Standards (BPS) for GHG
reduction; or demonstrate 29% reduction from business-as-usual
(BAU) GHG emissions
San Luis Obispo Adopted 2012 10,000 MT CO2e¢/year | 1,150 MT CO2e/yeart; ot
County APCD 4.9 MT CO2e/year/Service Population;
or Compliance with a Qualified GHG
Reduction Plan
Ventura County Proposed 2011 Options reviewed, but none currently recommended

APCD

South Coast Stationary - Adopted 10,000 MT CO2e¢/year | 3,000 MT CO2e/year
AQMD 2008;

Land Use - Proposed

2009 (no action to date)
Sacramento Adopted 2009 (Revised | 10,000 MT CO2¢e/year | 1,100 MT CO2e/year
Metropolitan 2014-2015)
AQMD

Source: APCD/AQMD websites.

No California air district has adopted a quantitative threshold for project operation GHG

emissions of less than 1,100 metric tons (MT) per year. Project annual GHG emissions from

the BT'C construction and operational sources combined would be well below this lower-
limit threshold of 1,100 MT (i.e., at 314.7 MT from construction and 82.6 MT from

operation), therefore, mitigation measures are not required under CEQA.To clarify Project

GHG emissions would be less than significant, text is added to pages 52-53, Section 7
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Subsections 7a and 7b of the Draft Initial Study:

a) Would the project generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or
indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

The California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod, Version 2016.3.2) was used

to quantify the proposed Project’s GHG emissions asseeiated-with-Projeet

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018

3-24

293



Page 44 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

For Project construction, GHG emission rates for state-average construction

equipment (as included in the CalEEMod database) were applied to Project-specific

construction activities and equipment (as listed in Chapter 2 Project Description

Table 3). Applyingthismedelte-the-Total Project construction GHG emissions

would be 314.7 metric tons of COx. and its annual emissions in the first year of

operation would be 82.6 metric tons of COx. (assuming that all construction activity
would occur in the yvear 2019, a worst-case scenatio because the state-average
construction fleet will emit less GHG emissions in subsequent future years). No
California air district has set a CEQA significance threshold for construction GHG
emissions. Neither the Tuolumne County Air Pollution Control District nor the San
[oaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District have quantitative significance
thresholds for operational GHG emissions

For Project operation, CalEEMod was initialized according to its land use type/size
i.e., number of family/staff tent cabins to be built with provision for electricity) and

with Project-specific motor vehicle trips (see Section 16 Transportation and

Circulation) and Project-specific water use data (see Section 18 Utilities and Service

Svstems). The model’s interim total GHG emissions were adjusted further in

proportion to the Project’s planned operation only during the summer season
(15 weeks, rather than a full year’s 52 weeks). TheT adjusted total Project annual

operational GHG emissions as shown in Table A would be 82.6 metric tons of
COgze. Both Project eonstraetionand operational GHG emissions are would be well

below thee quantitative thresholds adopted by other California Aair Ddistricts and

would comply with adopted GHG reduction plans, as discussed in Subsection 7b

below), thus, Project GHG emissions impacts are less than significant.

TABLE A: PROJECT ANNUAL OPERATIONAL GREENHOUSE GAS
EMISSIONS (metric tons/vear)

Project GHG Source CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Area <01 0 0 <0.1
Energy Use 41.7 <0.1 <0.1 419
Motor Vehicles 32.8 <0.1 <0.1 329
Solid Waste Disposal 1.2 0.1 0 2.9
Water Use 3.2 0.1 <0.1 5.0
Total 78.9 01 <01 82.6
Significance Thresholds 1,100
Significant Impact? No

Source: CalEEMod (Version 20163.2) initialized with Project-specific parameters relating to its land use

tvpe/size, motor vehicle trip generation, water use and its planned operation only durin:
summer months.

uantitative thresholds adopted by other California air districts range from 1,100 — 3,000 M'T

CO2e¢ per year. The minimum quantitative threshold of 1,100 MT is used for this analysis.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-25

294



Page 45 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

b) Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation
adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

lesel. The Project would reconstruct BT'C utilizing green building measures (see

Table 1 in the Project Description). As presented in Table A, Project annual

operational GHG emissions would be below the lowest established California air
district significance threshold. Thus, the Project would not conflict with the goals of

AB 32 or any other State climate change prevention or adaptation strategies, a less
than significant impact.

3-7 According to the Tuolumne County Planning Department, of the three projects identified by
the Commenter, only one of the projects has submitted an application: Yosemite Under
Canvas (YUC). The YUC project is currently under environmental review. It is unknown if
the other two projects identified by the Commenter will submit applications to Tuolumne
County and it is unknown what the ultimate projects will propose as part of their permit
application. Therefore, the Thousand Trails project and the major lodge project are not
addressed in our response as they are considered too speculative to be reasonably
foreseeable (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064).

According to Tuolumne County Planning Department, the YUC project proposes 99 tent
sites. The Initial Study for YUC is currently under preparation consequently there is no
information available regarding transportation, air quality and GHG emissions for the YUC
project. Assuming 99 average daily trips (ADT) for YUC, in combination with 132 ADT for
the BTC project, would result in a total increase of 231 ADT on Highway 120. As
demonstrated below, this would represent a minor increase in ADT on the Big Oak Flat
segment of Highway 120.

The most recent Caltrans data for ADT on the Big Oak Flat segment of Highway 120 shows
a peak hour ADT of 1,050

(http:/ /www.dot.ca.gov/ trafficops/census/volumes2016/Route118-133.html). The Big Flat
segment of Highway 120 is considered a Mountainous Major Collector under the Tuolumne
General Plan, which has a Level of Service (LOS) 'A' threshold of 3,190 ADT for very good
operations with little conjestion (Tuolumne County General Plan Draft Environmental
Impact Report, Appendix D, Traffic Study).).The combined BT'C and YUC projects
represent an increase of 231 ADT on the Big Oak Flat segment of Highway 120 which
would not impact the existing LOS ‘A’ rating. The increased ADT is far below the
maximum two way ADT of 13,520 (corresponding to a minimum LOS ‘D) identified by the
Tuolumne County General Plan (Policy 4.1.A), and is therefore considered a less than
significant transportation impact.

The Tuolumne County Air Pollution Control District (TCAPCD) emission thresholds are
1,000 Ibs/day or 100 tons/year for all pollutants. The highest BTC emissions for NOx are
about 20 Ibs/day and about one ton/yeat. Conservatively applying compatable emissions

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-26

295



Page 46 of 224

Chapter 3. Comments and Responses

from the YUC project, the total emissions would be considerably well below the TCAPCD
threshold.

3-8 To summarize, (1) the Project would relocate reconstructed BTC buildings out of the 100-
year floodplain consistent with the Draft Environmental Assessment prepared for the
Project; (2) the Project GHG emissions would be below established thresholds and thus less
than significant; and (3) the Project would not have impacts that are cumulatively

considerable.

City of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp Permit (46690) Project Response to Comments -- December 2018 3-27

296



Page 47 of 224

September 25, 2018

Liza McNulty

Program Manager

City of Berkeley Parks Recreation & Waterfront
2180 Milvia Street, Third Floor

Berkeley, CA 94704

D